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Significant Financial Indicators For Last Five Years
(2 in lakhs)
Years ended 31st March
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Total Income 19,103 | 25,303 | 28,134 | 31,199 | 34,638
Operating Profit 3,089 4,532 2,786 3,021 2,574
Profit After Tax 1,762 2,580 1,175 1,082 887
Net Worth 7,631 8,790 9,960 | 10,559 | 11,247
Borrowed Funds 4,042 7,628 9,027 8,498 6,722
Fixed Assets (Gross) 9,929 | 14,370 | 18,443 | 19,360 20,140
Net Current Assets 3,704 5,422 1,174 755 500
Book Value Per Share (%) 505 659 747 792 844
Earning Per Share (T) 132.16 | 192.91 87.79 81.20 66.51
Dividend (%) 230 330 150 160 | 112.50
Ratios:
Debt Equity 0.34 0.61 0.75 0.66 0.47
Operating Profit To Sales 17% 19% 10% 10% 8%
Interest Coverage 17 13 4 5 6
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CIN ; L25191GJ1974PLCO02555
Registered Office; Plot No.8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar - 393 002 Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat,
Tel No.; 022 67082500 / 2600, Fax ; 022 67082599
a-mail id ; investor.relations@grpweb.com, website:www.grpweb.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the FORTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of GRP LIMITED will be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Plot No 8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar - 393 002, Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat State on Monday, 27th July,
2015 at 12.30p.m. to transact the following business :

Ordinary Business:

1. a) Toconsider and adopt the audited financial statement of the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
b) To consider and adopt the audited consolidated financial statement of the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015.

2. Todeclare dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2014 -15.
3. Toappointadirectorin place of Harsh R, Gandhi, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Toreappoint M/s.A.B.Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors of the company as Auditors, who shall hold
office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General meeting and to authorize
Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

Special Business:
5. Toconsider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Smt. Nayna R. Gandhi (DIN:00166499), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect
frorm 30th May, 2015 by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) and who holds office as
such upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a declaration that she is eligible for appointment and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act, from a Member proposing her candidature
for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

6. Toconsider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), read
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to such sanctions as may be necessary, the consent of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to the reappointment of Harsh R, Gandhi (DIN:00133091), as a Whole-time Director of the Company designated as
an “Executive Director” for a period of three years effective from 16th June, 2015, on the terms and conditions of appointment and
remuneration as set out in the agreement to be entered into betwseen the company and Harsh R. Gandhi and provided in the
explanatory statement annexed to the notice,

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to vary / increase the remuneration
as aforesaid to the extent the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and / or the Board of Directors may consider appropriate,
provided however, that the remuneration payable to Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director shall be within the limits set out in that behalf
in the said Act including Schedule V to the Act or any amendments thereto or any modifications or statutory re-enactment(s) thereof
and [ or any Rules or Regulations framed thereunder, and the terms of the said agreement shall be suitably modified to give effect to
such variation orincrease, as the case may be.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during the currency of the tenure of Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director, where in any financial year,
the company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the company do pay to Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director, such
remuneration which is in accordance with the conditions specified in Schedule V of the Act, or any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute agreements and other
documents and take such steps expedient or necessary to give effect to the above resolutions.”
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NOTES :

a.

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need notbe a
member of the Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office not less than FORTY-
EIGHT HOURS before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc. must be supported by
appropriate resolutions [ authority, as applicable. Member / Proxies should bring the duly filled attendance slip enclosed herewith to
attend the meeting. The proxy holder shall prove his [ her identity at the time of attending the meeting.

The Register of Membaers and Transfer Books of the company will be closed from Tuesday, 21st July, 2015 to Monday 27th July, 2015,
both days inclusive.

If the dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors is approved at the Annual General Meeting, payment of such dividend will be
made credited / dispatched within 30 days from 27th July, 2015.

i) To all Beneficial Owners in respect of shares held in dematerialised form as per the data as may be made available by the Mational
Securities Depository Limited and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited as of the close of business hours an 20th July, 2015,

ii) To all members in respect of shares held in physical form after giving effect to valid transfers in respect of transfer requests lodged
with the Company on or before the close of business hours on 20th July, 2015,

Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details, Mational
Electronic Clearing Service, Electronic Clearing Service, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of
name and e-mail address etc., to their Depository Participant. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then be
automatically reflected in the Company's records which will help the Company and the Company's Registrars and Transfer Agents,
Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. (UCS) to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to intimate such changesto UCS.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialised form to eliminate all
risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfolio management. Members can contact the Company or UCS for assistance
in this regard.

Members holding physical shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to send to the Company or UCS the
details of such folios together with the share certificates for consaolidating their holding in one folio. Aconsolidated share certificate will
be returned to such Members after making requisite changes thereon.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

The unclaimed dividend up to the financial year ended 31st March, 1994 have been transferred to the General Revenue Account of the
Central Government pursuant to Section 2054 (5) of the Companies Act, 1956, Members, who have not encashed their dividend
warrants up to the financial year ended 31st March, 1994 are requested to claim the same from the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at
Ahmedabad.

Pursuant to Section 2054 and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, any dividend remaining unclaimed with the Company on the expiry of
7 (seven) years from the date of its transfer to the unclaimed / unpaid account, will be transferred to the Investors Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Central Government. Accordingly, unclaimed dividends for the financial year ended 31st March,
1995 to 31st March, 2007 and unclaimed interim dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2008 have been transferred to the
said fund. Members, who have not encashed their dividend warrant(s) so far, for the final dividend for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2008 and far the interirm and final dividends for subsequent financial years, are requested to make their claims to the Company
or to UCS. It may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF as abave, no claim shall lie against the IEPF or the
Company in respect of any amounts which were unclaimed for a period of seven years from the dates that they first become due for
payment and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims.

As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, brief profile of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed at the annual
general meeting is given below:
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Mame of the Director

Harsh R. Gandhi

Smt. Nayna R. Gandhi

Date of birth

17th July, 1977

4th October, 1951

Date of appointment

16th June, 2009

30th May, 2015

Experience in specific
Functional areas

Varied experience of more than 14
years in corporate management.

Experience of more than 22 years as
director in other companies.

Qualification

Science graduate from Purdue
University, USA,

Diploma in Home Science

Directorship held in other public

companies (excluding GRP Limited)

Grip Polymers Lid.

Grip Polymers Ltd.

Memberships / Chairmanship of g::;ﬁ;ﬂﬁ:ggﬁnﬁus;d:; d Nil
committees of all pubic companies o
P P Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of GRP Ltd.
No. of shares held in the company 57,535 44,105

Electronic copy of the following documents @ i) Annual Report for the financial year 2014-15 ii) Notice of the 41st Annual General
meeting of the company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voling i) Attendance slip and proxy form for the 41st Annual
General meeting, are being sent by email to all the members whose email 1Ds are registered with the company / depository participants
for communication purposes, unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered
their email address, physical copy of all the aforesaid documents is being sent by the permitted mode.

Motice of the 41st Annual General meeting, attendance slip, proxy form and the annual report for the financial year 2014-15 will also be
available on the website of the company www.grpweb.com. Route map and prominent land mark for easy location of the venue of this
meeting is attached separately and the same is also hosted on the website of the company.

. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statement shall be available for inspection at the registered
office of the company at Ankleshwar during normal business hours (9 am to 5 pm) on all working days except Saturdays and Sundays,
till the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Voting through electronic means :

| In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and clause 358 of the listing agreement, the company has provided to
the members facility to exercise their ight to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 41st Annual General meeting
(AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting services. The facility of casting the votes by the
members using e-voting system from a place other than the venue of the AGM (remote e-voting) will be provided by National
Securities Depository Lid. (NSDL).

ii. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting who have
not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall have the option to exercise their right to vote at the meeting through ballot paper.

ili. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast
their vote again.

iv. Remote e-voting period commences on 24th July, 2015 (9 am) and ends on 26th July, 2015 (5 pm). During this period, members of
the company, as on the cut-off date of 20th July, 2015, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

v. The process and manner of remote e-voting are as under

. Incase a member receives an email from NSDL (for members whose email IDs are registered with the company / depository
participants) ;

a) Openemail and open PDF file, viz: "GRP Ltd. remote e-voting.pdf™ with your client 1D or folio Mo. as password. The said PDF
file contains your user D and password [ PIN for remote e-voling. Please note that the password is aninitial password.

b) Launchinternet browser by typing the following URL :https:/www.evating.nsdl.com

c) Click onshareholder login

d) PutuserlD and password as initial password / PIN noted in step (a) above. Click legin.
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i,

Wi

wiil.

Xl

Xii.

Xiil.

Xiv.

XV,

e) Password change menu appears. Change the password [ PIN with new password of your choice with minimum 8 digits
characters or combination thereof. Note new password. Do not share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

f) Home page of remote e-voling opens. Click on remate e-voting : Active Voling Cycles.

g) Select"REVEN"of GRP Ltd.

h) MNow you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

i} Castyourvote by selecting appropriate option and click on "Submit” and also "Confirm” when promptad.

i1 Upon confirmation, the message "Vote Cast Successfully” will be displayed.

k) Onceyou have voted on resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

I} Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) of
the relevant board resolutions / authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
signatory(ies) who are authorised to vote, to the Scrutinizer through email to shah_cr@yahoo.co.in with a copy mark to
evoting@nsdl.co.in

IIl.  In case a member receives physical copy of the notice of AGM (for members whose email |Ds are not registered with the
company { depository participants or requesting physical copies):

a) |Initial password is provided as below / at the bottom of the attendance slip for the AGM :

REVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number) USERID PASSWORD/PIN

b) Pleasefollow all steps from serial No.(b) to serial Mo.(l) of | above, to cast vote

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Cuestions (FAQSs) for members and remaote e-voting user manual for
members available at the download section of www.evoting. nsdl.com or call on toll free No. 1800 222 990,

If you are already registered with NSOL for remote e-vating, then you can use your existing user 1D and password/PIN for casting your
vote,

You can also update your mobile number and email ID in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for sending future
communication,

ix. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the company as on the cut-off

date of 20th July, 2015.

Any person who acguires shares of the company and become member of the company after dispatch of the notice of AGM and holding
shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 20th July, 2015, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request to email 1D
evoting@nsdl.co.in or to email ID investors.relations@grpweb.com. However if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-
voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your
password by using “Forgot User Details / Password” option available on www.evoting@nsdl.com.

A person whose name is recorded in the register of members orin the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as
on the cut-off date, shall only be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

Chetan R. Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.FC3S 2703) (email ID shah_cri@yahoo.co.in has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and ballot paper voting process, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Chairman of the AGM shall at the end of the discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the
assistance of the Scrutinizer, by use of ballot paper for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by
availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and there after unblock the
votes cast through remaote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the company and shall make, not
later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any,
to the Chairman of the AGM or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the
voting forthwith.

The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the company www.grpweb.com and on
the website of NSDL immediately after declaration of results by the Chairman of AGM or a person authorised by him in writing. The
results and the report shall also be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchangels, where the shares of the company are listed.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015 Managing Director

Rajendra V. Gandhi

Registered Office: Plot No. 8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar — 393 002 Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat

3]
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Annexure to the Notice

Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the business set out in the
accompanying Notice,

Item No.5:

Mayna R. Gandhi, is a Mon-Executive Non-Independent Director on the Board of the Company, who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company on 30th May, 2015. Her term of office will conclude on the date of the ensuing 41st Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a notice in writing with the requisite deposit from a member, as required under Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013, propasing her candidature for the office of the director of the company, liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has also received following documents from Nayna R. Gandhi ;

(i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014,

(i) Intirmation in Form DIR-8 In terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not
disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Smt. Nayna Gandhi is a diploma holder in Home Science and is also director in Grip Palymers Ltd., (wholly owned subsidiary) since
November, 1993, With her appointment as director of the company, requirement regarding woman director as stipulated under Section 149
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 will be complied.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommend the resolution for your approval,

MNone of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company other than Nayna R. Gandhi, herself and Rajendra V. Gandhi,
Managing Director and Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director, being her relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise in this resolution

Item No.6:

Harsh R. Gandhi has experience of about 14 years with the company in various senior managerial positions in the key areas of market
promotion, material procurement, business development, corporate communications, strategic planning and corporate services. During
this period, Harsh R. Gandhi has acquired good domain expertise. He is actively associated with International Rubber Study Group (IRSG)
and also with All India Rubber Industries Association (AIRIA). This has helped him, in having good networking with the customers, the
market and the suppliers. His association with Young President Organization (YPO) has helped him in getting macro economic exposure.
He has completed two consecutive years of training (total period of two months) for Owner President Management Program with Harvard
Business School, Boston, USA. The final term of one month training will be completed by him in the month of August, 2015, This has helped
him in acquiring in-depth knowledge about the business planning, business strategies and general skills of management. His education as
a Bachelor of Science in Management (with specialization in finance) from Purdue University in USA and his working experience with
Boston Consulting Group (BCG) prior to joining GRP Ltd., has been useful in acquiring knowledge about financial analytical toals.

Considering the business expertise, experience and in view of the substantial contribution made by him for the growth, progress and
financial stability of the company, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May, 2015, on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiee, has decided that subject to approval of the shareholders by way of a special resolution and subject to such
other approval/s as may be necessary, Harsh R. Gandhi be reappointed as Executive Director for a further period of three years with effect
from 16th June, 2015 upon the terms and conditions as to remuneration, perquisites, allowances and benefits as mentioned in the draft
agreement proposed to be entered into between the company and Harsh R. Gandhi.

The requisite declaration regarding fulfilment of conditions mentioned in part | of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
received from Harsh Gandhi.

His office shall be liable to retirement of directors by rotation as per the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Board of Directors accordingly recommend the resalution for your approval.

Mone of the directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company other than Harsh R. Gandhi himself and Rajendra V. Gandhi,
Managing Director and Nayna R. Gandhi, Director being his relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in
this resolution.
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The material terms of the said draft agreement as referred to in the resolution are as follows:

Term: 3 (Three) years, from 16th June 2015 to 15th June 2018 (both days inclusive)

Remuneration

A) Salary :

B)

)

D)

Rs.6,00,000/- to Rs.7,50,000/- Per month

The annual increments will be decided by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and / or the Board of Directors in its absolute
discretion,

Commission:

Remuneration by way of commission equal to 1% of the net profits of the company as determined under Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013 of a particular financial year, subject to a maximum of 12 months' salary of that particular financial year.

Perquisites and Allowances :

i} In addition to salary and commission payable, Harsh R. Gandhi, Executive Director shall also be entitled to perquisites and
allowances like accommaodation (furnished or otherwise) or house rent allowance in lieu thereof, house maintenance allowance
together with reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity, water, furnishings, repairs and other
allowances, medical expenses reimbursement, club fees and leave travel concession for self and his family, personal accident
insurance and such other perquisites and allowances in accordance with the rules of the Company or as may be agreed to by the
Momination and Remuneration Committee and / or by the Board of Directors and Harsh R. Gandhi. However, such perguisites and
allowances shall be subject to a maximum of 100% of the annual salary.

ii} For the purpose of calculating the above ceiling, perguisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per the Income-Tax Rules,
wherever applicable. In the absence of any such Rules, perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated at actual cost.

iii}) Provision for use of Company’s car for office duties and telephone and other communication facilities at residence shall not be
included in the computation of perquisites for the purpose of calculating the said ceiling.

iv) Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund shall not be included in the computation of
the aforesaid ceiling on perquisites and allowances to the extent these, either singly or together are not taxable under the Income-
Tax Act.

v) Leave as perthe rules of the Company.
vi) Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each completed year of service and encashment of leave at the
end of the tenure shall not be included in the computation of the limits for the perquisites and allowances as aforesaid.

Minimum Remuneration

Motwithstanding anything contained herein, where in any financial year, during the currency of the tenure of Harsh R. Gandhi,
Executive Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay him remuneration by way of salary,
perguisites and allowance not exceeding the maximum limits laid down in Section |1 of Part | of Schedule V' of the Companies Act, 2013
as modified from time to time.

Additional information as required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is as under :

L
1.

General Information:
Mature of Industry
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture of reclaimed rubber, custom die forms and thermoplastic elastomer,

Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: The company is manufacturing reclaimed rubber since
December 1978, custom die forms since March 1999 and thermoplastic elastorners since June, 2009,

In case of new companies expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in
the prospectus: NotApplicable.

Financial Performance based on given indicators:
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Significant Financial Indicators for last five years {Rs. In lacs)
Years ended 31st March

201 2012 2013 2014 2015
Total Income 19,103 25,303 28,134 31,199 34638
Operating profit 3.089 4,532 2,786 3,021 2574
Profit after tax 1,762 2,580 1,175 1,082 887
Net Worth 7,631 8,790 9,960 10,559 11247
Borrowed Funds 4042 7,628 9,027 8,498 6722
Fixed Assets (Gross) 9,929 14,370 18,443 19,360 20140
Met Current Assets 3.704 5422 1,174 755 500
Book Value Per Share (Rs.) 505 659 747 742 844
Earning Per Share (Rs.) 132.16 192.91 87.79 81.20 66.51
Dividend (%) 230 330 150 160 112.50
Ratios :
Debt Equity 0.34 0.81 0.77 0.66 0.46
Operating Profit To Sales 17% 19% 10% 10% 8%
Interest Coverage 17 13 4 ] 6

5. Foreign Investments and Collaborations, if any : Mil
Il. Information about Harsh R. Gandhi

1.

2.

Background Details / Recognition or awards { job profile and suitability : Refer Para 1 of the Explanatory statement of item No.6
mentioned above,

Past remuneration: Gross remuneration (including salary, commission and contribution to provident and pension funds) for last three
financial years is as under:

Financial Year Gross Remuneration (Rs.lacs)
201213 81.40
201314 89.10
2014-15 119.28

Remuneration proposed: Gross remuneration (excluding exempt perguisites) proposed to be paid to Harsh B, Gandhi in the financial
yearin which there will be a loss orinadequacy of profits, shall be maximum Rs.120.00 lacs p.a.

Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and person:

Taking into consideration the size of the Company, the nature of the industry, the profile, knowledge, skills and responsibilities
shouldered by Harsh R. Gandhi, the above proposed remuneration is commensurate and comparable with the remuneration drawn by
managerial personnel in similar capacities in other companies in the rubber and related industry.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company or relationship with the managerial personnel:

Harsh R. Gandhi except receiving remuneration as Executive Director, does not have any other pecuniary relationship with the
company. Harsh R, Gandhiis a relative of Rajendra Gandhi, Managing Director and Nayna R. Gandhi, Director of the company.

lll. Other Information:

1.

Place : Mumbai

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits: Profits are likely to be inadequate, due to challenging business environment in the automabile
industry in general and in the rubber goods manufacturing industry in particular.

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement ; Company under the dynamic leadership of Harsh R. Gandhi is constantly
endeavoring for

a) Revenue maximization through geographic expansion and industry outreach forimproved asset turnover.
b) Profitability improvement through cost optimization and new technology adoption; and
c) Rationalization of capital employed by combining manufacturing locations and integrating the operations.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Rajendra V. Gandhi

Date : 30th May, 2015 Managing Director

Registered Office: Plot No. 8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar — 393 002, Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat
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TO BARQDA M. H.

Location Map of registered office of GRP Ltd.
Plot No: 8, GIDC Industrial Estate, Ankleshwar-393002
Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat, India.
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Directors’ Report to the Members,
Your Directors are pleased to present the FORTY FIRST ANNUAL REPORT & AUDITED ACCOUNTS for the year ended 31st March,
2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS Year ended 31st March
Particulars 2015 2014
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Sales & Other Income 34,653 31,082
Profit before depreciation & fax 2,574 3,020
Depraciation 1472 1,244
Profit before tax 1,102 1,776
Provision for tax (net of MAT entitlement) 232 298
Deferred tax expenditure (76) 396
(Shart) Provision of income tax (net) of earlier year 59
Profit after tax for the year aav 1,082
Brought forward profit 4331 4,498
Amount available for appropriation 5218 5,580
Transfer to General Reserve _ 1,000
Interim Dividend _ 20
Proposed Dividend { Final Dividend 180 193
Tax on dividend 3o 36
Transitional provision for depreciation (net of deferred tax) 19 _
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 5019 4,331
5218 5,580
EPS:
Basic (Rs.) 66.51 81.20
Diluted (Rs.) 66.51 81.20
DIVIDEND

Based on performance of the company for the year under the report, the Board recommends a dividend of Rs.11.25 per share (112.50%)
for the year ended 31st March, 2015. [Previous year total dividend was Rs. 16/- per share (160%])].

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2015 your Company achieved a turnover of Rs.33,556 lakhs as against a turnover of
Rs.30,402 lakhs in the previous year, registering a growth of 10%. The export turnover of your Company during the year was Rs.24,145
lakhs (72% of total turnover) as against Rs.21,182(70% of total turmover) achieved in the previous year. Due to smoother availability of
power at the Tamil Nadu plant, capacity utilization has improved from 38% in the previous year to 82% in this year.

During the year, the company has merged its two manufacturing plants in Solapur. With this, Chinchali {Solapur) plant capacity has been
enhanced to 30000 MT p.a. The plant infrastructure at MIDC, Akkalkot Road, Solapur is available for future growth opportunities. The
above merger will lead toimproved utilization and greater economy of scale advantage.

Your company availed benefit of lower energy cost at its plants in Ankleshwar and Panoli through purchase of power over energy
exchange. Subsequently, from March 2014 onwards, the matter is sub-judice and therefore company’s energy need has reverted to a more
expensive source,
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Industrial polymer business of the company saw a fall in volumes on account of a weak automotive sector, causing a drop in demand. Grant
of patents for an alternate process is awaited, after which this business should witness further growth.

Customs die forms business witnessed muted performance.

Your Company's overall capacity utilization has increased from 76% to 80%. The operating margins during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2015 have witnessed severe pressure as compared to the previous year due to stagnant sales price and increase in operational
cost because of raw material prices, energy and employes cost. Fall in the prices of natural and synthetic rubber was a major cause for not
being able to pass on input costincreases to sales price.

The Company has taken several measures to reduce costs and optimize margins. Merger of Solapur plants and better capacity utilization
of Perundurai plant is expected to result in cost optimization during the current year, amidst continuing scenario of weak natural and
synthetic rubber prices.

The Research and Development Centre and Nylon Recovery Pilot plant at Panoli have received approval in December 2014 from
Department of Scientific & Industrial Research, Ministry of Science & Technology (DSIR) Government of India, New Delhi.

The achievements of your company have been acknowledged as follows:-

®  AllIndia Rubber Industries Association's Top Export &ward in the Raw Material sector

®*  Top ExportAward- CAPEXIL in Rubber Product Panel.

®  Quality Circle Forum of India's various trophies were received by Ankleshwar and Panoli plants for Production, Maintenance, Quality
Contral, COF and EHS & Administration.

®  |mpact Positive Team of Ankleshwar plant won Excellence Trophy during Mational Convention of Quality Circle-2014 at Pune.

® Ankleshwar plant has won a Par Excellence Trophy ata 5 5 Conclave organized by QCF| at Madurai.

The company has been subjected to a cyber crime during the year resulting in a sum of USD 6,38,367 equivalent to Rs.3,98 97 938/- being

paid by an overseas customer into an unauthorized account. The company continues to treat this as recoverable from the customer and

necessary steps in this regard have already been initiated by the company and itis hopeful about the full recovery of the same.

SUBSIDIARIES

Salient features of financial statement of its Wholly-owned Subsidiary company viz. Grip Polymers Limited in form AQC-1 is attached
herewith. (Annexure 1)

DIRECTORS

Nikhil Desai and Atul Desai have resigned as directors of the company with effect from 4th February, 2015. The Board places on record its
appreciation and gratitude for the valuable services rendered by them during their tenure as directors of the Company.

Bhagwandas T. Doshi, Rajeev M. Pandia and Apurva R. Shah have been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company for the
period of five years, by obtaining assent of shareholders on 24th March, 2015 through postal ballot process.

Smt. Nayna R. Gandhi, who was appointed as an Additional Director an 30th May 2015 haolds the said office till the date of the conclusion of
the ensuing 41st Annual General Meeting. A notice has been received from a member proposing her candidature for her reappointment as
adirector liable to retire by rotation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Harsh R. Gandhi, retires by rotation at the ensuing 41st Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

All the Independent Directors have submitted their declarations to the Board to the effect that they fulfill the required criteria of
independence as mentioned in the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIEBILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors confirm that :

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there had been no material departure;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2015 and of the profit
and loss account of the company for the year ended on that date;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
iregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(&) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are
adeguate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on Management discussion and analysis and corporate governance attached herewith (Annexure 2) form an integral part of this
report. The certificate from auditors of the company, certifying compliance of the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in clause
49 of the listing agreement, is annexed to the report on corporate governance.(Annexure 3)

The board of directors of the company was not consisting of the required number of independent directors for the quarter October to
December 2014, However with reconstitution of the board w.e.f. 4th February, 2015, the board is having the required number of
independent directors.

STATUTORY AUDITORS
A. B. Modi & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, the statutory auditors of the Company, will retire at the ensuing 41st annual

general meeting and are eligible for reappointment. A, B, Modi & Associates has, under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 furnished
a certificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Chetan R. Shah, Practicing Company Secretary has conducted secretarial audit pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. His secretarial audit report is attached herewith.(Annexure 4)

The board of directors of the company was not consisting of the required number of independent directors for the quarter October to
December 2014, However with reconstitution of the board w.e.f. 4th February, 2015, the board is having the required number of
independent directors.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and oversees the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors.
The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who express their concerns, The
Company has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower)
Policy has been hosted by the company on its website,

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Periodic assessments by functional heads to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the risks to enable the
company to control risk through a properly defined plan. The risks are classified as financial risks, operational risks and market risks. The
risks are taken into account while preparing the annual business plan for the year. The Board is also periodically informed of the business
risks and the actions taken to manage them.

DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR)ACTIVITIES

CSR Committee has been constituted by the Board of directors. The Committee has adopted CSR policy to contribute towards social and
economic development of the communities where the company operates in, and while doing the same, to build a sustainable way of life for
all sections of society, with emphasis and focus on education, health care, sustainable livelihood and empowerment of women. The CSR
Policy has also been uploaded on the website of the Company.

The Annual Report on CSR activities of the Company is attached herewith.(Annexure 5)

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments made under Section 186 is attached herewith. (Annexure 6)

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013in form
ADC-2 is attached herewith.(Annexure 7)

COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF DUTIES :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of the individual Directors and the
Board whichis based on;

® Knowledge to perform the role;

® Timeand level of participation;

® Performance of duties and level of oversight; and
# Professional conduct and independence;

The evaluation was carried out by means of the cbservations made by all the Directors on the set of questions developed by them which
brought out the key attributes of the Directors, quality of interactions among them and its effectiveness. The board is collectively of the
opinion that the overall performance of the board, committees thereof and the individual Directors is satisfactory and conducive to the
growth and progress of the company.
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The Company's Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors' qualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached
herewith.(Annexure 8)

POLICY AGAINST SEXUALHARASSMENT

The Company has in place anti sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, The Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint regarding sexual
harassment has been received by the committee during the financial year 2014-15.

ANMNUAL RETURN
The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is attached herewith. (Annexure 9)

DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year 2014-15 under review. Company has repaid all the
deposits of the kind referred to in Company (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 which were existing as on 317 March, 2014.

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
The above information (to the extent applicable) is attached herewith. (Annexure 10)

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 (3)(M) & (Q) OF THE COMPANMIES ACT, 2013
The above information (to the extent applicable) is attached herewith.(Annexure 11)

POLICIES FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND FOR DETERMINING MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES:
Theweb link to access the above two policies hosted by the company on its website www.grpweb.com is as under:
a) hitp:fwww.grpweb.com/pdfiRelated % 20Party%20Transaction % 20Policy. pdf

b) hitp:fwww. grpweb.comipdfiPolicy%20for%20determining % 20material%20subsidianes, pdf

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to employees, bankers, business associates, consultants, and variousGovernment
Authorities for their continued support extended to your Company. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the support and
confidence reposed by shareholders in the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date:30" May 2015 Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi
Place:Mumbai Managing Director Executive Director
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Form AQC-|

Annexure 1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries

Part “A" ;: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Bs.)

Sr.Mo. Name of the subsidiary Grip Polymers Ltd.
1 E:rﬁ::pﬁsprzr;i:?rtrgé tg:risul.ébsidiary concemed, if different from the holding Not Applicable
2| fnancialyoar in the case of forolgn subsiciaries. oo e ooV Not Appiicable
3 Share capital % 5,00,000/-
4 Reserves and surplus T 2357578/
5 Total assets T 29,19.464/-
B Total liabilities T 47,38.887/-
7 Investments T 46,77,000/-
8 Turmnover T 2,54,153/-
9 Profit before taxation T 94,396/-
10 Provision for taxation T 56,881/-
11 Profit after taxation T 37,515/-
12 Proposed Dividend Nil
13 % of shareholding 100%
Notes : The following information shall be furnished at the end if the statement ;
1 Mames of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations Mil
2 MNames of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year Mil
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of GRPLimited
Place : Mumbai Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi

Date : 30" May, 2015

Managing Director  Executive Director
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Annexure 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 2014-15

The Indian economy was expected to grow by 5.4% in 2014-15, and the growth rate was expected to further scale up to 6.5% with renewed
investment and various government measures. Inflation continues to be ticking lower, and softening of interest rates coupled with stable
Indian Rupee and lower oil prices is bringing in higher growth expectations. In light of the slow growth and specifically lower growth in direct
customer segments, the following table exhibits, in summary, the financial performance of the Company for the year 2014-15;

Key Parameters 2014-15 2013-14
Turnover (Rs.'lakhs) 33,556 30,402
Profit after Tax (Rs.'lakhs) 8av 1,082
Profit after Tax to Turnover(%) 3% 4%
Sales to Fixed Assets Employed(ratio) 3 times 2 times
Current Ratio 1.08 1.09
Return on Capital Employed 11% 16%
Market Value per share (Rs.) (As on 31.03.2015) 1,059 1,060
Sales value (growth in % over previous year) 10 13
Sales volume (growth in % over pravious year) 5 &
Domestic sales value {growth in % over previous year) 2 4)
Export sales value (growth in % over previous year) 14 22

The profit after tax for the year 2014-15 as against 2013-14 has decreased by 18% to Rs.887 lakhs. Increasing raw materal costs,
employee cost due to revision in wages as per Long Term Settlement with workers in Ankleshwar and wage increase in MIDC Alkalkot
Road Plant at Solapur as a result of a one year Interim Agreement, increase in power cost at Gujarat plants due to discontinuance of power
trading at the exchange and major increase in power cost in Maharashtra were the key reasons for the dent in the operating margins.
Moreover, Rs.217 lakhs spent on Research and Development were debited to respective heads in the Profit & Loss account, the benefits
of which will be reaped in the coming years, over and above the tax benefits arising from the recognition and approval from DSIR which will
be reflected in the current year's tax return. Accordingly, the profit before tax fell in 2014-15 vis-a-vis 2013-14 by 38%.

Segment wise or product wise performance:
In accordance with the Accounting Standard-17 notified by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the company has
classified its business into two reportable business segments based on nature of business.
a) Reclaim Rubber:
This segment comprises of reclaim rubber sheets for tyre and non-tyre rubber goods industries. The company continues to be the
market leader in reclaim rubber segment. The company has achieved a 11% growth in this segment in the current financial year as
compared to previous year. This business spans 42 countries and supplies to among the largest tyre and non tyre companies.
The total sales under this segmentis Rs.32,536 lakhs for the financial year.
b) Windmill :
The company has invested in Windmill at Kuchhadi in Gujarat in the financial year 2009-10. For the power units generated by the
Windmill, the company gets credit in its electricity bill of its Panoli plant in Gujarat.
¢} Industrial Polymers:
This segment has clocked in a negative growth of 21% in the current financial year as compared to previous year on account of a weak
automotive sector.

Industry Structure and Development :

In recent years, recycling has gained traction worldwide due to the growing focus on sustainability and realization that natural resources
are finite, More and more companies are articulating a vision of using greater portion of recycled material in their products or formulations,
The rubberindustry is no different.

End-of-life tyres (ELT) are an important source of recycled rubber around the world and over the years its status has changed from ‘waste’
to 'resource’. The reclaim rubber industry has largely been built around this reality and development. In recent decades, other rubber waste
sources too have started getting reclaimed leading to the growth and acceptance of the reclaim rubber industry.
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ELTs are managed in a variety of ways: Taxation System (tyre producers pay a lax to the Government who in turn compensate recyclers for
disposal of ELTs), Free Market (Operators actin compliance with local waste management law which assigns responsibility for the stages
of production and recovery), Producer Responsibility (tyre producers responsible for managing ELTs) and Ne Regulation (no legal
structure defined for ELTs therefore market forces determine how ELTs are disposed — prevalent in most emerging markets).

India follows the 'No Regulation on ELTS' model that has resulted in a highly competitive market on one side and significant economic
benefits to rubber using industries on the other. In addition to this, it also continues to deliver environment conservation by limiting the
usage of virgin polymers. The sustained growth of the automotive industry in India has led to the growth of tyre industry, which in turn has
resulted in the rapid growth in availability of ELTs. The latter has allowed the Indian reclaim rubber industry to become a major source to the
entire globe, not just India.

Where there is growth and low entry barriers, entry of large number of new players is guaranteed. India has been no exception to this with
several new reclaim rubber manufacturers setting up shop in India leading to growing competition for customers and for raw material. Such
units have mushroomed in the last 2-3 years in Western and Northern part of India; this has directly affected GRP (80% of our
manufacturing capacity is in Western India). Added to this has been the advent of tyre pyrolysis units hungry for ELTs as a source of
recovering oil and carbon black; so competition has been coming from outside the reclaim rubber industry as well. Margins, therefore, have
come under pressure over the last several quarters,

Revenues of the industry, however, continue to grow. While the tyre and pneumatic tube sector continue to be the single largest consumers
of reclaim rubber, non-tyre industries like conveyor belting, automative profiles, hoses, roofing and flooring, civil engineering, adhesives,
moulded and extrusion products have also increased usage significantly,

The Industrial Polymers business is a small part of the rapidly growing engineering plastic industry in India. Current GRP products include
PA G and PAG,B, - upcycled through use of recovered nylon from ELT. Consumers include compounders and industries like automotive,
industrial and electrical products ete. The lower end of the product segment is highly commoditized with several recyclers’. The higher end
is where margins are better as most material is consumed in industries (and by custormers) who are sensitive to specifications and quality.

The custom die forms business is a niche segment business in which products made out of ELT are used to cater to global agricultural
equipment manufacturers, dock bumper pad suppliers, industrial leoring mats ete. mainly in North America. The good availability of truck
bias tyres in India has ensured that this remains a viable business.

Opportunities and Concerns

2014-15 was a year where the world comprised of regions that continued to struggle (Europe, Japan), regions where growth showed signs
of revival (N. America), regions where gradual but steady growth continued (Asia, Latin America) and regions that went into sudden decline
(Russia, select Middle East economies).

With the change in central government, India emerged as the "darling’ of investors as the new party in power promised to unlock stuck
projects, put renewed focus on ease of doing business and openly welcomed companies to 'Make in India’. GDP growth that had spluttered
to less than 5% over the last couple of years finally took an upward trajectory — even if not as steep as was expected. In the last quarter of
the year, IIP was the highest in a year, services growth was up; agriculture however continued fo struggle. The central bank dropped
interest rates not once but twice due to continuously declining inflation, making more money available to industry. Within industry, the
automotive sector finally began to show signs of revival with commercial vehicle sales continuing to grow, car sales reviving after almost 2
years of decline while India continued to be the largest two wheealer market in the world.

The woes of the automotive segment for the previous two years had spilled over into the tyre industry in India as well. However, historically
low natural and synthetic rubber prices ensured that all major tyre companies in India made unprecedented profits despite low growth in
volumes. But lack of volume growth meant stagnation in usage of reclaim rubber in the sector- for the past several years growth in the tyre
sector had translated automatically into growth for the reclaim rubber industry, In 2014 this was not to be so. Compounding this was the
diminished value proposition of reclaim rubber due to low natural rubber (NR) & synthetic rubber (SR) prices; many customers actually
decreased usage for the first time in many years.

Alarge chunk of the reclaim rubber produced in India is exported; therefore currency movements play a critical role in the business. More
than two-third revenue of your company is contributed by exports to 50+ countries of the world so currency fluctuations can be critical input
into performance on the whole. The sudden, steep and sustained depreciation of the Euro hit your company hard as almost 30% revenue
comes from this region. With NR & SR prices at a historical low, our ability to pass on the effect of Euro depreciation could not be passed
severely denting margins. However, volumes remained relatively unaffected despite severe competition from Indian players, and
European manufacturers due to the strong relationships that your Company has built over the years and continues to strengthen through

17



GRP LIMITED GRP‘

IMPACT POSITIVE

its Key Account Management structure.

A key factor that is expected to affect GRP's business in export markets is the continued decline in GDP growth in China, the largest
producer of reclaim rubber globally. Only a miniscule part of the reclaim rubber produced in China reaches the global market cutside China
—itis largely consumed within the country. With economic activity slowing down in China, there are already signs of surplus reclaim rubber
in China finding its way into global markets. This is likely to create a supply —demand mismatch leading to pressure on prices. This trend
was already visible in several markets towards the second half of the previous year and is only going to accelerate and expand.

Continued focus on expanding our global footprint continues to vield good results with supplies into five new countries established in the
year under review. East Europe, Africa are the regions where we have made recent inroads with improved volumes.

Outlook

With the revival in economic activity in the developed world (especially in Morth America and Europe) and expectations of a better 2015-16,
demand for reclaim rubber is expected to continue to grow, Low NR & SR prices will, however, keep growth muted to some extent. The
silver lining on the horizon is the growing automotive sector in Europe, N America and the revival of vehicle demand in India. This is
expected to have a positive impact on rubber goods sector helping the reclaim rubber industry grow as well, albeit with lower margins,

However, GRP's strong distribution network in several countries continues to help us acquire more customers. In most countries that we
supply, GRP is the clear market leader and we would continue to consolidate our presence in these markets in 2015-16. The expected
growth in India will mean that India will receive even greater attention than before; if the government sustains the momentum of economic
reforms, this could lead to many years of consistent growth.

Your company has taken active steps through its R&D centers for development of improved product, alternate process technology to help
improve sales realization, reduce dependence on man power to reduce cost and differentiate in the industry to insulate margins from a
lower polymer price regime.

Your company continues to invest in the industrial polymers business. Patents for an alternate process have been applied for in India,
Marth America and Eurcpean Union. The process commercialization is under way and is expecled to significantly contribute to the
company's resulls in the years to come.

Your company continues to evaluate opportunities for growth emanating from its vast supply change which is closely linked to the
transportation sector. These opportunities would help atimproving marging and gain improved partnership with its supplier network.

Internal controls:

Your Company is equipped with adequate internal control system to ensure that its assets are protected against loss of unauthorized use
and improper handling. The internal control systems are commensurate with the size and nature of business. Your Company has engaged
the services of an able and reputed firm, M/s Aneja Associates, who are authorized by the Audit Committee to assess the adequacy and
compliance of internal control process, statutory requirements, etc. In addition to M/s Aneja Associates who are conducting operational,
financial and compliance audit, there are local internal auditors at the Plants conducting transactions audit. At the beginning of every year
the Top Management develops a flexible risk based audit plan for the Company, which includes a mix of financial, operational and
compliance topics. The audit coverage includes Corporate, core business operations, as well as support function activities. The annual
internal audit plan is approved by the Company's Audit Committee. The key audit results and recommended management actions are
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board headed by a Non-executive Independent Director, on a quarterly basis.

Risk Management:
Your Company follows a proactive risk management policy, aimed at protecting its employees, assets and the environment, while at the
same time ensuring growth and continuity of its business. Regular updates are made available to the Directors at the Board Meeting.
Key risks identified for your Company are as follows:
# Business Related Risks:
Inability of the Company to command sale price rise on account of inflationary effects on the input materials, power cost, rising
wage costs and overheads etc., could erode margins. To mitigate this risk your Company constantly engages in cost reduction
measures, expanding business to new markets and new customers thereby increasing volumes.
# Foreign exchange fluctuation risks:
Your Company's exports to US, Europe and South East Asia are subject to foreign exchange fluctuations, which impact
realisations. Your Company does forgign exchange hedging at regular intervals in line with guidance from leading banks and
financial advisors.
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#  Environment and Safety Risks:
Your Company's manufacturing units are subject to environmental and safety risks. While your Company is adhering to the local
legislation on environmental protection, such adherence is supported by standards, rules, guidelines and audits at regular
intervals by experts, to ensure safety standards are putin place to safeguard people, environment and products.

# Risksduetofire and flood:
Your Company's property and stocks are subject to risks of loss due to fire and flood and these are mitigated with insurance and
fire detecting and fire fighting equipment and proper security personnel.

* Risksduetofrauds and errors:
These risks are mitigated by putting controls in place and periodic internal audits which can act as a preventive measure,

Human Resources:

Your company had 1301 employees as on 31" March,2015 as against 1311 employees as on 317 March, 2014, Your Company has various
HR initiatives in place designed to ensure that GRP employees continue to be productive, efficient and believe the Company to be a great
place to work and build a career. HR initiatives are also in place to drive and emphasize the GRP values: Maintaining Balance, Adaptable to
change, Commitment, Integrity, Teamwork. The HR Department has commenced initiation and implementation of training need analysis,
sourced trainers and have started implementation of Leaming & Development activities for the next 2 years, implamented an onling
Employes Satisfaction Survey, conducted a Compensation & Benefit survey for the Company.

Your Company has a development programme designed to develop leaders and build a talent pipeline. Your Company has cordial
relations with employees at all levels.

Manufacturing:
Initiatives on the manufacturing side include successful implementation of Five-3 Workplace Management System, Six Sigma projects.
The same has resulted inimproved productivity, yield, output, process, efficiency of workers.

Health Safety and Environment:

Your Company maintains the highest standards of Occupational Health, Safety and Security. All five plants of your Company are certified
for the Environment Management System (IS014001:2004) and Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems (OHSAS
18001:2007). Your Company also implements IS0 9001.2008 (Quality Management System Standard),

Your Company has taken many initiatives towards environment conservation viz use of wind energy.

All employees of the Company involved directly in manufacturing and project management were provided with safety awareness trainings
through various initiatives.

As per Maharashtra Pollution Control Board norms we have arranged yearly Environment Audit from third party i.e. Global Enviro Tech
Services in Movember 2014 at Chinchaoli plant.

Raw Materials:

The slow down in the automobile industry has led to reduced availability of end of life (EOL) tyres. The domestic demand for EOL tyres has
been from the pyrolysis industry, apart from reclaimed rubber industry. The pressure on prices of raw material was intense during the first
half of financial year 2014-15, there was some respite due to lower oil prices in the second half. Your company has developed import
sources of EOL tyres, tubes and other raw materials to help off set the pressures on domestic competition. Total import of materials
represent 3.45% of the company's spend on the raw materials and this would increase in the coming years, subject to regulatory
permissions.

Cautionary Statement ;

Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company's objectives, projections, estimates and expectation may
be forward looking within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed
or implied. The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or reverse any forward looking statements, on the basis of
any subseguent developments, information or events.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of GRP Limited

Place : Mumbai Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi
Date ; 30" May, 2015 Managing Director  Executive Director
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GRP LIMITED

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annexure 2 cont.

Corporate Governance may be described as a sel of systems, processes and principles which ensure that a company is governed in the
bestinterest of all stakeholders. Itensures Commitment to values and ethical conduct of business, transparency in business transactions,
Statutory and legal compliances, adequate disclosures and effective decision-making to achieve corporate objectives. In other words,
Caorporate Governance is about promaling corporate fairness, transparency and accountability. Good Corporate Governance is simply
Good Business.
1. Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance ensures fairness, transparency and integrity of the management. Corporate Governance is a way of life,rather
than a mere legal compulsion. It further inspires and strengthens investor's confidence and commitment to the Company. Any good
Corporate Governance provides an appropriate framework for the Board, its committees and senior management, to carry out the
objectives that are in the interest of the Company and the stakeholders.
The Company maintains highest levels of transparency, accountability and good management practices through the adoption and
monitoring of corporate strategies, goals and procedures to comply with its legal and ethical responsibilities.
We believe that sound Corporate Governance is critical to enhancing retaining investor trust. Accordingly, we always seek to ensure
that we attain our performance goals with integrity. Our Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of the term.
In compliance with the disclosure requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement executed with the stock exchange, the details
are set out below:
2. Board of Directors
A) Compaosition:
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company was in conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement during the
financial year 2014-15, except non compliance regarding the composition of independent directors during the quarter October to
December 2014, The Board of Directors of the Company have an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors who have an in-depth knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise in their areas of specialization. As
on 31" March, 2015, the Board of Directors comprises seven directors out of which one Executive Director (Promoter) as the
Managing Director, three Non-Executive & Independent Directors, two Mon-executive & Non-independent Directors and one
Executive Non-independent Director. Since there is no permanent chairperson of the Board, the same is appointed at every
meeting of the Board of Directors. Necessary disclosures have been obtained from all the directors regarding their directorship
and have been taken on record by the Board. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under the existing Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.
B) Board Meeting:
Five board meetings were held during the financial year ended 31" March, 2015 viz. on 26" May, 2014; 28" July, 2014; 14"
Movember, 2014; 4" February, 2015 & 13" February, 2015.
Board procedure: The company places before the Board all the details as required under Annexure X to the listing agreement. The
dates for the board meetings are fixed after taking into account the convenience of all the directors and sufficient notice is given to
them. The agenda is circulated in advance to the Board members. All the information required for decision making are
incorporated in the agenda. Those that cannot be included in the agenda are tabled at the meeting. The Executive Director keeps
the Board apprised of the overall performance of the Company at the Board meetings.
Attendance and other directorships: The attendance of the Board of Directors and related information as on 31% March, 2015is as

under ;
No. of Board Attendance Mumber of Mo. of Committees #
Mame of Director Category Meetings at Last AGM | Rlireri:tt:l[shigs b
& Designation Held |Attended on 28.07.2014 mLFrnIta;d r::;:'lllpa:h: Member Chairman
e | s | s | s s | e
Mahesh V. Gandhi Nﬁfﬂ";g‘f:;* 5 5 Yas 1 - -
Dr. Peter Philip 'ﬁ;‘n'ﬁn"f"‘éﬁzg'ﬂ‘f 5 4 Yas 5 - 2
Rajeev M. Pandia ”“‘Tn':-,;:“eﬁf‘;;f“d 5 5 Yes 2 1
Bhagwandas T. Doshi N‘:‘rl'n%;?fe':‘t;"&if"d 5 3 No 1 1 -
Apurva R. Shah+ N“Tﬂi;ﬁ“ﬂi‘;‘;?"d 5 1 MLA 4 B 1
Harsh R. Gandhi {Pmim:ngfaup] 5 4 Yas 1 1 -
Nikhil M. Desal* N?;{E;E‘;'ri;’* 5 3 Mo - - -
Atul 5, Desai* N‘:'Tnﬁ’;;f;';f"d 5 3 Mo 2 -

+ Appointed to the board on 4" February, 2015,
# it excludes committees other than Audit committee, Stakeholders Relationship committee and companies other than public

limited company but includes committee membership / chairmanship in GRPLtd.
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*Mote: Rajendra V. Gandhi ceased to be the Chairman of the Board w.e f. 4" February, 2015 and is designated as Managing Director of the
Company. Nikhil M. Desai & Atul S. Desai ceased to be a director of the Company w.e f. 4" February, 2015.

Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se;

a)Rajendra V. Gandhi and Mahesh V. Gandhi are related to each other as brothers.
b)Harsh R. Gandhi is the son of Rajendra V. Gandhi.

Exceptthe above, there is no other inter-se relationship between the directors.

3.  Audit Committee
i) Brief description of terms of reference:

1.

bl

7.
8.
9.

10.
11.
12.
13.

14,
15,

16.
17.

18.
19,

20.

Owersight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial

statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the board

for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue,

preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus /

notice and the report submitted by the menitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and

making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, whereveritis necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and

seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal and

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit

discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of

non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism,

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or

discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committea.

iiy Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson

MName of Director Category Aua:: :m mlﬁei::::;'ljs c"',:‘f{.:: Eg:im;:: d
Rajesv M, Pandia Mon Executive Independent 4 4 Chairperson
Dr. Pater Philip Mon Executive Non Independent 4 3 Member
Bhagwandas T. Dashi Mon Executive Independent 4 2 Member
Apurva R. Shah # MWon Executive Independent 4 1 Member
Rajendra V. Gandhi* Executive Non Independent 4 3 Member
Atul 5. Desai* Mon Executive Non Independent 4 3 Member
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# appointed as a member of Audit committee on 04.02.2015
* ceased to be a member of the Audit committee from 04.02.2015.

i)

i}

i)

iv)

Meetings during the year

Audit Committee met four times during the last financial year on 26" May, 2014; 28" July, 2014; 14" November, 2014 and

13" February, 2015

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Formerly known as Remuneration Committee)

Brief description of terms of reference

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to
the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees,

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and remaoval. The Company shall disclose the
remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

Composition, Name of members and Chairperson

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meeting Current position held
Mame of Director Category Held Attended in the committea
Rajeav M. Pandia Non-Executive Independent 2 2 Chairperson
Dr. Peter Philip Non-Executive Mon Independant 2 1 Mamber
Bhagwandas T. Doshi Non-Executive Independent 2 2 Member

Remuneration Policy:

The Policy inter alia provides for the following:

{a) list down the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of the directors of the Company;

(b} ensure that the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is performance driven,
motivates them, recognizes their merits and achievements and promotes excellence in their performance;

(e) motivate such personnel to align their individual interests with the interests of the Company, and further the interests of its

stakeholders;

{d) ensure a transparent nomination process for directors with the diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective and

gender in the Board,

Details of Remuneration paid to the Managing Director and Executive Director for the year ended 31" March 2015.
Total remuneration paid to the Managing Director and Executive Director during the financial year 2014-15 was as under

Contribution to

MName Designation Salary (Rs.) Commission (Rs.) Provident and
Pension Fund
Rajendra V. Gandhi Managing Director 75.20,000/- Mil 7.16,800/-
Harsh R. Gandhi Executive Director 1,08,36,774/- Mil 9,91.000/-

During the financial year 2014-15, the Company has made the following payments to the Non-executive directors

Sr. No. Name of Director Sitting Fees (Rs.) Commission (Rs.)
1 Mahesh V. Gandhi 75,000/- Mil
2 Dr. Peter Philip 96,000/ Nil
3 Bhagwandas T. Doshi 83,000/ Nil
4 Rajeev M. Pandia 1,39,000/- 12,00,000/-
5 Apurva R. Shah 31,000/ Mil
3] Nikhil M. Desai 45,000/- Mil
7 Atul 5. Desai 75,000/- il
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee (Formerly known as Investors’ Grievance Committee):
i) Composition, MName of members and Chairperson

Name of Director Category Current position held in the committee
Apurva R. Shah Non Executive Independent Chairperson

Rajendra V. Gandhi Executive Non Independent Member

Harsh R. Gandhi Executive Non Independent Member

Company did not hold any meetings of this committee during the Financial Year 2014-15, as there were not agenta items which were
required to be placed before this committee

ii) Name & Designation of Compliance Officer
Ganesh A Ghangurde, President & Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary.

iii) A Statement of various complaints received and cleared by the Company during the financial year 2014-15 is given

below:
Nature of Complaints Received Cleared Pending
Mon receipt of dividend Mil Mil il
Mon receipt of Annual report Mil Mil Nil
Total Mil Mil Mil

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
i) Briefdescription ofterms of reference
» Formulate and update CSR Policy, which will be approved by the Board
= Suggest areas ofintervention to the Board
= Approve projects that are in conformance with the CSR policy
= Putmonitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of each project
» Recommend the CSR expenditure to the Board for approval

iiy Composition, MName of members and Chairperson

Name of Director Category E;';El:ttﬁgfgr%%m& Cs:eﬁiummlttu;z::::g_
Rajeev M. Pandia Mon-Executive Independent Chairparson 1 1
Rajendra V. Gandhi Executive (Promoter) Member 1 1
Harsh R. Gandhi Executive Director Member 1 1

Meeting of Independent Directors:

During the year under review, all the Independent Directors of the Company met on 30" March, 2015, to review the performance of
non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole, review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company(to the extent
applicable) and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the
Board.

General Body Meetings

Ei;lttlagé:ial Year |Date Time Nature Special Resolutions passed

" 12" June, 1.Change in name of Company.
31" March, 2012 2012 2.30 PM EGM 2 Reappointment & revision in remuneration of

Harsh R. Gandhi as Executive Director

31" March, 2012 331‘;‘”9”“' 2.30 PM AGM No Special Resolution was passed at this meeting.

u 4" September, Re-appointment of Rajendra Gandhi as Vice-Chairman
317 March, 2013 2013 2.30 PM AGM & Managing Director

1]

31% March, 2014 gg 1;”"-""' 11.30 AM AGM Mo Special Resolution was passad at this meeting.
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Venue for all the above mentioned general meetings was registered office i.e. Plot No.8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch, Gujarat -

393002.

During the financial year 2014-15 under review, resolutions were passed by the shareholders through postal ballot. The Board had
appointad Mr.Chetan R. Shah, Practicing Company Secretary, as the scrutinizer to conduct the postal ballot process. The result of the
postal ballot was announced on 24" March, 2015. Details of these resclutions and the voting pattern were as follows :

Total Votes in favour of Total Viotes against the

Description of Resolutions the resolution resolution
(E-voling and voting by postal ballot) | (E-voling and voting by postal ballot)

Special Resolution: Alteration of Articles of Association to

include provision for appointment of same individual as 3,51.887 4,875
Chairperson and Managing Director

Ordinary Resolution: Appointment of Rajeev M. Pandia 366712 0
as an Independent Director e

Ordinary Resolution: Appaintment of Bhagwandas T. Daoshi 356712 0
as an Independent Director T

Ordinary Resolution: Appointment of Apurva R. Shah

as an Independent Director 344.212 12,500

Special Resolution: Payment of fees to Rajeev M. Pandia 356 762 0
in his professional capacity as a Technical Consultant e

9. Disclosures

i)

iii}

iv)

During the financial year 2014-15, besides the transactions reported elsewhere in the Annual Report, there were no other related
party transactions with the promoters, directors and management that had a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large. All the transactions with related parties are periodically placed before the Audit Committee. The Register of Contracts
detailing transactions in which Directors are interested is placed before the Board at every meeting for its approval. Transactions
with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18, are disclosed in Note Mo.33 to the Accounts in the Annual
report and they are notin conflict with the interest of the Company atlarge.

There have been no instances of non-compliance (except non compliance regarding composition of the board of directors) on
any matter with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Stock Exchanges, Securities and Exchange Board of India or any
other statutory authority relating to the capital markets during the last three financial years, except that the composition of the
board of directors relating to independent directors was not as per the listing requirement during the quarter October to
December 2014,

The company has framed a formal whistle blower policy and affirm that the employees of the company have free access to the
Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Senior Management personnel to report their concerns about unethical behaviour,
fraud or violation of statutory requirements, with assurance from the management to protect the employees from victimization in
case they report any such unethical or fraudulent behaviour,

The company has complied with the mandatory requirements regarding the Board of Directors, Audit Committee and other
Board committees and other disclosures as required under the provisions of the revised Clause 49 of the Listing agreement,
except that the compaosition of the board of directors relating to independent directors was not as per the listing requirement
during the quarter October to December 2014, The company has not adopted non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of
Listing Agreement,

v) Shareholding of the Non-Executive Directors in the company as on 31" March, 2015
Name of the Non-executive Director Mo. of shares held
Dr. Peter Philip 1333
Bhagwandas T. Doshi 2310
Mahesh V. Gandhi 62500
Rajeev M. Pandia il
Apurva R. Shah Mil
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10. Means of Communication
The company regularly publishes its quarterly, half-yearly and annual results within the prescribed time limit and in the prescribed
format in National and Regional Daily Newspapers viz. The Indian Express, Loksatta, The Financial Express and Sandesh. These
results are also made available on the web site of the company www.grpweb.com
Company is also in compliance with the listing agreement regarding the communication to the stock exchanges.

1.

General Shareholder information

i)

i}
iii)

iv)

v}

vi)

Annual General Meeting

Day, date and time

Monday 27" July, 2015 at 12.30 P. M.

Venue

Plot Mo. 8, G.1.D.C. Estate, Ankleshwar — 393002

Financial year: 1" April to 31% March,
Date of Book Closure

Tuesday 217 July, 2015 to Monday 27" July, 2015 (both days inclusive),

Dividend payment date

Date of payment of dividend for the financial year 2014-15, shall be with in 30 days from 27th July, 2015,

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

Mame of Stock Exchange I1SIN MNo. Scrip Code
BSE Ltd. INE13TI01015 BSE 509152
NSEIL INE137101015 GRPLTD (series - EQY)

The: listing fees have been paid to both the above Exchanges for the financial year 2015-16.

Market Price Data: High, low during each manth during the financial year 2014-15. Manthly Share Price data of the Company's
equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up, traded on BSE and National Stock Exchange of India Limited for the year ended 31

March, 2015is as under :

BSE NSE*

Month Highest Rate (Rs.) | Lowest Rate (Rs.) Highest Rate (Rs.) Lowest Rate (Rs.)
April 2014 1398.00 1055.00 - -
May 2014 1400.00 1115.00 - -
June 2014 1547 .95 1210.00 - -
July 2014 1435.00 1200.10 - -
August 2014 1342.50 1055.00 - -
September.2014 1465.00 1270.00 - -
October 2014 1345.20 1207.50 - -
Movember 2014 1269.95 1064.95 - -
December 2014 1185.00 1061.00 - -
January 2015 1626.75 1105.00 - -
February 2015 1790.00 1221.00 1790.00 1209.00
March 2015 1260.00 1001.00 1319.95 1015.00

* Company's shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. 12" February, 2015
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vii) Performance in comparison to BSE sensex

Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex
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viii) Name and Address of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Universal Capital Secunties Pvt. Ltd. 21, Shakil Niwas, Opp. Satya Saibaba Temple, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (E),
Mumbai-400093. Tel:022-28207203-05/28257641. Fax:022-28207207 . E-mail : gamare@unisec.in

ix) Share Transfer System

Physical shares lodged for transfer are processed by the Registrar and Transfer Agent on a monthly basis and generally
registerad and returned within a period of fifteen days from the date of receipt, if the documents are complete in all respects.
The requests for the dematerialization of shares are processed by Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and if all the
documents are found to be in order, the same are approved by them with in a period of fifteen days. Dematerialized Shares are
transferred as per the depository procedure directly and Registrar and Share Transfer Agent updates record on weekly basis.

(1) Distribution of Share Holding as on 31% March, 2015

Mo. of shares held Shareholders Shareholding Share Amount
From To Number % to Total Helding % to Total Rs. % to Total
1 500 1980 88.910 145067 10.880 1450670 10,880
501 1000 109 4.884 81056 6.079 810560 6.079
1001 2000 49 2.200 71374 5.353 713740 5.353
2001 3000 23 1.033 61449 4.609 614490 4,609
3001 4000 9 0.404 32921 2.489 329210 2.469
4001 5000 13 0.584 62631 4697 626310 4.697
5001 10000 16 0.718 114316 8.574 1143160 8.574
10001 And Above 28 1.257 764519 57.339 7645190 57.339
Total 2227 100.000 1333333 100.000 13333330 100.000
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Categories MNo. of Shares Amount in Rs. % to total
Promater and Promoter Group holding 610221 6102210 4577
Public holding

Directors (independent) 2310 23100 0.17
Mutual Fund / Banks 50 S00 0.00
MRIs / OCBs 19566 195660 147
Bodies Corporate 62123 621230 4.66
Public 539063 6390630 47.93
Total 1333333 13333330 100.00

12.

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015

13.

The Company has notissued any GDRs /ADRs, warrants or any other convertible instruments.

xi Plant Location
Ankleshwar, Panoli, Solapur and Perundurai.

xii Addressfor Correspondence :
GRP Limited
510, "A”Wing, Kohinoor City Commercial - |, Kirol Road, Off. L. B. 5. Marg, Kurla (W), Mumbai 400 070.
Telephone: +(91)-(22)-67082500/6708260 Fax :+(91)-(22)-25004376 / 67969240
Email : investor.relations@grpweb.com

Declaration by the Managing Director for compliance with code of conduct in pursuance of clause 49 (ll) (E) (2) of the listing
agreement

| hereby declare that all the board members and senior management personnel of the company have affirmed to the board of
directors, their compliance with the code of conduct of the company for the financial year 2014-15, pursuant to clause 49 (1) (E) (2) of
the listing agreement.

RajendraV. Gandhi
Managing Director

Managing Director and CFO certification, issued pursuant to the provisions of clause 49 (IX) of the listing agreement :
To The Board of Directors of GRP Ltd.

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of GRP Ltd., for the year ended 31st March, 2015 and to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we state that :
a) (i) These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
mislead;
(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards with applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or viclate the Company’s code of conduct;

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal contral systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have not come across any
reportable deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.
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d}) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee

(i} thatthere are no significant changes,in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i} thatthere are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

(iii} that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware. However.the company has been subjected
to a cyber crime during the year resulting in a sum of USD 6,38,367 equivalent to Rs.3,98 97 938/~ being paid by an overseas
customer into an unauthorized account. The company continues to treat this as recoverable from the customer and
necassary steps in this regard have already been initiated by the company and it is hopeful about the full recovery of the

same.
Ganesh A, Ghangurde Rajendra V. Gandhi
President & Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary Managing Director

Mumbai, 30"May, 2015
The above certificate was placed before the meeting of Board of Directors held on 30" May, 2015.

14. Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance
Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the listing agreement with the Stock
Exchange, received from M/s. A, B, Modi& Associates, Chartered Accountants, auditors of the company, is annexed to this report,
The said certificate will also be sent to the Stock Exchange/s along with the annual return to be filed by the company.
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Annexure 3

CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of GRF Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by GRP Limited for the year ended 31" March, 2015, as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchanges in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur examination was carried
outin accordance with the Guidance Mote on Certification of Corporate Governance (As stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement),
issued by the Institute Of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. |tis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has mainly
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the abovementioned Listing Agreement except non compliance of
requirement of having adequate number of Independent Directors during the quarter October to December, 2014,

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

ForA. B. Modi& Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.106473W

(Rajesh 5. Shah)
Place : Mumbai Partner

Date: 30"May, 2015 Membership Mo. 17844
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FORM NO. MR-3 Annexure 4
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015
[FPursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2074]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015
To,
The Members,
GRPLIMITED.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
by GRP LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company) (CIN:L25191GJ1974PLC0O02555) having its registered office at Plot No.8, GIDC
Estate, Ankleshwar — 393002, Dist. Bharuch, Gujarat, Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March,2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by GRP LIMITED (the Company)
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i} The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i} The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
{iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings,
{v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act'):-
{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992,
() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009,
{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999;
{e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
{f} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client;
{g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
{vi) Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company:
+  Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008
+ Indian Boilers Act, 1923

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(i} The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and MNational Stock Exchange.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above subject to the following observations:
A) The Company has maintained a Register of Directors' Attendance as prescribed in the Secretarial Standards.
B} The Directors have signed against their respective names after the meeting has been held.
C) The Company had not received any proxy forms for the Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended 31st March, 2014.
D} The Company has not complied with requirements of at least one-third of the total number of directors as independent directors
as stated in Clause-49 of Listing Agreement during the Third Quarter ended 31st December, 2014, However, in the next Quarter
i.e. during the quarter ended 31st March, 2015 this requirement was complied with by the Company.
E} The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into with BSE Limited and
MNational Stock Exchange of India Limited .
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F) The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act;

G) Therewas no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year under review under the Act, SEB| Act,
SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement and Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the
Company, its Directors and Officers.

| further reportthat

Subject to remarks made in point D above, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
The following mentioned observations are made:
A)  The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concemns in contracts and arrangements,
shareholdings / debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in other entities;
B) The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment, their being
independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and ethics for Directors and Management Personnel;

| further report that there are adeguate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, the Company has no major / specific events, actions having a major bearing on the Company's
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz.

(i} Public/Right/Preferentialissue of shares / debentures/sweat equity etc.

(i) Redemption/buy-back of securities

(i} Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(iv) Merger/amalgamation ! reconstruction ete.

(v) Foreigntechnical collaborations.

Place: Ahmedabad Sd/-
Date: 9th May, 2015 MName of Company Secretary in Practice : Chetan R. Shah
F.C.5. No.: 2703

C. P.Mo.: 4253
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Annexure 5
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT

1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR palicy
Company's CSR policy is to -
= contribute towards social and economic development of the communities where it operates.
* in addition, Company wants to build a sustainable way of life for all sections of society,
= with emphasis and focus on Education, Health Care, Sustainable Livelihood and Empowerment of Women.
2. Anover view of activities proposed to be undertaken:
Broad areas of CSR policy activities covers -
+ Education:
= Balwadis / Mobile vans for elementary education
= Vocational training for adult education
= Merit based scholarship to support University Education
= Strengthen/support existing institutes engaged in providing primary, secondary and higher level education.
Health care:
= Primary health care centers
= Mobile health care projects
= Preventive health through awareness programs
+ Sustainable Livelihood:
= Vocational training aimed at employability
= Supporting initiatives around Yoga, meditation, other self-help
= Awareness programs for clean living/housing facilities (55, etc.)
= Awareness programs on hygiene, safe water
= Encouraging plantation of trees through self help groups of women
+ Empowerment of Women
= Girl child education upto University level
* Supporting groups for women empowerment
3. Reference to the web-link to the CSR policy:
The web-link is — http/fwww.grpweb.com/pdfiCorporate%:205ocial¥%20Responsibility % 20Policy. pdf
4. The composition of the CSR Committes;

Sr. No Name of the member Designation

1 Rajeev M. Pandia Chairman of Committee (Independent Director)

2 Rajendra V. Gandhi Managing Director

3 Harsh R. Gandhi Executive Director

5. Average Met Profit of the company for last 3 financial years:

Financial Year Met Profit as per Section 198 of Companies Act, 2013 (Rs. In lakh)
201314 2077.72

2012-13 1938.42

201112 4063.52

Total Average B079.66

Average Profit 2693.22

6. Threshold Limit- (2%of the amount as mentioned in 5 above) - Rs. 53.86 Lakh
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7. Details of CSR activities undertaken during the year (2014-15)
a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year — Rs. 53.86 lakh.
b. Amount unspent — Nil.
c. Manner in which the amount spent during the year:

GRP‘

IMPACT POSITIVE

Sr.Mo.& | C5R Sactor in Projects { Programmes | Amount outlay |Amount spenton | Cumulative Amaunt
Date activity identified | which 1. Local area / others | (budget) the project / spend upto spent;
the Project is| 2.specily the state / project! program Subheads: | the reporting | Directthrough .
coverad district (Name of the .| 1.Direct expenditure | paring. implementing agency
Districtis, State/s where |PrOQrAMMEWIEE) a0y nroject, {Rs. in lakh)
project! programme was |(Rs. inlakh) |2 Overheads: )
undertaken (Rs. in lakh)
1 GPCB World . . Ankleshwar
04/06/2014 | Environment Day | Enviranment | Local, Gujarat 010 0.10 010 Industrial Association
Donation Lo
PRAVARA Ahmed
2 Medical Trust, meadnagar, PRAVARA
06/08/2014 | Loni Budruk, | Health Care Maharashira 50.00 50.00 50.00 Medical Trust
District
Ahmednagar
3 K.C.Mahindra . K.C.Mahindra
24/08/2014| Education Trust | Education | Local, Maharashira 3.40 340 340 Education Trust
United Way Of
Mumbal For i
24;094;201 4| Nanhi Kall Education Local, Maharashira 0.60 0.50 0.60 ;';';fg;““ of
Foundation
Ankleshwar
251081014 | Rotary Education Local, Gujarat. 0.1 0.1 0.1 ?Jﬁ}esh\;ar ?mary
Waealfare Trus! elfare Trus
Ankleshwar Ankleshwar
Industrial Industrial
15m1ﬁm15 Development Education Local, Gujarat. 1.00 1.00 1.00 Development
Society Mobile Society
Education Van
7 Smt. R. 0. Gardi Woman Smt R, D, Gardi
Bhavnagar Stres Bhavnagar, Gujaral 0.75 0.75 0.75 Bhavnagar Stree
250312015 |\ ani Mandal | EMPOwermen Kelvani Mandal
Total 5596 5596 55,96

* Details of implementing Agency:

8. The company has spent more than 2% of the Average Met Profit (INR) of the last 3 financial years.

9. Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee :
The implementation and monitoring of the CSR. policy by the Company is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the

Company.

Sd/-

Rajendra V. Gandhi
(Managing Director &
Member CSRE Committee)

Sdi-
Rejesv M. Pandia
{Chairman CSR Committee)

Sdi-

Harsh R. Gandhi

(Executive Director &
Member CSR Committee)
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Annexure G
Particulars of loans and investments as on 31" March, 2015 made under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
Sr. Rs. Rs.
MNao. Particulars (lakhs) | (lakhs)
1 |Loans (A):
Loans to Grip Polymers Ltd., (wholly owned subsidiary) 4597
1.0
2 | Investments (B} :
a) Trade investment (unquoted )investment in subsidiaries 50000
equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up held in Grip Palymers Ltd.
b) Other investment (unguoted)
i) 128000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up in Bharuch Eco Aqua Infrastructure Ltd. | 12.90
i) 447500 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in IRIS Eco Power Venture Py, Lid.
44.75 57.65
Sub Total : B 58.66
Total © (A+B) 104.58
Annexure - 7

Form No. AOC-2
{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1)
of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis : NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

Name(s) of the Mature of contracts/ | Duration of the Salient terms of
gr | related party Arrange-ments/ contracts / the contracts or Date(s) of approval | Amount paid as
No. | and nature of Transactions arrangements / arrangemants or by the Board, if any | advances, if any
relationship transachions transactions including
the value, if any
1 | Rajendra V. Gandhi | Sale of Residential Mot Applicable Rs. §,00,00,000/ 03.02.2014 Rs. 4,50,00,000/-
(Managing Director) |House Praperty on (Six Crores Only), (Four Crores
cash basis. 04/07/2014 Fifty Lakhs Only)
2 |Rajendra V. Gandhi | Sale of Fumniture in Mot Applicable Rs. 65,00,000/- 03.02.2014 Rs. 65,00,000/-
{Managing Director) | Residential House (Sixty five Lakhs (Sixty five Lakhs
Proparty on cash Only). Only).
basis DEO82014
3 | Hemal H. Gandhi Appointment to office Mot Applicable Revision in 14.11.2014 Mot Applicable
(Manager - Corporate |or place of prafit - remunaration
Services) Revision in from Rs.5,59,000/-
Remuneration to Rs. 750,000 p.a.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of GRP Limited

Place ; Mumbai Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi
Date: 30" May, 2015 Managing Director Executive Director
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Annexure 8

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

This Momination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with
the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination and
remunaration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 30th May,
2015.

Definitions:

1) "Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes
perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961;

2) "Key Managerial Personnel" means:

i} Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time Director;
i} Chief Financial Officer;

iii) Company Secretary; and

iv) such other officer as may be prescribed.

3) "Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core management team excluding
Board of Directors. Mormally, this would comprise all members of management, of rank equivalent to President, Vice Prisident
and above. Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this palicy and not defined herein but defined in
the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein.

Objective:

The objective of the palicy is to ensure that,

+ The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors, KMP and senior
managerial personnel of the quality required to run the company successfully,

+ Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

+ Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

+ To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior Management Personnel and to
provide for reward(s) linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations;

+ To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive
advantage;

* To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel and
evaluation of their performance.

Role of the Committee:

The role of the NRC will be the following:

+ To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.

+ Toformulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

+ To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and to identify persons who may be appointed in Senior Management in
accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.

+ Tocarry out evaluation of Director's performance.

+ Torecommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.

+ Torecommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

+ To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition and size.

+ To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and [ or enforced by any statutory notification,
amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

+ To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

Appointment of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his / her appointment, as per Company's Policy.

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment.
The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient /
satisfactory for the position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained the age of
seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.
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Term / Tenure:

a) Managing DirectorWhole-time Director:
The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Execulive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for
aterm not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than cne year before the expiry of term.

b} Independent Director:
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will b
eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the
Board's report.

Mo Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecufive terms of maximum of 5 years each, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent
Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly orindirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such Independant
Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independant
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed
under the Act.

Training of Independent directors:

« The company shall provide suitable training to Independent Directors to familiarize them with the company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates. business model of the company, etc. as per
Annexure - Ato this Policy.

* The details of such training imparted shall be disclosed in the Annual Report

Evaluation:

a. The Committee shall identify evaluation criteria which will evaluate Directors based on knowledge to perform the role, time and
level of participation, performance of duties, level of oversight, professional conduct and independence. The appointment /
re-appointment / continuation of Directors on the Board shall be subject to the outcome of the yearly evaluation process.

b. Framewaork for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board is as per Annexure - B Lo this Policy.

Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy
of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position /
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Remuneration to Directors / KMP / Senior Management Personnel
1) Remuneration to Managing Director f Whole-time Directors:

a) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. shall be governed as per
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the
approvals obtained from the Members of the Company.

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of Directors, as it may consider
appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director / Whaole-time Directors.

2) Remuneration to Mon- Executive / Independent Directors:

a) All the remuneration of the Non- Executive / Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for attending meetings as
prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force, The amount of such remuneration shall
be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or
shareholders, as the case may be.

b) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to participate in any share based
payment schemes of the Company.

€) Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for services rendered which are of professional in nature shall
not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:

i} The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and
ii) In the: opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of that profession.
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3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management:

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay in
accordance with the Company's Palicy.

b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund,
pension schemes, efc. as decided from to time.

¢) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and performance of the Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.

Implementation

The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in supplement and for better
implementation of this policy as considered appropriate,
The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members

Annexure - A
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

. As required by the provisions of Schedule IV to the Act and the provisions of Clause 49, the Company is required to develop a

Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors of the Company.

The Company willimpart Familiarization Programme for new Independent Directors inducted on the Board of the Company.

The Familiarization Programme of the Company will provide information relating to the Company, the type of market and
geographies in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc.

The programme also intends to improve awareness of the Independent Directors on their roles, rights, responsibilities towards the
Company. Further, the Familiarization Programme should also provide information relating to the financial performance of the
Company and budget and control process of the Company. The Managing Director or such other authorized officer(s) of the
Company shall lead the Familiarization Programme on aspects relating to business / industry. The Chief Financial Officer or such
other authorized officer(s) of the Company may participate in the programme for praviding inputs on financial performance of the
Company and budget, control process, etc.

Annexure-B
Framework for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

As per the provisions of Clause 49, the Momination and Remuneration Committee (the "Committee”) shall lay down the evaluation criteria
for performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. Further, in terms of Clause 49, the Board is required to monitor and
review Board Evaluation Framework. This Framework shall contain the details of Board's self-evaluation framework (including all
Committees of the Board and individual Directors).

The Board is committed to assessing its own performance as a Board in order to identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve its
functioning. To that end, the Committee shall establish the following processes for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and
the Board:

1.
2,

Once a year, the Board will conduct a self-evaluation. It is the responsibility of the Chairman of the Board, supported by the
Company Secretary of the Company, to organize the evaluation process and act on its outcome;

The Committee shall formulate evaluation criteria for the Board and the Independent Directors which shall be broadly based on;

2.1 Knowledge to perform the role;

2.2 Time and level of participation;

2.3 Performance of duties and level of oversight; and

2.4 Professional conduct and independence.,

The Board / Independent Directors shall be asked to complete the evaluation forms and submit the same to the Chairman.

In terms of Section 134 of the Act, the Directors' Report should include a statement indicating a manner in which the Board has
done formal annual evaluation of its own performance, performance of Committees and individual Directors of the Company.
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Annexure 9

Form No. MGT-8

EXTRACT OF AMNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED OM 31.03.2015
[Pursuant to section 92{3) of the Companias Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the

Companies (Managemeant and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. Registration and other Details:

i) CIN - L25191GJ1874 PLCO02555.
i) Registration Date = 29061974
if) Mame of the Company - GRP Limited

i) Category | Sub-Category of the Company
v) Address of the Registered office and

contact details

vi) Whether listed company (Yes | No)

wii) Mame, Address and Contact details of Registrar

and Transfer Agent, if any

- Company having Share Capital,

- Plat Mo, 8, GIDC Estate, Ankleshwar — 393 002,
Gujaral, India.

= Yes,

- Universal Capital Sacurities Pvi. Lid.
21, Shakil Miwas, Opp.Satya Salbaba Temple,

Mahakali Caves Rioad, Andheri (E), Mumbai — 400 083

Il. Principal Business Activities of the Company
All the business aclivites contribuling 10% or more of the lotal turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. Mo, Mame and Descripbion of NIC Code of the Product % to total turnover of
main products / services ! service the company
1 Reclaimed Rubber 3129 96,96

Il Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Asscciate Companies -
1 Mame and Address of the Company - Grip Polymers Limited
510, A" Wing, Kohinoor City Commercial - |,
Kirol Road, Off L. B. Shastri Marg, Kurla {West),

Murmbai 400 070,

CIMIGLN = UZ25200MH129GPLCOT4522
Holding ! Subsidiary | Associata - Wholly Owned Subsidiary
% of shares held = 100%

Applicable Saction - Saction 2{8T)

IV, Shara Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Categary Na. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
of beginning af the year (01,04 2014) and of the year (31.03.2015) during
Shareholders Demat | Physical Tatal % of Total | Demat Phiysical Total % of Tatal the year
Shares Shares
A Promotars
(1) Indian
ajIndividual / HUF 514333 2336 516669 38.75| 524264 o 524264 3832 0.57
) Central Govt ¥ a ¥ .00 0 0 0 0.0:0 .00
c) State Govt (s) o a o 0.00 [} o 0 0.00 .00
d) Bodies Corparate 115797 a 115797 g.68 85957 [ Bea5y G.45 -2.24
a)Banks / F ] a o 0.00 0 o 0 0.00 0.00
i Any Other.... 0 1] 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-tatal (A) (1)- 630130 2336 632465 47.43| 610221 0| B10221 45.77 167
{2) Faraign
a) NRIs — Individuals ] a o 0.00 v} o 0 0.00 0.00
b} Other - Individuals o 4] o 0.00 4] W] 0 0.00 0.00
c) Bodies Comp. o 0 o 0.00 0 o 0 0.00 0.00
d) Banks | FI o a o .00 o o i} 0.00 0.oo
&) Any Other... ¥ Q ¥ 0,00 0 o 0 0.00 0,00
Sub-lotal (A) (2)- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 004 0.00
Total sharehoklding of
Pramater 630130 2336 H324646 4743 810221 o B10221 4577 -1.67
(A) = (ANT) +HANZ)
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Categary MNa. of Shares held at the Ma. of Shares held at the % Change
of beginning af the yvear (01.04.2014) and of the year (31.03.2015) during
Shareholders Dematl | Physical Tatal % oof Total | Demsat | Physical Tatal % of Tatal | the year
Shares Shanes
B. Publc Sharaholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds o 50 sl .00 o a0 50 0.00 0.00
b} Banks / F o 0 ¥ 0.00 0 o 0 0.04 0.00
c) Central Gowvt o a o 0.00 o} o i} 0.00 0.00
d) State Govl(s) i} i} ¥ .00 0 o 0 0.00 0.00
&) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 ] 0,00 ] ] ] 0.00 0,00
f} Insurance Companies o ] o 0,00 0 ] 0 0.0:0 0,00
q) Flls 0 0 o 0.00 0 o 0 0.00 0.00
h} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds o a o 0.00 o} o 0 0.00 0.00
i) Othars (specify) 1] 0 1] 0.00 ] 1] 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-tatal (BN1):- o 50 a0 0.00 0 a0 50 0.00 0.00
2. Mon-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp
i) Indian 51348 237 53665 4.02 59806 2317 62123 466 0.63
i) Overseas o 0 ¥ 0.00 0 o 0 0.00 0.00
b} Individuals
iindividual shareholders | o,0454]  gonpg a7e43z| 28.38| 347428  7r408| 424838 31.86 3.48
hkding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakh
ijindividual sharehaldars
holding nominal share 2372556 17489 254754 1911 215724 o| 215724 16.18 293
capital in excess of Rs
1lakh
c) Others (zpecify)
i) Clearing Members a7 a a7 0.07 B13 o 813 0.06 -0.01
ii) NRI's /OCB's 12087 0 12087 .47 19556 [ 19566 147 .45
Sub-total (B}2):- 618092 81825 Tons1y 52.56) B43337 TeT25|  Ta30e2 54.23 1.67
Tatal Public
Shareholding (B}=(B)1)+| 618992 81875 TOOSET 52,57 E43337 TYTTR|  T2INMZ 54.23 167
(B)2)
) Shares hald by
Custodian for GDRs & o a i} .00 0 [ 0 0.04 0.00
ADRs
Grand Tolal (A+8+C) 1248122 84211 1333333 100.00] 1253558  7ervs| 133333 100.00 0.00
{ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the beginning Sharehalding al The and "% change in
of the yaar (01.04.2014) of the year (31.03.2015) sharehaldin
g during the
Sr. Mo, Sharehalder's year
Mame No. of shares % total no of shares |Mo. of % total no of shares of
' of the Company  [shares the Company
1|Rajendra V. Gandhi 22315 1867 22335 1.68 0.01
2|Mahash V. Gandhi 62500 4.69 G2500 469 -
3|Mikhil M. Desai 16595 1.27 16095 1.21 -0.06
Tolal 101810 T.63 100830 7.58 -0.05

*** None of the promoters have pledged/encumbered shares during the stated pericd.
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{iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please spacify, if there s no change)

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during the

Name of Promoter of the year year
Mo.af | % of lolal shares of | MNo.of | % of total shares of the
shares the company shares company
L Rajendra V. Gandhi 22315 1.67
Atthe "’;ﬂ'_’&l"_"zgu‘:;?e YE3 |Mahesh V. Gandn 62500 469
Mikhil M, Desai 16995 1.27
Rajendra V. Gandhi
Date wise Increasel decrease in  |08.08.2014 (markel
Promaters Share hokding during the [PUrchase) 10 0.00 22325 1.67
year specifying the reasens for 12122014 (market
increase) decrease (e.g. allotment’ |purchase) 10 0.00 22335 1.68
transferf bonus/ sweat Mahesh V. Gandhi o 0.00 2500 469
equily elc): Nikhil M. Desai
07.11.2014 =800 -0.07 16085 1.21
Rajendra . Gandhi 22335 1.68
Al the End of the year (31.03.2015) |Mahesh V. Gandh B2500 469
Mikhil M. Desal 16095 1.21

(i) Sharehalding Pattern of top ten  Sharehalders
{other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sharehokding al the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during the

For Esa::r:;:::e':p o Mame of Sharehalder of the year year
Mo, af | % of iotal shares of | Moo of | % of total shares of the
shares lhe company shares company
114l Kumar Goel 20600 1.55
2)Divya Atul Desai 35875 289
3)Enarjee Consultancy
& trading Co. LLF fBdGd 663
4)Harish W Gandhi 32558 244
Atthe ﬁgﬁ'ﬂ?ﬁ:r& Y8 lg)Harsh R GanahiHUF | 22000 163
GiMammen Philip 37816 2.84
7IMeara Philip 51666 6.12
8)Mayna R Gandhi 44105 imn
aﬁ:jendm W Gandhi 46740 351
10Rashmi M Gandhi 50208 377
13Anil Kumar Goel o 0.00
2)Divya Atul Dasai
08082014 (market
sake) ~1000 -0.08 34875 262
J)Enarjee Consultancy
& trading Co. LLP 0.00
28.04 2014 (markel
sake) 25010 -1.58 63454 476
2904 2014 (market
Date wise Increasel decrease in sale) 5000 038 36454 438
Share holding during the year 1?;2;.2:;34 (market 150 0.01 58604 440
specifying the reasons for increase/ ::; 12,2014 (market ' '
decreasa ﬁg. ;latmenlu transfar purchase) 20 0.00 e 440
oquity elcy. 4)Harish V Gandhi 0 0.00
5)Harsh R Gandhi HUF o 0.00
&)Mammen Philip o 0,00
TiMeara Philip ] 0.00
8)Mayna R Gandhi 0 0.00
YRajendra V Gandhi
HUF
3112 2014 (market 000
purchase) 0 ' AGTS0 3.5
10}Rashmi M Gandhi 0 0.00
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Sharehalding at the beginning

Cumulative Shareholding during the

Far E;::;;T:EI:F 10 Mame of Sharaholder of the year year
Mo, of % of total shares of M. of % of total sharas of tha
shares the company shares company
13Anil Kumar Goel 20600 1.55
2)1Divya Atul Dasai 34875 2.62
S)Enarjes Consullancy
& trading Co, LLP 56624 440
4)Harish WV Gandhi 32558 2.44
Al the End of the year (31.03.2015) |5)Harsh R Gandhi HUF 22000 1.65
B)Mammen Philip araie 2.84
TiMeara Philip B1BGE 6.12
B)Mayna R Gandhi 44108 an
8)Rajendra V Gandhi
HUF 46750 351
10WRashmi M Gandhi 502059 377

{v) Shareholding of Directors and Hey

¢ Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Shareholding at the baginning

Cumulative Shareholding during the

For Each of the Directors and KMP Name ﬂéﬁgecmrs'r of the year yEar
Mo, of | % of total sharas of Mo of | % of total sharas of tha
shares the company shares company
1)Rajendra V Gandhi 22315 1.67
2)Harsh R Gandhi 87535 432
3)Mahesh W Gandhi G2500 4,69
4)0r. Pater Philip 1333 0.10
At the beginning of the year :;gg}ﬁﬁ;mdh 23“; g;;
01.04.204) 7)Nikhil M Desal * 16995 127
BiAtul 5 Desai * 9125 0.68
9) Apurva R. Shah 0 0.00
10¥Ganesh A
Ghangurde (KMP) 266 0.02
1)Rajendra V' Gandhi
08.08.2014 (market
purchase) 10 0.00 22325 167
12122014 imarket
purchase) 10 0.00 22335 1.68
Date wise Increasel dacraase in ;;;ar;h E‘?ET::::H g ggg
Share holding during the year an::ra Petec Philp o 0.00
specifying the reasons for increase) . r ’
decrease (e.9. alotment! ransfer’ SJB'T_' Daoshi . o 0.00
bonus! sweat E-:IREI]E.G'-" M Pandia o 0.00
equity elc): TIMikhil M Desai *
07.11.2014{market
saka) -800 -0,07 16085 1.21
B)Adul 5 Desal * 0 0,00
BiApurva R Shah o 0.00
10)Ganaesh A
Ghangurde (KMF) o 0.00
1)Rajendra v Gandhi 22335 1.68
2)Harsh R Gandhi 57535 4,32
I)Mahesh v Gandhi 62500 469
4)0r. Pater Philip 1333 010
5)B.T. Doshi 2310 017
At the End of the year (31.03.2015) |6)Rajeev M Pandia 4] 0,00
TiMikhil M Dasai * 16085 1.21
A1t 5 Desal * 9125 .68
SiApurva R 5hah 0 0.00
10pGanesh A
Ghangurde (KMP) 266 0.02

* resigned w.e.l. 4th February, 2015
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V. Indebledness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs. In Lacs)

Sacured Loans Unsecured Loans |Deposits | Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year (01.04.2014)
i) Principal Amount 8299.95 20.94 177.45 B458.34
i) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0
i) Interest accrued but not due 50,18 0.00 0.00 50.18
Tatal {iHii+iii) 8350.13 20.94 177.45 B548.52
Change n Indebledness during the fmancsal
wear
= Additicn
* Reduction -1655.79 -15.89 -117.00 -1788.68
MNat Changa -1655.79 -15.689 -117.00 -1T88.68
Indebledness al the end of the linancial year
(31.03.2015)
i} Principal Amaount GESE.24 5.05 60,45 B721.74
i) Interast due but nat paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i} Interast accrued but not due 3810 .00 .00 3810
Tatal {Hii+iii) G634, 34 5.05 G60.45 B759.84
VI, Remuneration of Direclors and Key Manageral Personnel
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andior Manager:
Sr. No. ; . Mame of MD / WTD / Managear
Parficulars of Remunaration R V. Gandhi H. R, Gandni Total Amaunt
1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
containad in section 17{1) of the 7,520,000 10,936,774 18,456,774
Income-tax Act, 1961
b} Value of perquisites wis 17(2) .
of the Income-lax Act, 1961 il 413,702 413,792
() Profits in Beu of salary under
section 17(3) of tha Income- tax Act, il Mil Mil
1961
2 Stock Option il Mil Nil
3 Sweal Equity il il Mil
4 Commission
- a3 % aof profit -
- othars, specify. .. il Mil il
5 (Others, please specify
Tatal (A) 7,520,000 11,350,565 18,870,566
Ceiling as per the Act 18,870,566
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Particulars of Remunaration Mame of Dirgclors
Sr. No. Todtal
1 Independent Directars R.M. Pandia B.T. Doshi AR Shah Amaunt
 Fee for attending board & 139,000 83,000 31,000 253,000
cammitles meatings
+ Commission 1,200,000 Mil il 1,200,000
« Othars, plaase spacify il Nil il il
Tatal (1) 1,338,000 83,000 31,000 1,453,000
2 Othar Mon-Execulive Direclors WY Gandhi Dr. P Philip
+ Fee for attending board & 75,000 96,000 171.000
commitles meatings
« Commission Mil Mil il
= Others, please specify il Nil Nil
Tatal (2) 75,000 96,000 171,000
Tatal (B)=i1+2) 1,624,000
Taotal Managerial Remuneration
(& +B) 20,454 566
Owerall Celing a5 per the Act 20,070,566
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD
Key Managarial Parsonnel

Sr.No Particulars of Remuneration Ganesh A, Ghangurde - Chiel Financial
DOfficer & Company Secretary
1 Gross Salary
(&) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17{1) of the 7,192,560
Income-tax Act, 1961
() Value of perguisites w's 17(2) Nil
of theIncome-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) of the Income- tax Act, il
1961
2 Stock Option Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil
4 Commission il
- a3 % of profit Mil
- olhers, specify._.. il
5 Oihers, please specify Nil
Total 7,182 560
Ceiling as per the Act Mot applicabla
W, Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences :
Section . Datails of Penalty / . .
Type of the Breif Punishment { Authority (RD NCLTY | Appeal Made, if any
Compani| Description Com h Court) [Give details)
paunding
25 Act
A Company
Penalty Mil
Punishmant il
Compounding il
B Diraclors
Penalty Nil
Punishmant il
Compounding Nil
C Other Officers in Default
Penalty il
Punishment il
Compounding il
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Annexure 10

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

1. Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year 2014-15

(S

MName of director Ratio of remuneration of each director to Median remuneration
Rajendra Gandhi 73

Harsh Gandhi 110

Rajeev Pandia 12

Dr.Peter Philip 0.85

B.T.Doshi 0.74

M.V, Gandhi 0.67

Atul Desai 0.67

Nikhil Desai 0.40

Apurva Shah 0.28

. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director and Key Managenal personnel in the financial year 2014-15

Mame of director

Percentage increase in remuneration in F.Y.2014-15

Harsh Gandhi

34.28

Mikhil Desai

200.00

. Increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2014-15is 4 .65%.
. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31.03.2015: 1301
. Explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance : The performance of the

company during the financial year 2014-15 has been adversely affected as compared to previous year. However the low average
increase of 4.65% mentioned in Sr.No. 3 above is mainly because of pending wage revision effective 1.4.2014 for Ankleshwarand

Panoli plant workers.

. Comparison of remuneration of the key managerial personnel against the performance of the company in the financial year

2014-15.
Particulars F.¥. 2014-15 (Rs.lakhs)
Remuneration of all the key managerial personnel 278
Total income 34638
Operating profit 2574
Met worth 11247
Earnings per share (Rs.) Rs.66.51
Operating profit to sales (%) 8%

7. a) Variations in the market capitalization of the company : The market capitalization based on the closing price of the equity shares
ofthe company on Bombay Stock Exchange as on 31.3.2015 has decreased by 0.13% as compared to 31.3.2014.

b) Price earnings ratio : Ason 31.3.2015: 1592
Ason31.3.2014: 13.06

c) Percentage increase or decrease in the market gquotations (as per Bombay Stock Exchange data) of the equity shares of the
company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last public offer in June 1977 :

Ason31.3.2015: 10488%
Ason31.3.2014:10502%
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8. a) Average percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees, other than the managerial personnel, in the
financial year 2014-15: 11.9%
b) Average percentage increase in the managerial remuneration in the financial year 2014-15:12%
c) The above percentage increase in the salaries of employees including those of managerial personnel in the financial year
2014-15is commensurate with the pasttrend, nature of the industry and overall performance of the company.

8. Rajendra Gandhi, Managing Director and Harsh Gandhi, Executive Director are entitled to receive commission based on the
net profits of the company during the financial year. Net profits are calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the commission payable to each of the above two directors is subject to a limit of 1% of such net profit or twelve months'
salary, whichever is less, in the financial year.

Rajeev Pandia, an Independent Mon-Executive Director is paid commission not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the
company during the financial year. Net profits are calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013,

10.Mone of the employees, who are not directors of the company, has received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director
during the financial year 2014-15.

11.The Board of Directors hereby affirm that the remuneration paid during the financial year 2014-15 to directors, key manageral
personnel and senior management employees of the company is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

12.Statement for the financial year 2014-15 pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Mame Rajendra Gandhi Harsh Gandhi Ganesh Ghangurde Hemant Kaul
President & Vice President
Designation Managing Director Executive Director Chief Financial Officer | (Marketing &
& Company Secretary | Business Development)
Remuneration
received (Rs.) 82,36,800 1,23,41,566 71,92,560 73,086,198
Mature of
employment Contractual Contractual Mon Contractual Mon Contractual
B. LLB.
Qualifications B.Tech (IIT) Science Graduate Agf’”ms ' B.Com., MBA
Experience (Years) 43 17 35 24
Date of
commencement 3rd August, 1974 1st October, 2001 14th August, 1984 4th June, 2012
of employment
Age (Years) 65 a7 26 46
Boston Consulting Birla Tyres (Kesoram
Last employment held | Ashok Export House Group HCC Lid, Industries Ltd.)
Percentage of ’ .
Equity shares held 1.68 4.32 Mot applicable Mot applicable
Names of e A Rejandra Gendhl Nil Nil
Related directors Nayna Gandhi & Nayna Gandhi
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Annexure 11
INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 (3)(M) & (Q) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

A) Conservation of energy, Technology absorption, Foreign exchange earnings and outgo :
1. Conservation of energy:
Measures taken:
a. Installation of capacitors and continuous monitoring of power factor and maintenance of capacitor, resulting in maintaining the
power factor at each location above 0.95 and improving the power utilisation in the plant.
. Provision of automatic power factor panel to maintain the same at desired levels of above .95
. Savings in water consumption by using sewage treatment plant at Ankleshwar and Panoli plants.
. Regular maintenance of steam condensate traps and safety valves to avoid leakages.
. Use of variable frequency drive for fume extraction system at Panoli and Solapur plants to reduce the electrical consumption by
about 4%.
Scheduling of annual inspection of boilers on weekly off days to reduce the consumption of furmace oil.
g. Installation of turbo ventilators in the factory roofings.
h. Installation of energy meters on the high voltage motors in the plants and close monitoring of the motor load resulted in
considerable reduction of losses due to inefficiencies.
i Use of Air Preheater Units in the heating units and boilers has resulted in savings in fuel by 2%.
j. Tree plantation : planting of 60 big trees and 45 small trees at Chincholi (Solapur) plant, 3,985 plants along with saplings at
Ankleshwar plant and 545 plants along with saplings at Panaoli plant.

o ao o

h

Impact of above measures

Optimisation of energy consumption.

Savings in energy consumption

Received power factor incentive from State Electricity Board
Savings in energy and fuel cost.

2. Technology Absorption:
Company does not use any imported technology for manufacture of reclaimed rubber.

a. Research & Development (R&D)
Company has set up a full-fledged R&D centre at its Panoli plant. The same has been approved during the financial year 2014-
15, by Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR), Government of India, New Delhi. DSIR has also approved the
pilot plant (located at Panoli) for recovery of nylen from ground rubber,

Your Company continues its endeavour towards the following:

i. Development of new reclaiming process for different elastomers.

ii. Improvements in existing process and product quality.

iii. Development of poly-blends and thermoplastic elastomers.

iv. Laboratory scale development for making anti tack solution for use in reclaim rubber sheets.

v. Process improvement in the reclaimed rubber product and production area.

vi, Laboratory scale development of value added products using waste and scrap of various elastomers.

Benefits derived as a result of above R&D ;

There are encouraging results for anti tack solution for use in reclaimed rubber sheets,

Trials of two additives conducted at Panocli and Sclapur have resulted in significant reduction of odour in the product and
production area.

Laboratory scale recipe were successfully developed for 50:50 and 30:70, NBR : PVC poly blends

b. Expenditure on R&D
During the financial year 2014-15 your company has spent Rs.217.10 lakhs on revenue items debited to respective accounts in
the Profit & Loss afc and Rs. 308.82 lakhs on Plant & Machinery & Capital WIP relating there to.

3. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

Rs.inlakhs
Earnings in foreign exchange towards export of goods 22 595
Foreign exchange outgo on account of imports, 1,497

commission on exports and other expenses
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B} Detailsinrespectof adequacy of internal financial contrals with reference to the financial statements:

Directors of your Company have laid down an adequate internal financial control system comprising of plan of the organization and
all the coordinate methods and measures adopted with a business to safeguard its assets, check the accuracy and reliability of its
accounting data, promote operational efficiency, encourage adherence to prescribed managerial policies, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and prevention and detection of errors and frauds.

Theimportant elements of the internal financial control system are:
1. Planning
2. Budgeting
3. Operating and measurement
4. Reporting and Analysis

Various control techniques are in place such as prevention, detection and correction.

Control activities comprise of ;
1) Top Level Reviews
a) Top Management Committee reviews the results of various areas of perfformance, comparing those results with budgets,
competitor analysis and other benchmark measurements.
b) Review meetings are conducted by the Executive Director and the CFO and with the Head Of Departments at Head Office on
aweekly basis.
2) Direct Functional Management
All the functional heads are reviewing the operational reports on a daily basis and corrective action is taken up immediately
wherever necassary.
3) Physical Controls
Physical verification of inventories and cash is done on a monthly basis and fixed assets is conducted every year to cover all
assetls oncein three years at HO and at all locations.
4) Compliance Controls
Compliance Officer reviews the Compliance Report sent by concerned Head of Departments in the Organization.
5) Accounting and Administrative Contrals
a) Duties are divided or segregated among different people to reduce the risk of inappropriate actions.
b) Transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific autharization.
c) Transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles.

There is an effective Risk Management Program as an important component of Internal control. At each level and function in the
organization, risks are identified and assessed. Measures to mitigate risks are noted and implemented. Risks for each function and
measures are evaluated and discussed at the review meetings on a monthly basis by the Head of Departments at Head Office with
the Top Management and the same is updated and presented to the Board on a quarterly basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of GRP Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GRP Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2,

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevent to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors' Responsibility

3,

4,

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalene financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be includedin
the audit report under the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder.

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable

authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staterments, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial
contrals system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropiatenass of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the

standalone financial statements.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,

a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company asatMarch 31, 2015,

b) inthe case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

¢} inthe case of theCash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Emphasis of Matters

9,

We draw your attention to Note no.40 in the Notes to the financial statements in respect of Fraud occured during the year on the
Company.
Qurreportis not gualified / modified in respect of this matter.
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Reoport on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10 As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015°, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of
the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

(a)
(k)
(€]
(d)

(e

(f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken on record by the Board of

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section

164(2) of the Act.]

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and

explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2015 on its financial position in its financial
statements as referred to Note 31 tothe financial statements.

i, The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2015, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

jii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2015,

Far A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:106473W

Rajesh 5. 5hah

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 30th May, 2015 Membership No.: 017844
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Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of GRF Limited on the financial statements as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2015

(i) {a)
(b}

(i) (a)

1=]]

ic)

(i)

{iv)

(v)

{wi)

{wii)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

The fixed assets have heen physically verified by the management during the year as per regular programme of verification which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Mo material discrepancies were found on
such verification.

As explained to us, the inventory [excluding stocks lying with third parties) has been physically verified by the Management during the
year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventory
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

In our opinion and on the basis of our examination of the inventory records, the Company is generally maintaining proper records of
inventories. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have
been dealt with in the books of account,

The Company has granted unsecured loan to a company which is covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. The
Company has not granted any secured / unsecured loans to firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act,

{a) Inrespectofthe aforesaid loan, there was no amount due during the year.

(b) Inrespectofthe aforesaid loan, there was no overdue amount of more than Rupees One Lakh.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and
for the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come acrosss, nor have been informed of, any
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system

In our opinion and according to information given to us, the company has complied with the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and rules framed
there under to the extent applicable in respect of acceptence of deposits, We are informed that no order has been passed by
the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

We have been informed that the company is not covered under the rules made by the Central Government of India in respect
of the maintenance of cost records as has heen specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have, therefore,
not examined the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion,
the Company is geneally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and other
rnaterial statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

{b) According to the information and explanations given ta us and the records of the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues of
income tax , sales- tax, including value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise as at 31st March 2015 which have not bee
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Period to which the Amount Forum Whera
Mame of The Statute | Nature of Dues amount relates (Rs in lakhs) dispute is pending
GWVAT Sales Tax. April 2008 to June 2013 0.74 Departmental Authorities
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2010-11 69.00 Commissioner of _
Income Tax (A), Mumbai
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 201112 566.77 Commissioner of
Incoma Tax (A}, Mumbai
The Central Excise Central Excise January 2005 to 12757 CESTAT
Act, 1944 April 2012
September 2010 to 68,94 Departmental
July 2014 Authorities
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{wiii)

{ix)

(x)

(i}

(i)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no
other statutory dues than mentioned in the aforesaid list which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

{c) The amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund has been transferred to such fund
within the stipulated time in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder.

The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial year and it has not incurred cash losses in the
financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to bank. The company has not taken any loan from financial institution nor have isuued any
debenture.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others
from bank or financial institutions.

In our opinian, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loan have been applied, on an overall
hasis, forthe purposes for which they were obtained.

On our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have come across a cyber fraud on the
Company which has resulted in wrong remittance of USD 6.38 lakhs equivalent to Rs. 398.98 lakhs being made to an
unauthorised account of an unknown person by an oversea customer.

Other than aforesaid fraud on the company, there is no fraud on the company or by the company is noticed or reported
during the year nor we have been informed of any such case by the company.

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 106473W

Rajesh 5. 5hah

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 30th May, 2015 Membership No.: 017844
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2015

{ ¥ in lakh)
As at As at
Note 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 2 13333 13333
Reserves and surplus 3 11,113.74 10,426.10
e 11,247.07 10,559.43
Mon-current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 4 1,046.19 2,420.80
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5 2,394.69 2,479.84
Other long term liabilities 6 10.00 10.00
Long term provisions 7 1320.54 164.86
. 3,581.42 5,075.50
Current Liahilities
Short term horrowings E: 4,240.11 4,519.91
Trade payables 9 2,035.16 1,877.79
Other current lizbilities 10 1,867.72 1,869.12
Short term provisions 11 331.34 310,93
8,474.33 8,577.75
Total Equity & Liabilities 23,302.82 24,212.68
Assets
MNon-current assets
Fixed assets
- Tangible assets 12 12,861.20 13,543.67
- Intangible assets 12 87.16 77.14
- Capital work-in-progress 12 B607.62 3858.58
Mon current investments 13 58.60 43.15
Long term loans and advances 14 713.57 803.81
Other non current assets 15 - 23.16
14,328.21 14,879.51
Current Assets
Current investments 16 0.08 0.08
Imventaries 17 3,005.13 3.326.17
Trade receivables 18 5,048.26 4,997,55
Cash & Bank Balances 19 186.20 237.84
Short term loans and advances 20 42438 626.14
Other current assets 21 310.56 145.39
8,974.61 9,333.17
Total Assets 23,302.82 24,212 68
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-46
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
As per our Report of even date
For A. B. Modi & Assoclates Rajendra V Gandhi
Chartered Accountants Managing Director
ICAI Firm Registration no. 106473W
Harsh R Gandhi
Rajesh 5. Shah Executive Director
Partner
Membership no. 017844 E:::E:?&Ggl':gfg:::ﬁml Officer &
Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015 Date : 30th May, 2015
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LO55 FOR YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015

[ Tin lakh)
Year ended Year ended

MNote 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Revenue :
Gross Sales 22 34,704.46 31,527.24
Less: Excise duty 1,148.01 1,125.25%
Met Sales 33,556.45 30,401.99
Other operating income 23 390,56 477,16
Revenue from operations (net) 33,947.01 30,879.15
Other income 24 706.18 203.07
Total revenue 34,653.19 31,082.22
Expenses :
Cost of materials consumed 25 17,770.90 14,640.40
Purchases of stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventeries of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 26 14,89 1115.60)
Employee benefits expenses 27 4,343.76 3,551.72
Finance costs 28 495.90 595.98
Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 1,472.04 1,244.42
Other expenses 30 9,574.71 9,290.00
Total expenses 33,672.20 29,305.92
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 980.99 1,776.30
Add: Exceptional items 42 121.16 -
Profit before extracrdinary items and tax 1,102.15 1,776.30
Extraordinary items - .
Profit before tax 1,102.15 1,776.30
Tax expense
Current tax 232.00 375.00
Mat credit entitlement - (76.590)
Deferred tax [75.56) 386.01
(Excess) [ Short provision of earlier years 58.90 (0.41)
Profit (Loss) for the period 836.81 1,082.60
Earnings per equity share | of T 10/- each) 39
(1) Basic 6B.51 81.20
{2) Diluted 66.51 81.20
Significant Accounting policies and Notes on Financial Statements 1-46
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our Report of even date

For A, B. Modi & Associates Rajendra V Gandhi
Chartered Accountants Managing Director
ICAI Firm Registration no, 108473W

Harsh R Gandhi

Rajesh 5. Shah Executive Director
Partner
Membership no. 017844 Ganesh A Ghangurde

President & Chief Financial Cfficer &
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015 Date : 30th May, 2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015

{7 in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
A Cash flow from Operating activities
MNet profit before tax and extra ordinary items 1,102.15 1,776.30
Adjustments far
- Depreciation 1,472.04 1,244.42
- {Profit) / Loss on sale of assets (Net) ({120.64) 86.42
- Wealth tax provision 0.60 5.82
= Interest (Met) 417.33 60017
- Rent received [22.36) (10.80)
- Excess / Short Provision for earlier years 0.17 -
1,747.14 1,926.03
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2,849.29 3,702.33
Adjustments for
- {Increase)/Decrease in Trade and other recelvables {115.69) 1323.20)
- {Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 321.03 [92.63)
- Increase/{Decrease) in Trade payable 254,39 123,85
496.73 (291.98)
Cash generated from operations 3,346.02 3,410.35
Direct taxes paid {175.80) 1579.01)
Met cash from operating activities 3,167.22 2,831.34
B Cash flow from investing activities
- Interest received 16.06 17.11
- Sale proceeds of fixed assets 660.23 87.97
- Rent received 23,36 10.80
- Investment in Fixed Deposit 23.16 13.42)
- Investments [15.51) (29.15)
- Purchase of fixed assets (1,511.53) (1,470.85)
MNet cash used in investing activities (805.23) (1,387.54)
C Cash flow from financing activities
- Loans borrowed [Met of repayment) (1,776.62) (528.83)
- Interest paid {443.80) {628.16)
- Dividend paid {193.21) (220.37)
MNet cash used in financing activities {2,413.63) (1,377.36)
Met increase [ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (51.64) 66.44
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 237.84 171.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the :Iursing of the period 186.20 237.84
Cash and Bank Balances
A Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash on hand B.56 B.75
Balance with banks
1a) In Current accounts 95.37 14.79
(b} In Cash Credit accounts 36.32 54.74
{c] In EEFC accounts 21.73 50.87
{d} In deposit accounts (Refer Note below) - 94.21
{e] Inearmarked accounts 24.22 14.47
186,20 237.84
B Other Bank Balance (maturity above 3 months) - 23.16
186.20 261.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration no. 106473W

Rajesh 5. Shah

Partner
Membership no. 017344

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
Rajendra ¥V Gandhi
Managing Director

Harsh R Gandhi
Executive Director

Ganesh A Ghangurde
President & Chief Financial Officer &

Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th May, 2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 [ ¥ in lakh)

Amaunts in the financial statemeants are presented in a Lakhs, except for per share data and as otherwise stated. Certain amounts that are required to
bedisclosed and do not appear due to rounding off, are detailedin note.

General company profile :

GRP Limited (the 'Company'} s engaged mainly in Reclaim Ruebber, 1ts other business include Power generaton from Windmill, Manufacturing of
Thermo Plastic Elastamers and Punch & Split products. The Company has manufacturing plants in India and sales in Domestic as well as International
market. The Company is a public limited company and is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National 5tock Exchange (NSE).

1 Significant Accounting Policies:
{a) Basisofaccounting:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP] under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory Accounting Standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companices Act,
2023 ["Act') read with Bule 7 of the Companies (Accaunts) Rules, 2014 and the provisions of the Act (1o the extent notified). Accounting
palicies have been consistently applied by the company and are cansistent with those used in the previous yvear except where a newly issued
accounting standard is inibally adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard required a change in the accounting palicy hither to
inuse.

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set-out in Schedule (1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time betweean the acquisition of assets for
processing and the realisation in cash and cash egquivalent, the company has ascertained its operating cycle less than 12 manths,

(B} Dividend oninvestmentinsubsidiary companies:
The company recognizes dividend asincome only when the right to receive the same is established by the reporting date,

{C) Accounting Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires managament to
make estimates and assemptions that affect the reported amounts of azsets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the financial statements, Actual results could differ from those estimates, Any difference between the actual resullt and estimates
are recopnized in the perod inwhich the resulls are known / materialised. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively
incurrent and future periods

{D] Fixed assets & Depreciation

til  Tangible fixed assets
Fixead assets are stated a1 cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumuolated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase
price, borrowing costs, if capitalizatan criteria are met and directly attributable to cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use, Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fiked asset is added to its book value anly if it increases the future benefits from the existing
assel beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All ather expenses on existing fived assets, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such
BXpEnses are incurred.

Exchange variation arising from repayment / restatement of the long term debts / borrowings in foreign currencies for acguisition of fixed
assets s capitabsed in terms of the aptan exercised by the company as per the MCA circular Motification no, G5 B.378 (E] dated 11 th May,
2011 and further amended by pursuant to circular no, 25/ 2012 dated 9th August, 2012 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Gains or
|osses arising from derecognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
ofthe asset and are recognized inthe statement of profitand foss when the asset is derecognized.
tii) Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on fixed assets s provided on straight line method for the period for which the assets have been used as under:

1] Depreciation on assets is provided ower the useful life of assets as prescribed under schedule || of Companies Act, 2013
21 Effectwve 1st April, 2014, the company depreciates its fised assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule 11

af the Act, as against the earlier practice of depreciating at the rates prescribed inschedule X1V of the Companies Act, 1954,
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31 Plant & machinery which have warked for more than single shift, depraciation is provided for accordingly as per rate prescribed in
schadula Il of the Companies Act, 2013,
14} Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairmant [osses, if any. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their esimated useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortization method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amartisation period is changed accordingly. Gain or losses arising from the retiremment or disposal of an intangitle asset are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaount of the asset and recognized as income or expense in the
statement of Profit and Loss, The amortisation rates used are -

Aszet Pariod of amortisation
Computer Software Gyears

Copyrights 10vyears

Impairment of Assets :

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value, Animpairment loss is charged to the Profit and
Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if
there has been achange inthe estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs ;

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or producton of qualified assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective asset. The borrowing cost eligible for capitalization is being netted off against any income arising on temparary investment of
those borrowings. Allother borrowing costs are recognized as anexpense inthe period inwhich they are incurred.

Government Grants and Subsidy :
Special capital incentive and subsicy received from the government for setting up or expansion of an industrial undertaking in
undeveloped area of state, is credited ta Special capital incentive and subsidy account under Capital Reserve Account

Investments :

Investments, which are readily realizanle and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.
Long term investments are carried at cost. However provision for diminution is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually. Current
imvestments are valued at cost or market valua whichever is lower,

Taxes:

Provision for tax is made for both current and deterred taxes. Provisions for current income tax (including Wealth tax) is made at
current tax rates based on assessable incomefwealth, The Company provides for deferred tax based on the tax effect of timing
difference resulting from the recognition of items in the Anancial statement and in estimating its current tax provision. Deferred
tax assets are recognized  if there is a reasonable certainty of realisation. The effect on deferred tawes of a change in tax rates is
recognized inthe Profit & Loss Account inthe period inwhichit has been enacted

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised in accardance with the Guidance Mote on "Accounting for credit
avalable in respect of Minimum Alterpative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 19617 ssued by ICAL MAT credit 15 recognised as an
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. At each balance sheet date the company re-assesses MAT credit assets to the extent they become reazonably certain or
virtually certain of realisation, as the case may be and adjusts the same accordingly.

Inventories:
Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after providing for obsolescence | if any. Cost of Inventorias
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comprises of cost of purchase |, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective  present location and
condition, Cost of raw materials, stares & spares, packing materials are determined on weighted averag basis. However raw materials are
written down to realisable value only if the cost of the related finished goods is not expected to recover the cost of raw materials.

Work in - progress and finished goods are valued at  lower of cast and net realisable valua, Cost of work in progress and finished
goods s determined on absorption costing method which include cost of conversion and other casts incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition. Excise duty isincluded inthe value of finished goods.

Income / Expenses Recognition :

il Domestc Sales are recognized on dispatch of goods from factory and Export 5ales on transfer of significant risk & rewards of
ownership of such goods. Sales are disclosed net of sales tax /Value added tax, discounts and sales return as applicable,

i) Income from Power generation is accounted on the basis of certification of Gujarat Electricity Development Authority.

i) Commission expenses on sales {other than consignment sales] is accounted on realisation of sales proceeds and
commission an consignment sales is accounted on receipt of statement of consignment sale.

iv) Rentalsand all other expensesinrespect of leased assets are treated as revenue expanditure.

v] Thecompany accounts for excise duty rebate, duty entitlements and focus benetits on exports on accrual basis.

wil Interestincomeis recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

wii) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

Foreign currency & derivative transactions

il Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency monetary items are restated at the rate as of the date of Balance Sheet.

il In case of forward contracts with underlying assets or liabilibes, the difference between the forward rate and the sxchange

rate on the date of inception of a forward contract is recognized as income ar expense and s amortised ovar the life of the

contract, Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they

arise. Any profit or loss arising on cancellaton or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognisec as income or

expense for the period. The objective of these derivative instruments is to reduce the risk or cost to the company and is not

intended far trading or speculation purposes.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation s recognized in the profit

and loss account except in case of long term liabilives, where they relate to acquisition of fiked assets, in which case they are

adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets in line with notification dated 11th May, 2011 and further amended and issued by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

w) Exposure onaccount of Cross Currency swaps entered into by the company is accodnted on basis of mark to market lases, ifany,

(M) Employees Benefits :

Long Term Employee Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans :
Provident Fund
The company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellansous
Provisions Act, 1952, which is a detined contribution plan and contrioution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period in
which services are rendered by the employee.

b) Defined Benefit Plans:

| Gratuity
The company has a defined benefit employee retiremeant scheme in the form of gratuity trust. The Trustees of the scheme hayve
entrusted the administration of the related fund to the Life Insurance Corporation of India {LIC). Charge for the year is determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the balance sheet. Actuarial Gains / Losses, if any are
recopnised inthe statement of profit & loss, Cantributions were deposited with the LIC based onintimation recetved by the company.

il Leave Encashment
Provision for leave encashment | which is a defined benefit , is made based on actuarial valuaton done by an independent
agency of notified actuaries by using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial Gains [/ Losses, if any are recognised in the
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statement of profit & loss,

il Superannuation
The Company has Superannuation Plan for its executives - a defined contribution plan. The Company makes annual
contribution of the covered amployees' salary, subject to masimum of a 1 lakh per employee, for the esecutive apting for the
henefit, The plan s managed by a Trust and the funds are invested with Life Insurance Corporation of India under its Group
Superannuation Scheme. Annual contributons as specified under the Trust deed are paid to the Life Insurance
Corporation of India and recognised as an expense of the year in which the liability is incurred.

Short Term Employee Benefits :
Fxpense in respect of other short term benefits is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during
which services are rendered by the employee,

Lease:
Leass agreements where the risk & rewards, incidents to ownership of an asset substantally vest with the lessar are recognised
as operating lease, Leasa rent under operating lease are recognised in the profit & loss statement an straight line basis,

Research & Development :
Capital Expenditure for Hesearch & Development is capitalised when commissioned and included in the fixed assets. Revenue
expenditure on Research & Developmeant is charged in the perod inwhich it is incurred.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions invalved substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes.
Contingenl Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statemants

Earning per Share

The company reports basic and diluted earning per share (EPS) in accordance with the Accountng Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of the Compganies (Accounts] Rules, 2014, The Basic EPS has been
computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the accounting year. The diluted EP5 has been computed using the  weighted average numbear of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares gutstanding during the end of the year

Segment reporting :

Identification of segment

The company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on the areas inwhich major operating divisions of the company operate.

Allocation of common costs
Comman allocable casts are allocated to each segment according ta the relative contribution of each segment to the total common costs,

Unallocated items
Unallecated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated 1o any business segment.

Segment accounting policies
The company prepares its segment infarmation in conformity with the accounting palicies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the company asawhole.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents for the purposes of cash-flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or [ess,
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Pz at Az at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

2 Share Capital:

Authorized
1,500,000 |March 31, 2014 - 1,500,000) aquity shares of 7 10 each 150,00 150.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,333,333 (March 31, 2014 - 1,333,333) Cquity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid-up 133.33 133,33

133.33 132.33

(a] Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
(i) The Company has only ane class of shares referred to as equity shares naving a par value af T 10/~ Each holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one
vote per share
{il} The dividend praposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the zporoval af the sharehalders in the ensuing Arnual General Meeting.
iy In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares of the Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of 2l preferertizl zmounts in propartion ta their sharehaolding.

[b)} The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, is set out below :

A at A5 at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Equity Shares:
At the beginning

Number of shares 1,333,333 1,333,333
Amaunt 133.33 133.33

At the end
- Number of shares 1,333,333 1,333,333
- Amaunt 133.33 133.33

[c]) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

As at 31-03-2015 As at 31-03-2014
No, of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Mrs. Maera Philin R BGh 6.12% Bl,GBA 6.12%
Enarjes Consultancy & Traging Company LLP LEB24 4.40% 2,464 6.63%
As at As at

3 Reserves and Surplus:
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Caplital reserve
Special capital incentive and subsidy

Balance as per last Balance sheet 53.30 53.30
Profit on re-issue of forfeited shares

Balance as per last Balance sheet 0.01 0oL
Securities Premium account

Balance as per last Balance sheeat A1.67 A1.67
Balance as at the end of the year 94,98 94.98

General Reserve

Ralance as at beginning of the year £,000.00 5, 000,00
Add : Transferred from the statement of prefit and loss account 1,000.00
Balance as at the end of the year &, 000.00 6, 000.00
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Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance as at beginning of the year d,331.12 4.498.11
Profit far the yvear BE6.81 108260
Amount available for appropriation 5,217.93 5,580.71
Less: Apprapriations
Imterim dividend - 20.00
Dividend / Final dividend 150.00 183 .33
Total dividend 150.00 21333
Dividend tax 30.54 36.26
amount trznsferred Lo gereral reserve 100000
Transitianal provision far : Depreciation charge 2823
Ceferred tax on abave [9.60) -
Total appropriations 199,17 1,249.59
Balance as at end of the year 5,018.76 4,331.12
Total reserves and surplus 11,113.74 10,426.10
4 Long Term Barrowings: As at As-ot A Avat
31-03-2015 31-03-3014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Secured: Current Maturity Non-turrent portion
Term Loans from Banks:
Faraign Currency Loans from Banks BB6.95 977.50 L6596 137155
Rupee Loans from Banks 564.17 56417 4AR0.0] 1,044,177
Total Secured Barrowings 1,431.12 1,541.73 1,045.46 2,415.76
Unsecured:
Loans from Banks 1.24 9.449 1.24
Deferred Sales Tax payments 3.08 6.41 0.73 38D
Total Unsecured Borrowings 4.32 15,90 0.73 5.04
1,435.44 1,557.63 1,046.19 2,420.80
Amount disclosed under the head "Other current lianilites” {1,435.44) (1,557.63) - -
{refer note 10
Total long-term barrowings - - 1,046.19 2,420.80

& MNature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings:
1 Rupee loan from HDFC Bank Ltd.of T 324.17 lakh (March 31, 2014 : T 648,35 lakh) for Factory [Phase 1} at Chinchali, Solapur
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire mavable fiked assets of the Company located at Chinchali, Salapur, both present and
future and by way of mortgage of land together with factory building ano structures situated at Chinchaol factory, Solapur

Repayatle in 20 egual guarterly instalments beginning fram June 20, 2011, along with interest of 13 % poa.

[2=]

Rupee loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. ofT 720.00 lzkh [(March 31, 2014 : T 980.00 lakh) for Factory [Phase 11) at Chincholi, Solapur
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation af entire movable fixed assets of the Company located at Chinchali, 3olzpur, both prezent and
future and by way of mortgage of land together with factory building and structures situated at Chinchel factary, Sclapur

Repayable in 20 egual guarterly instalments beginmng fram April 30, 2013, along with interest of 13 % pa

wi

Foreign currency loan from HOFC Bank Led of T NIL (March 31, 2014 ;T 51.69 lakh) for Wind Mill project.
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of enbre current assets, both present and Tuture, including invertories, book debts, bills
recaivables and entire movahle fixed assets and morgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Repayatle in 20 egual guarterly instalments beginning fram February 5, 2010, along with interest af 5 % p.a.
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4 Foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd.of € NIL {March 31, 2014 :¥ 95.73 lakh) for Kurla Office | premises at Mumbai
First exclusive charpe by way of hypothacation of entire current zssets, both present and future, including inventaries, book dents, hils

receivanles ano enbire movable Nixed assets and mortgage of immaovable fixed assets of the Company

Repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments beginning from February 5, 2010, along with interest of 5 % poa.

5 Foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd.of $113.01 lakh (March 31, 2014 : T 216.42 lakh) for Kurla Office |l premises at Mumbal
First exclusive charge by way ol hypathacation of entire current zssets, both present and future, including inventaries, book debts, bills
receivables anc entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fived assets of the Company

Repayable in 20 equal guartery instalments beginning from September 20, 2011 along with interest of 8 % p.a.

& Foreign currency loan from Citi Bank, N.A. of ¥ 1,319.40 lakh (March 31, 2014 : ¥ 1,985.31 lakh) for Perundurai factory, in Tamil Nadu
First exclusive chargs by way of hypathecation of entire maovable fized assets of the Company located at Perunduras, Tamilnadu, both present
and future and by way of mortgage of Land together with factory building and structures situated at Peruncural, Tamilnadu

Repayable in 15 equal guarterly instalments beginning from April 22, 2013 along with interest @ 5.61% p.a

B Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings:
1 Deferred sales-tax payments

Deferred sales-tax payment is interest free loan and repayable from financial year 2006-07 to 2016-17.

2 Loans from Bank
Vehicle loans are secured by vehicles under hypothecation with banks,
Lozns are repayable in 36 monthly instaiments from the data of respective lnans,

o As at A5 at
5 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net):
(Net) 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Deferred Tax Liabilities
- Depreciation 2,419.27 2.497.37
Gratuity [Expenzes allowable for tax purposes when paid) 19.6% 28.71
2,438.96 2,526.08
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for employes benefit a4.27 4624
44.27 46.24
Total deferred tax liabilities (net) 2,394.69 2,479.84
A
6 Other Long-term Liabilities: As at s at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Security deposit received against the rental income 10.00 10.00
Total other long-term liabilities 10.00 10.00
7 Long-term Provisions: Asat Asat faat As at
31-03-2015  31-03-2014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Current Maturity Non-current portion
Provision for Employees Benefit expenses:
Provision far Leave encashment 1215 10.40 bH.12 4349
Provision far Gratuity payment 2.97 - - -
15.16 10.40 G68.12 43.49
Mark to market provision on derivative instruments a8 66 74,34 G62.42 121.37
113.82 B4.74 130.54 164.86
Amaount disclozed under the head "Short-term provisions {113.82) (BA.74) - -
[refer nate 11 |
Total Long-term provisions . . 130.54 164.86

61



GRP LIMITED GRP‘

IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 315T MARCH, 2015 [T inlakh)
B Short-term Borrowings: As at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-7014
Secured:
Warking Capital Loan payable on demand from banks
Foreign Currency Loan 359870 367408
Rupes Loan 580,96 22452
4,179.66 3,898.60
Buyer's credit in foreign currency loan 443 86
Unsecurad:
Neposits from Public - 117.00
Neposits from Cthers 60,45 G045
60.45 177.45
Tatal Shart-term borrowings 4,240.11 4,519.91

|3l Working Capital Loan from HOFC Bank Ltd of T 2738.32 lakh (March 31, 2014 : ¥ 2,865.81 lakh)
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, boath present and Tuture, including inventories, book debts, bills receivables
and entire movahle fixed assets and martgage ot immaovahble tiked assets of the Campany.

(B} Working Capital loan from Citi Bank N, &, of ¥ 1,441.35 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : T 1,032.73 lakhs)
Secured by first parl passu charge in favour of Citi Bank N.A. by way of hypothecation of entire current assets including inventories and such other
movables, books debts, bills receivables and second subservient charge on entire movable fixed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of
the Company, both present and future

|c) Buyer's credit in foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd of T NIL {March 31, 2014 : T 443 86 lakhs] for Capital Goods.,
Secured by exclusive charge an an imparted recycling machine and all related equipments at Panaoli tactory, Repayable in ane instalment due on
August 08, 2014,

(d} Depasits from Public junsecured) carry interest @ 12.50% p.a. and Depesits from Others (unsecured) carry interest @ 12.00% p.a. with maturity
perod of 12 months from the date of deposit.

(] Fizxed Deposits includes deposit accepted fram the related parties of T NIL {March 31, 2014 : 3 73.25 lakhs).

As at As at

9 Trade Payables: 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Trade payables 203516 1,877.79
Total trade payables 2,035.16 1,877.79

Details of Micre and Small Enterprises as definec under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act”)

To comply wilh the reguirement of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmant Act, 2006, the Company requasted its suppliers to confirm it

whether they are covered as Micro, 3mail or Medium enterprise as is gefined in the said Act. Based an the communication received from such supplisrs

cenfirming ther coverage as such enterpnse, the campany has recognized them for the necessary treatment as providec under the Act, from the date of
recaipt af such confirmaticns and are cisclosed in note bDelow.

As at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
al Principal amaount due ta suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the year end. 168.74 116,17

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and Remaining unpaid at the year end.
£) Frincipal amaunt due ta suppliers registered under the M3MED Act, beyond the appainted day during the year
dj Interest pad, other than under Sechion 16 of MSMED Act, to supphers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
appainted day during the year
el Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, ta suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
day durning the year.
#1  Interest due and payable towards suppliars registered under MAMED Act, for payments already made - -
gl Furtherinterest remaining due and payable Tor carlier years

The above information regarding Micre and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
infarmation avadlable with the Company.
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10 Other Current Liabilities: As ot Aaat
31032015 31037014

Current matuntes of Long-Lterm debts (refer note 4] 1,435.44 1,557.63
interest Accrued but not due an borrowings 38.10 50,18
Unclaimed Dividend [refer nate below| 11,85 11.73
Advances fraom customers 41.15 17.23
Vendors tor Capital Goods & Services 7041 759.90
Statutary dues 154.73 1£9.13
Jhers 116.04 3.32
Total ather current liabilities 1,867.72 1,869.12

Mote: There are no amounts due and cutstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 318t Marck, 2015,

As at Asat

11 Shart Term provisicns:
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Current maturitics of Long-term provisions of Employees Benefit expenses [refer note 7)

Provisian for Leave encashment 12.19 Loan
Prowvision tor Gratwity payment 2.7 -
. 15.16 10,40
Other Provisions
Mark Lo market provision on derivative instruments SH.60 74.34
Proposed Dividend 150.00 193.33
Tas On Proposed Dividend 30.54 32,86
Prevision for taxation - Net of advance tax paid of T 3,140,20 lakhs (March 31, 2014 . T 2,992 75 |akhs) 36.598
316.1R a00.53
Total short-term provisions 331.34 310.93
12 Fixed Assets:
Gross Block Depreciation & Amortisation Net Book Value
PFarticulars As at s at As at Forthe | Dwpasal/ Trarisfer to As at s at As at
. [ I
orpaape | MAdiens | Dsposal |4y 0g a0ys | 01.08-2018 period | Discard imirgs |31°03-2015 | 31-03-2015 | 31032014
la] Tangible Assets
Owin Assets @
Lease hiold Land G743 55743 2436 6,104 152 11.EE 525 55 533.07
Hoads 491.43 13498 - 505.41 EI a8.41 - 29.44 12842 376 9% 4bl.26
Buildings f,155.33 349 51 1470 65) B(,074.19 652.32 169,51 {23.21} 1.43 BOG 11 5,274.08 5,503.01
Plant and Machinary 11,032 66 B95 77 - 1192543 4,632.28 1061.82 - 123721 5,670.38 6,259.05 BADD3E
Furnitute & Fistures 439.01 446 1113.52] 370,95 105.26 4874 124.34) 132 13 a8 249 .47 3E3.75%
Oftice equipments 153.12 19.05 (1.04] 17113 3711 Ag.07 10.36| 17.00 101.82 £9.31 116.01
Computer Hardware 124.31 1200 141.31 H1.E4 28.37 0.4 111.03 938 LL K]
Withic s 153.1% 153.19 5343 21.89 0.4 N a7 EENIT
Tatal [a): 19,150 48 1,335.77 1585.21)] 1%,911.04 561681 1,452.71 |a7.61) 28.23 7,049 B4 12 861.20 | 13,543.67
1b] Intangible Assets
Own Assets
Camputer Saftware 199.13 13.2%9 21762 122.19 18,84 141.03 T6.549 TT.14
Copyrights 11.06 - 11.06 0.49 - - ] 1057 -
Total [b): 199.33 29.35 - 2IE.68 122.19 19.33 - - 141.52 H7.16 T7.14
Total [a+b):|  19,359.81 1,365.12 | (585.21)] 20,135.72 5,739.00 1,472.04 |47.51} 28.23 7,191.36 12,548.36 | 13,620.81
Prosdiogs Year: 13,443.26 1,1.20.60 1A04.06]]  19,350.81 4,524,268 1,244,427 129 68| - 5,739.00 13 620 B 11,9159.00
[e) Capital Work-in-
PTOEress
Factory Bui ging 8563 G012
Plant & Machinery L1247 313.12
Other Assets 9.5 15.34
Tatal [c): 60762 3EB.58
Total fixed assets (net| 13,555.98  14,009.39
(] Addition to fixed assets and capital work-in-progress includes exchange differerce ol 83,63 lgkhz (March 31, 2014 T 431 83 lakhs| arising an
rewitluatian of 1'-:1r|,'||.;." currency tesm leaan and PrNCIpal oniy Swap rupes [Dans ':PD'S.:I A% per amended A511 Inatified by Meiristry el Corporate .ﬁ.."f.'ul".]

(b} Additons during the year and capital work-in-progress include T 23.90 lakhs (March 31, 2004 T 15.74 lakhs| being borrowing cost capitalised.
lc) ‘nterest earnad on account of Princple anly SWAP [POS) lozn amounting to T 41.20 laks {March 31, 2014 T 50,64 Iakhs| has been reduced from the cost of
the respective assels
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(@) Im accordance with the provisions of 5chedule || of the Act, in case of fixed assets which have completed their useful life as at 1st april, 2014, the carrying value
[net of residual value) amounting to T 18,63 lakhs {net of deferred tax of T 9.60 lakhs) as a transitional provision has been recognised in the Retained Earnings
Surther, imocose of assels aceuired proor te 151 Apeil 2014, the carrying, witlue af asaels |net of resicual va |||~:l i depreciated over 1he reEmaning wseTul e as
determined etective Lst April, 2014
Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year would have been lower by & 231,47 lakhs, had the company continued with the previous assessment
of useful life of such assets
te) Vehicles include one car of the company acquored in the aame of Director,

As at Az at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

13 Mon-current Investments:

Long term investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwlise)

Trade Investment (unguoted)

Inwestment in subsidiaries:

50,000 [March 31, 2014 - 49,900) equity shares of T 10/ each fully paid up held in Grip Polymers Lid 1.0 1.00

Other Investments (unquoted)

129,000 (March 31, 2014 © 129,000 equity shares of T 10/- each fully paid up keld in Bharuch Eco-agqua Infrastructure Ltd 12.90 12.80
4,47 500 (March 31, 2014 292,500) equity shares of 10/~ each fully paid up held in Iris Ecopower Yenture Bt Ltd 4475 29.25
Total non-current investment 58.66 43,15

Curing the year the company has purchased 100 eguity shares representing 0.20 % ot the share of Grip Polymers Limited, a subsidiary company.
The said shares were acquired on 01-07-14 and consequent the sharehading ot GRP Limited in Grip Polymers Limited is increased 1o 100%

14 Long-term Loans and Advances: Asat As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Advances for Capital Expenditure 18.40 102.80
Other Advances & Deposits 27277 265.40
Prepaid Expenses 3.39 2.71
Laan ta Subsidiary company 45932 -
MAT credit entitlement 37259 432.90
Total lang-term loans and advances 713.57 803.81

Other advances & depaosits include deposit of  NIL(March 31, 2014 : F 1575 lakhs) with a company in which some of the directors are interested
Prepaid expenses include current maturity amount of £ 57,22 lakhs (March 31, 2014 3 59.04 lakhs) [refer note no. 20)
Considering the tuture profitzhility in the subsequent years, the company has recognised the “MAT credit entitlerment”

as an asset by crediting profit and loss account for an equivalent amount and disclosed under “Loans and Advances” in
accordance with the Guidance Mote on "Accounting for credit avallable in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax " issued by 1A

As at Asg at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

15 Other non-current assets:

Lang term Depasit with Bank [Maturity more than 12 months) - 2316
Tatal other non-current assets - 23.16
As at Asat

16 Current Investments:
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Unguoted
7 years National Savings Certificates (Deposited with Central Excise Suthornty) 0.08 0,08
Total current investments 0.08 0.08
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17 Inventories: Asat Az at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Stores and Spares 136.30 124.82
Packing Materials 40,04 45,30
Baw Materials [includes Rubber Scrap, Process oils and Chemicals) 134257 164872
Fuel materials 13.53 20,32
FMS Licence Stocks (at net realisable value) 1611 16,06
Goods-in-process 242,41 191.6%
Goods-in-transit id6.64 ELES
Finished Goods 226.93 ERL.O1
Total inventories 3,005.13 3.326.17
A5 at As at

F H
18 Trade Recelvables J1.03-2015 31.03-2014

Unsecured
Cutstanding far more than s maonths
Considered Good 10.86 906
Considered Doubtful 0.17 0.17
11.03 9.23
Less: Provizion for bad & doubthul debts 10.17] 10.47)
10.86 5.0&
Others
Considered Good (refer note ne, 20) 503740 458849
Total trade receivables 5,048.26 4,997.55
19 Cash & Bank Balance A& at it
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand B.56 B.76
Balance with banks
|a] In Current accounts 55.37 14.79
1k} Im Cash Credit accounts 36,32 54.74
1) In FEFC accounts 21,73 5087
1d} In deposit accounts (Maturity less than 3 months) - 594.21
|e] In earmarked accounts
Unclaimed dividend accounts (Refer Note belaw) 11,35 1173
Margin money deposits 12.37 .74
177.64 229.08
Total cash and bank balance 186.20 237.8B4
Notes:
There are na amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education anc Protection Fund as at 31-03-201%
20 Short-term Loans and Advances: Asat As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Advances recoverable in cash ar in kind 241,89 31389
Other Advances & Depaosits 1.18 149
Deposit with Central Excise 124,09 20328
Current maturity of Prepaid Expenses 57.22 52,04
Advance Income-tax & Wealth tax - Met of provisions 3,177 18 lokhs (March 31, 2014 - 3 2 945 82 [akhs) 4544
Total short-term leans and advances 424,38 626,14




GRP LIMITED GRP‘

IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 { T in lakh)
21 Other Current Assets: As at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Accrued Income 10&.B& 115,77
Receivable trom LIC [Gratuity claim) 6,15 12,14
Forex Forward Contract |MNet| 197.55 13,48
Total other current assets 310.56 145,39
27 Revenue: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2005 31-03-2014
il Safe of products
Manufactured goods 3263821 3145584
Less @ Excise duty 114801 1,125.2%
Total:  33,490.20 30,330.59
{1} Trading of Goods 2.55
liii) Power genarztion from Windmill B6.25 BE.B5
Total revenue 33,556.45 30,401.99
Manufactured Goods / Power Generation / Trading .
Reclaim Rubber 3253644 29,222.19
Funch & Split Products 575.50 63068
Thermo Plastic Elastomers 3fE.20 afrn
Trading of Goods 255
Power generabion fram Windmill B66.25 G885
L. Year ended Year ended
23 Other operating income: 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Fxpart incentives 390.54 43847
Bad debts recoversd 4.4
Other Sales 0.02 3840
Total ather operating income 390.56 477.16

Year ended Year ended
24 Dther income:

31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Interest received 14.39 17.07
Rent Income 22.36 10.80
MNet Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 669.43 175.20
Total other income 706.18 203.07
Year ended Year ended

25 Cost of material consumed: 31-03-2015 31-03-2004

Raw material consumed:

Opening inventaries 164873 1,644,449

Add : Purchases (including incidental expenses of ¥ 672.34 lakhs, March 31, 2014 : € 603 48 |akhs) 17,464.74 14,644.64

19,113.47 16,2849.13

Liess : Closing invenlories 1,342.57 1,644.73

Total cost of material consumed 17,770.50 14,640.40
la} Products consumed

Waste Aubber 10, 127.87 13,036.47

Process Oils 1,083.51 1,440.87

Other Qils and Chemicals 549,51 163,00

|k} Import and Indigenous consumptions 17,770.50 14,630.40

Imports 613.63 B2G6.28

% 3.45% .60

Ingigenous 17.157.27 13,814.12

5% 96.55% 94.30%

17,770.50 14,640.40

il



GRP LIMITED

GRP‘

IMPACT POSITIVE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 { T in lakh)
. i R . . Year ended Wear ended
26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 31-013-2015 21-03-2014
Stock st the end of the year:
Finished goods B26.93 88101
Gaads-in-transit (Finished Goads) 3B6.64 158.17
‘Work-in-progress 24241 191,69
Stock-in-trade
Stock at the beginning of the year: Total (4] 1,455.98 1,470.87
Finished goods ARL.0] 928.47
Goods-in-transit [Finishad Gaods) 39817 244 BE
Werk-n-progress 191.69 L7e7L
Stock-in-trade - 4,23
Total (B) 1,470.87 1,354.27
Increase [ {Decrease) In Stock Total {4 - B} {14.83) 116.60
Finished Goods
Reclzim Rubber 1,022.75 1,168.05
Punch & Split PFroducts 93.96 £3.92
Thierma Plastic Elastomers 2685 4722
1,213.56 1,279.19
Work-in-progress
. 242,41 191.69
Reclzim Rubher 242.91 191.69
Year ended Year ended
27 Employee Benefits expenses: 41.03.2015 31.03.2014
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,921.70 3,23227
Contrioution to Provident fund and Pension fund 168.21 141.52
Gratuity tund 3586 10.99)
Contribution to ather furds TL3H 70.45
Wellare and other benefits 146.61 100,48
Tatal emplayes benefits expenses 4,333,768 3,551.72

(a) The disclosure required as per the revised A5 15 is as under:
il Briet descripton of the plans,

The Company has various schemes for long term benefits such as provident fund , superannuation, gratuity and leave encashment. The Company s

defined contribution plans are Employees’ Provident fung and Pension Scheme (under the provision of the Employees’ Provident Fund and
Riscellanecus Frovisions Act, 1952) since the company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions

The emplayees of the company are also entitled to ‘eave encashment and gratuity which are defined bensfit plan.

{ii} Charge to the Profit and Loss Account based on Contributions

Prowident and Pension fund

1l The liability for leave encashment and compensated absences {unfunded) &s at year end is

Wear ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
168.21 14152

T 8031 lakhs {March 31, 2014 : T 33.89 lzkhs),

(b) Disclosure for defined benefit plan based on actuarial report as on 31-03-2015 As at A= at As at fsat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Leave Encashment Gratuity

Unfunded Funded

il Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Cpening defined benefit obligation 53.89 60.42 413.74 392.48
Interest cost 5.02 408 33.10 3140
Current service cost 2a.33 .92 41,51 41.34
Ranefits paid (21.23) (1.86) [19.15] (1177
Actuarial loss / |gain) 18.30 (20.78) 4.25 (39.71)
Clesing defined benefit obligaton 3031 53.89 475.45 413.74
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Ay at A at A at Ay at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Leave Encashment Gratuity
Unfunded Funded
1} Change in Fair Value of Assets
Cpening tair value of plan aszets - - “9E.20 1R7.33
Expected return an plar assels 45,00 3401
Cartributions oy employer - - 6.34 108.63
Benefits paid (19.15) 11177
Actuarizl gzin [/ (loss) - - -
Closieg far value of plan assels . - 530,39 498,20
[ili| Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet

Fair value ef plan assets as at beginning of the year 488,20 ip7.33
Actual return on plan assets - - 45,00 34.01
Cartributions L34 108,63
Benafits paid - - 119.15] 111.77)
Falr value of plan assets as at end of the year 530.38 49820
Furded status - - 154.94) |84.46)

Excess of Actual over estimated return on plan assets .

{iv) Mctuarial (gain] / loss recognized
Actuanal (gain] § less for the gear - plan assets
Actuarizl (gain] / loss on chligations 18.30 |20.78) 4.5 1389.71)
Actuanal (gain] / loss secognized in the year 1B.30 {20.73) 4,25 (39,71}
v Amount to be recognized in the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss accounts
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year BO.31 5389 47545 41374
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - - 530.39 A98.20
Funded status
Met (Aszets) [ Lighilifes recognized in the Balance Sheet a0.31 53.89 (54.94) |84.48)
Current servce cost 24.31 30.92 4351 41.34
Interest cost 5.02 4098 3310 31.40
Ewpected return on plan assets 145.00] 13401}
Met Actuarial (gain] / loss recognised in the year 18.30 [200.78) .75 [39.71)
Experses recogrised in the statement of Profit & Loss account 47.65 15.13 35.86 {0.99}
(wi} Actuarial Assumphions
Discount Rate 7.906% 9.31% 83.00% B.00%
Salary Escalation L.00%, £.00% 500 5.00%
A5 at As at A5 at Az at A at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014 31-03-2013 31-03-2012 31-03-2011
Met asset [/ liability recognised in the Balance Sheet
[,l__r.‘lT_lllr',l
Defined benetit obligation 47545 413.74 3n2.48 334.67 276.10
Plan Assats 530,39 40820 6?32 354,47 179,28
Deticit / (Surplus) 154.94) [84.45) 15.18 {19.80) {3.18)
28 Finance cost: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Interest on Term & Working Capital Loans 423 68 593,78
Interest on Other Loans 5.04 25.13
Financial Charges .18 F.07
Total inance cost 495,90 695,98
29 Depreciation and Amortization expensas: Year anded Yaer anded
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Depreciation on Tangible Assets LA52.70 1,220.45
Deprecation on Intangible Assets 1% .34 115!
Total depreciation and amaortization expenses 1,472.04 1,244.42
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30 Other expenses: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Manufacturing Expenses

Facking Material consumed B13.55 772.53
Stores and Spare Parts Consurmed A30.b6 4159 HE
Fower, Fuel & Water Consumed:-
Power Consumption 3,570.21 3.310.76
Fusl Cansumption E92.61 001.08
Water Consumption 44,51 43687
Repairs & Maintenance Fxpensss.-
Plant & Machinaries 237.30 250.86
Factory Buildings 2B.31 1487
Sales & Distribution expenses 6,017.15 5,713.70
Ocean Freight 1,485.41 1,597.38
Marine Insurance b.83 b.a0
Export clearing and Other charges 43267 417 02
Lacal freight & (ther charges A15.21 499,24
Other Selling and Distribution expenses 89.23 129.04
Administration & Dther Expenses 2,629.35 2,665.08
Insurance 51.30 57.14
Vehicle Expenzes 8a.14 77.33
Frinting & Sationery 3502 1149
Advertisements 14.61 1537
Rent, Lease Aent & Other Charges 2826 2860
Repairs to Other Assats 44 .58 5160
Aetainer fees, Legal fees & Prof charges 159,42 14331
Travelling & Conveyance 172.37 13373
Postage, Telegram & Telephones 56.94 A4 0
Provisicn for Doubtful Debts 017
Fayment to Auditors:
Audit fee 1.00 6.00
Tax Audit tee 2.25 1.50
Taxation matters and other expenses 5.BG 2.26
Reimbursement of expenses 0.1 .20
Board Meeting Fees g 5.83
Commizsion to Director 12.00 20.75
Charity and donatian 0.02 3265
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 5596 -
Factory / Dffice Expenses 43.49 35.13
Office slectricity expenses 15.02 1867
Other Expenses 138,08 146 38
Loss on Sale of Assets [/ Assets Discarded / Impairment 0.53 Rh.47
Variation in CED on Stock of finished goods {1B.62} |7.37)
928.20 907.22
Total ather expenses 9,574.71 9,290,00
31 Contingent Liabilities and commitments {to the extend not provided for) As As
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
(@) Guaranteed by Banks nol provided for {Net 26690 26793
{b] Letter of Credit 16,60
It] Claims against the company (Including 5ales tax, Excise duty, etc.) not acknowledged as dehis
- Maharashtra Sales Tax 0.74 0.52
Excise Duly B Service Tax 196,31 16840
Income Tax hailitg 63577 69,00
1d] Fstimatad amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 3548 7537
le) Employees dues not provided for 0.25
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. B at As at
32 Disclasure in respect of Lease 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
QOperating Lease
The company has entered into leaze agreement for four vebicles taken on operating lezse for a term of 48 months,
The future minimum lease payments snder non cancellable operating lease are as unger
(] Mot later than 1 year 16,15 1327
0] Later tnan 1 year but not later than 5 years 24.37 31.21
|cl Later tham 5 years
33 Related parties disclosure : Asat Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
A) Relationships
1} Subsidiary Company
Grig Pelymers Lid
(100 % af tatal sharehaldings held by the GRP Lid. |
!} Key Managerial Personnel
Aajandra ¥ Gandhi; Managing Directar
Harsh R Gandhi; Executve Director
Ganesh A Ghangurde; President, Chie! Financial Officer & Company Secretary
1) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel and Entities ower which significant influence is exercised by key management
personnel or their relatives and with whom transactions have taken place in the ordinary course of business
Mayna B, Gandh, Harsh B, Gand®i, Hemal . Gandhi, Yaishall B, Gandki, Nehal B Gandhi, Mahesh . Gandhi, Harish V. Gandhi,
Mrudula | Shah, Rekha & Kothar, Desyani © Taha, warsha W Shah, Chandska & KEumbhani and Anant G Ghangurde
Rajendra V. Gandhe HUF (Rajendra WV, Gandhi is Kartal
Aarav Trust (Rajencra V. Gandhi & Harsh R, Gandhni are the Trustees|
Aayush & Aashni Trust (Rajerdra V. Ganchi & Harsh B, Gandhi zre the Trustees)
Mehal Trust (Rajendra V. Gandhi & Harsh B Gandhi are the Trustees)
- Harsh R, Gandhi HUF {Harsk B Gandhi s Karta),
Enarjee Consultancy & Trading Company LL® {Rajendra V. Gandhi & Harsh B, Gandhi are the Designated Partners)
Industrial Development and Investment Co, Pyt Ltd. [Rajendra v, Gandhi s Director)
Ghatkopar Estate B Finance Corporation Pvt, Ltd. |Rajenara V. Gandhi is Director)
Alpnanso Metsecure Pyt. Lid. (Harsh R, Gandhi and Ganezh A. Ghangurde are the Directors)
B} Related Parties Transactions
As ot A an

1) Summary of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business
A} Subsidiary Company:

Loan giver & Qutstanding 45,92

Interest charged and outstanding 1.00

Sharehalding as on 31032015 1.0
B} Key Management Personnel

Remunaration paid 273.57

Dividend paid 11.62
C} Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel and Entities over which significant influence is

exercised by key management personnel or their relatives,
Burchaze of ponds & Services

Remuneration paid b.12
Sitting Fees Paid 0,75
Diwidend paid 52.83
Interest pad 0,79
Hent paid 0.18
Depnsit repaid D]

Deposit outstanding payanls
Ceposit cutstanding receivable

LoD

16.27
559
.75

61.65

10.34
0.54
6.00

r1.25

15,73

70



GRP LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015

2] Summary of transactions with related parties other than ordinary transactions

Sale of Flat
Sale of Furniture

type with the related parties during the year

1 Purchase of Goods & Services
Alphanso Netsecure Private Limited

2 Remuneration Paid
Rajendra W Gandhi
Harsh & Gandhi
Gamesh & Ghangurde

3 Sitting Fees Paid
Mahesh vV Gandhi

4 Dividend paid
Harsh B Gandhi
Mahesh v Gandhi
Rajendra W Gandhi HUF
Enarjee Consultancy & Trading Comparny LLP

5 Interest paid
Nehal B Gandbi
Bayushl & aashne Trust
faraw Trust
Nehal Trust

& Rent paid

ndustnal Developrment and Investment Co. Pyt Lig.

7 Depaosit repaid
Nehal R Gandhi
Aayushi B Aashni Trust
faraw Trust
Mehal Trust

B Deposit outstanding payable
Nehal B Gandhi
Aayushi & Aashni Trust
Aarav Trust
MNehal Trust

9 Deposit outstanding receivable

Industrial Development and Investment Cao, Pet Lid,

10 5ale of Flat
Rajendra ¥ Gandhi

11 Sale of Furniture
fajerdra ¥ Gandhi

&00.00
65.00

C} Disclosure in respect of transactions which are more than 10% of the total transactions of the same

B2.37
119.28
7153

.34
10.73
G.TE
8.30

0.09
0.1z
010
0.17

018

8.50
11,540
10,00
17.00

£00.00

GRP‘
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(T in lakh)

16.27

95.90
BD.40
55.21

543
12.77
771
14.60

1.23
144
148
2.13

0.54

B.50
1150
1000
17.00
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3 Ais at Ax at
34 Research B Development Expenditure; 11632015 11033014
Accounting for Research & Development expenditure incurred
l#} Capital Expenditure incurred on Equipments & Macrinery (includes ¥ 38 .98 lakhs Capital work in progress
of last year now capitallsed) aN1.7E 225.11
(b) Capital Expenditure incurred on Buildings, Furniture & office eguipments 327.893 -
(c) Capital Waork in Progress 704 38,38
(d) Aevenue Expenditure incurred towards the RED Projects 117.10 75.62
The sales income of T 037 lakhs from sale of Pilot zlant trial material has been included in Sales revenue and sbove expenditure
5 debited to respective head of accounts.
. s at Asar
35 Segment Reporting : 31.03.3015 31.03.2014
Sagment reporming &5 required Dy Accounting Standard 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.
1 Segment Revenus
a) Heclaim Rubber (Met of Bacise Duty) * 33,111.54 29, 85287
bl Power 6625 6385
| Oekress ** I7R.IE 4R0.2&
ket Segment Revenue 33,556.45 30,401,948
® Aechm Rubber incluces crumb rutber, punch & split products
** Others incledes Thermo #lastc Elastomers & Tracing Goods
Z  Segment Results Profit[+} / Loss|-) before Tax and Interest
from pach segment)
a) Heclarm Rubber 2,571.4E 3.57b.54
bl Power 3621 26.18
| Others {302.20) [ECEA
Sub Total 2,305.3% 3,552.83
Less: Interest, Lin-allocable expenditure & Un-allocable income (et of expenses| 1,203.24 177654
Profit Before Tax & Extra Ordinary Item 1.102.15 1,776.2%
wess Extra Ordinary Item
Profit Before Tax 1.102.15 1,776.2%
frowision tor Tanation:
Ineame Tas 20050 797,65
- Deferrad Tax (75.56) 396.01
Profit Aftor Tax BAE.51 1,082.5%
3 Other Information
| SeEmMENt Assets
.4:1 Rerclaem Rubiber 13,787 70 NE12 13
b Power 26847 ZB6.6%
c| Others 1.153 BB BOR.OG
d| Un-allacated Assets 2. H08.91 2.516.98
a) Tota 23,518.76 14,221,086
| Segment Liabilities
a) Recfaim Rugber A870.60 &.658.77
k] Poowrsr 106 B2.G6
c| Others YE.OE Bigd
d| Un-allocated Liakylities 1.201 538 GBGRT.AE
a) Tota 12.271.72 13,662.43
I'l Capital Expenditure [Including Capital Work in Progress)
al Recliaim Rulbes 1.826.E3 1,112,328
bl Power 0.14 B.90
c] Qehers 407 66 321.4%
d| Unallocable 29.E3 bl
2] Total 1,954.45 1,509.18
IV Depreciation
a) Reclaim Ruober 1.284.63 1.101.82
B Powier 14 60 27.22
c| Others G0AE 21.12
d| Linallocatle 112.23 G426
a) Total 1,472.03 1,244,472
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W MNon Cash Expenditure other than Depreciation
a} Reclaim Rubbar 053 Bl.a7
bl Pevdwes
) Cthers .17
di Unallocakie 4.75
&) Total 0.53 H5.59
4 Information about Secondary Segments
1) Revenue B Sundry Debtors 25 per Geographical Markets
Revenun Trade Recewable
Particulars 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
India 941138 9.230.238 1,6131.58 1.371.64
Cutside india 2412507 21,181.71 3,434 36 3,125.91
Total 33,556.45 30,401.99 5.048.26 4,997.55
{11} The Company has commaon fiked assets for producing poods for Domestic Market and Overseas Market. Hence separate figures for fisad assets
additions to fiaed assets cannot be turnished
36 Corporate Social Responsikility Expenditure : As at A at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
a} Gross amount requires o be spent by the company during the year 55.50
b} Amount Spent during the year on
Yet to be
In cash pald in Tatal
gash
i} Comstructon/acguisition of any asset
i} On purposes other than |i| above 5598 53.96
As at Asat
37 Expenses { Earnings in forelgn currency: 11032015 31032014
{1} Haw Material AENX] Hih 78
i} Capital Goods 191.21 19.50
[Hi}) Expenditure in foreign curmency LE I 902 64
(v} Earning in toreign exchange 'n respect of Export of Goods | F.OB. value ) 22,585,561 15,708.42
i . Asat As at
38 Foreign currency exposures: - 11032015 31.03.2014
|a) Foreign currency exposures that are hedged as at 31st March (armount in Foreign
Forwarsd contracts . ':;_,'-_',L:E"_:E'."..I."'.I.u. EE‘IL
usD 30.00 200 1,879.30 119,08
EURD 29,00 1.50 1,952.57 135 HE
As at As at As at Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-3014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
b} Foreigm currency exposures that are not hedged as at 31st March tamount in Foregn
Total Receivables includes sales proceedings Currency |in lakh)|
UsD 387 24.55 130.13 1,463.15
EURD 19.42] 18.23 (B2 1,4B4.65
GRP 047 0.32 4278 3159
Tatal Payables includes imports, bank loans and interest payments
UsD 53.00 67.43 3,320.21 4,042.10
EURD 27.00 30,35 1,517.594 2,507 44
GBEF 0.63 £3.24
3% Earnings per share : As at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Net Profit atter tax for the year 4571 1082.1%
Excess Provision for tax for earlier years 5E.90 10.At)
Net Protit attributable to Equity Shareholders BBB.B1 L,0B2.60
Number of equity shares of ¥ 10/- each. 1,333,333 1,333,333
Earnings per share - Basic bia.51 Bl.20
Earnings per share -Diluted G051 Bl.20
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Other Notes

40 During the year @ sum of US0 6.38 lakhs equivalent to T 358,98 lakhs oeing recevable from & debtor nas been remitted away by the customer 1o an account
other than that of tne company by fraudulent m2ans The company nas lodged & FIR with Police department and has also taken up the matmsr with the

customer, and 15 hopeful of recovesing full amount, tence e same 15 net treated as doabiful ang noe provision s made s the aceounts for the same

41 The comzany has gaid commission 1o an independent Mon Executive Director which is mere by 1 lakh than 1% of net profit and the same has been recovered
fram him during the current Financial Year

42 Excepronal items represents prohit on sale of residential flat meludging furniture and Hetures o the Managing Director of the company
43 Expenses debited to Profit & Loss account include prior period expenses ¥ 33,32 lakns (March 31, 2014 : T 14 71 lakhs)
44 Closing stock of Finished Goods include excise duty of T 8214 lakhs |March 31, 2014 - T 30,78 lakhs|

A5 In the apinlon of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are agprosimately of the value states, f realised, in the ord nary course of the
business The provision Tor deprecation and for all known liabitities s sdeguate and not in escess of the amount reasonably necessary

&6 Previous period Hgures tave heen regrouged and recast wherever necessiry to conform te Lthe current wear classihication

I'he accomaanying notes are an integral part of the firancial statemants Forand on behalf of the doard of Directors
A5 per our Report of sven date

For A. 8, Modi & Associates Rajendra W Gandhi
Chartered Accountants Managing Directar
ICAN Firm Begistration no, 106473W

Harsh K Gandhi
Rajesh 5. Shah Fupcutive Director
Partner
Membership no, 01 7E44

Ganesh A Ghangurde

President % Chied Financial Ofhcer &
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumizai
Date . 30th May, 2015 Date : 30th May, 201%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Members of GRP LIMITED

Report aon the Consolidated Financial Statements

1]

We have audited the accompanying consalidated financial statements of GRP Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
'Company'}, and its subsidiary and jointly controlled entity  (hereinafter referred to as the "‘Group'], to the attached consolidated
finanacial statement which comprising of the Consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and ather explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 'the consalidated financial statements’].

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

2)

The Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the matters stated in Section L34 (5) of the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act')
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated fnancial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial perfermance and  cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Aule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance af
adequate accounting records in accordance policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a tree and fairview and are free fram material misstatement, whether due ta fravd or errar,

Auditors' Respaosibility

3] Cur responsibilityis to expresz anapirion on these consolidated financial staternents based on cur audit.

q) While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,

5] We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasorable assurance
aboutwhether the consolidated financial statements ara free fram material misstatement,

3] An audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The grocedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the conselidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making these risk
assessments, the auditor considers imternal financial control relevant to the Compary's preparation of the consalidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Aoad of Diractors, a5 well as evaluating the overall presentation of the conselidated financial staternents,

7 We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in COther Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis tor our audit opinion on the
consalidated financial statermants.

] Wi believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion an the
consalidated financial statements,

Opinion

%)

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prapared by the Company's Management in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standard (A%) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements, Accounting Standard [A5) 27 -
Financial Reparting of Interests in loint Ventures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
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(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

10} In our opinian and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and bazed on the consideration
of the reports of other auditars an the financial statements of jointly contralled entity as noted below, the aforesaid consolidated
financizl statements give the information reguired by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles penerally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 315t
March, 2015, and theircansolidated profit and their consclidated cash flows for the year ended an that date

Emphasis of Matters
111 We draw your attention to Note no.34% in the Nates to the financial statements in respect of Fraud occured during the year on the
Company

Qurreportis not qualified / madified in respect of this matter,

Other Matters

171 We did not audit the financial statements of jomtly controlled entity included in the consolidated fnancizl statements whose
financial statements reflact total assets of Rs.94.44 lacs and net assets of Rs.93.83 lacs  as at 31st March, 2015, total revenues
of Rs.Nil and net cash flows amounting to Rs.Mil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements, These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinian an the consolidzted financial staterments, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect af this jointly contralled entity and our report in terms Section 143(11)03) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
afaresaid jointly controlled entity is based solely on the reports of the ather auditors.

Cur Opinianis not qualified inrespect of this matter.

A B. Modi & Associates
Chartered Accountant
Firm Registration No: 10647 3W

Rajesh 5. Shah
Place: Mumbai Partner
Dare:30th May, 2015 Membership Ko 017844
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET A5 AT 315T MARCH, 2015

| Tin lakh)
As at As at
MNote 31-03-2015 31-02-2014
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' funds
Share capital ? 133.33 133.33
Reserves and surplus 3 11,141.25 10,453.1%
Mon-current Liabilities 11,274.58 10,586.52
Lang term borrowings 4 1,046.19 2,420.80
Deferred tax lizbilites {net) 5 2,394,649 247984
Other long term liahilities B 10.00 10.00
Long term provisions 7 130.54 16426
Current Liabilities 3,581.42 5,075.45
Shart term barrowings B 4,240.11 4,519.91
Trade payables g 2,035.31 187783
Other currant liabilities 10 1,8659.46 1,869 44
Short term provisions 11 331.27 310.53
8,476.15 8,578.21
Minaority Interest 0.06
Total Equity & Liabilities 23,332.15 24,240.28
Assets
MNon-current assets
Fizad assets
- Tangible assets 12 12,890.55 13,543.67
Intangible assets 12 2716 77.14
- Capital work-in-progress 12 10,96 ELLRT
Man current investments 13 58.50 43.00
Leng term loans and advances 14 GE7. 6L BO3.26
Other nan current assets 15 1.42 2316
Current Assets 14,316.20 14,879.41
Current investments 16 0.08 .08
Inventories 17 3,005.13 3,326.17
Trade receivaliles 18 5,048.26 4,557.55
Cash & Bank Balances 15 218,48 264,85
Short term loans and advances 20 431.02 B26.86
Other current assets 21 31258 145.32
9,015.95 9,360.87
Total Assets 23,332.15 24,240.28
Significant Accounting policies and Motes on Financial Statements 1-46
The accompanying notes are an integral part ot the financizl statements Faor and on behalt of the Board ot Directors

& per aur Report of even date . _
P » Rajendra V Gandhi

For A. B. Modi & Associates Managing Director
harterec ; ;
iL‘TFrE\1|;hEFDlln:1nti Lo ra Harsh R Gandhi
i Reglsiranon no ' Executive Director

Rajesh 5. Shah Ganesh A Ghangurde

Partmer Prosident & Chief Financial Officer &
Membership no, 017344 Company Secretary

Place : Mumba: Place : Mumban

Date : 30th May, 2015 Date - A0th May, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LO55 FOR YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015

{2 in lakhl

{Tin lakh}

Year ended Year ended
Note 31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Revenue :
Grass Sales 22 34,704 46 31,527.24
Less: Excise cuty 1,145.01 1,125.25
Met Szales 33,556.45 30.401.9%
Other operating income 23 390.56 477.16
Rewvenue from operations [net) 3394701 30,872.15
Other income 24 707.73 20561
Total revenue 34,654.74 31,084.76

Expenses :
Cast of materials consumed 25 17,770.90 1464040
Purchases of stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventories af finished goods, work-in-progress and stack-in-trade 26 14.89 {116.60)
Employee benefits expenses 27 434376 355171
Finance costs 28 49591 G655.98
Depreciation and amertization expensas 29 1,472.04 1,244.42
Other expenses 30 457531 9,.290.42
Total expenses 33,672.81 29,306.33
Profit before excephonal and extraordinary items and tax 981.93 1,778.43
Add: Exceptional items a1 13116 -
Frofit before extraordinary items and tax 1,143.09 1,778.43

Extracrdinary items
Profit before tax 1,103.09 1,778.43

Minority Interest - -
Tax expense

Current tax 232.52 37534
Mat credit entitlemeant 0.05 {76.71)
Deferred tax [75.56) 186,01
Excess / (shart) provision of earlier years 58490 10,79}
Profit (Loss) for the period 887.18 1,084.58
Earnings per equity share | of T 10/- each) 3B

(1} Basic 6654 81.34
(2} Diluted fi6.54 8134
Significant Accounting policies and Notes an Financial Statements 1-46

The accompanying notes are &n integral part of the financial statements Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

As per our Report of even date

For A. B. Madi & Associates Rajendra V Gandhi
Chartered Accountants Managing Directar
ICAI Firm Registration no. 106473W

Harsh R Gandhi

Rajesh 5. Shah Executive Director
Partnier
hMembership no, 017844 Ganesh & Ghangurde

President & Chief Financial Oficer &

Company Secretary

Place - Mumbai Place : Mumkbai
Date : 30th May, 2015 Date : 30th May, 2015
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2015

[T in lakh)
Year ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
A Cash flow from Operating activities
Net protit before tax and extra ordinary items 1.103.09 L77E.43
Adjustmants for
Dapreciaton 1,477,024 1,744,437
(Profit) § Loss on sale of assets |Net) (1700 64 EE.42
Wealth bas provision 0,50 5.82
nterest (Met) 415,85 587,95
Aent received {22.36| 110,80
Dot end teceived {011} 1n.33)
Facess / Short Provision for earlien years o1y
) ) ) 1,745.59 1,923.49
ﬂp.emhni Profit before working capital changes 2 8868 370192
Adjustmants for
- lincrease)/Decrease in Trade ana other receivables 1128.15] [323.14)
Dnerease ) Decrease it Inyentores 32103 192,631
- increase/[Decraase) in Trade payable 29570 123.92
488,58 1291.89)
Cash generated from operations 3,337.27 3,410.03
Diract taxes pad 11417 [579.43)
Net cash from operating activities 3,158.09 1,830.60
B Cash Now from investing activities
Intergst recaived 1B8.50 15.33
Sale proceeds of fixed assets 660.23 B7.97
- Rent received 7136 10080
Dwidend Income 011 0.33
inwestment in Flaed Deposit 20,97 | 14.08]
- Investmants {15.51| 125.15]
Furchase of fixed assets 11,544 21 |1ATD.H5]
Net cash used in investing activitics |B37.56) {1,395.66)
€ Cash flow from financing activities
- Loans borrowed (Met of repaymeant) 13, 73000 |5IB.83)
- Interest paid [EEER] [BIE. 18]
Dwvicend paid 1193.71] (220,371
Net cash used in financing activities 12,367.71] {1,377.36)
Net increase [ (Decrease] in cash and cash eguivalents [47.18] 57.5E
Cacsh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 138.78 181.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the period 191,60 233.78
Cash and Bank Balances
A Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand B.&1 BB
Ralance with banks
la] In Current accownts 100,72 15.74
|I:|:| I Casly Credit accounts in32 54,74
lel I EEFC accounts 21.73 50.87
|d} In deposit accounts |Refer Note below] - 9420
el In earmarked accounts 24,22 14.47
151.60 234.78
B Other Bank Balance [maturity above 3 months) 1B.30 15.27
215,90 1848.05
Tne accomzanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements For and on bahalf of the Board of Diractors
A5 por our Report of even date
. Rajendra W Gandhl
For A, B. Modl & Associates Panaging Director
Chartered Accountanls
ICAl Firm Registracon no. 106473W Harsh & Gandhi
Rajesh 5. Shah Executive Director
Partner Ganesh A Ghangurde
Wembership no. 017844 President & Chief Fingncial Officer &
Company Sacretany
Place - BMumbai Place ; Murmba
Date : 30th May, 2015 Date : 30th May, 2015
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Amounts in the financial statements are presented in a Lakhs, except for pershare data and as otherwise stated. Certain amounts that are required to
be disclosed and do not apgear due to rounding off, are detailed innote .

1

{al
{a)

{8}
il

i)

i)

(b)
A

(8)

©

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements present the consolidated accounts of GRP Limited with s following Subsidiary and
Iinthy controlled entity. Companies considered inthe consalidated financial statements are :

Mame of the Company Country of Incorporation Proportion of Ownership Interest
Grip Polymers Limited (Subsidiary) India 100.00%
Gripsurya Recycling LLP (Jointly cantrolled entity of Subsidiary) India 50.00%

Principles of consolidation :

The firancial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary have been consolidated on a line - by - lIine basis by adding
together, the bock values of like items of assets, liabilities, incame and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances,
intra-group transactions and the unrealised profits,

The financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary have been consalidated using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other eventsin similar circumstances.

The excess of parent company's share of eguity in the subsidiary over the cost of its investments in subsidiary, on the acquisition
date, is recognised inthe financial statements as capital reserve.

The financial statements of the company and its jointly controlled entities of its subsidiary are cambined on praportionate
consalidation method an line - by - line basis adding together the book values of like items of zssets, labilites, income and
expenses, after fully eliminating inter group balances and intragroup transaction,

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of accounting :

The financial statements are prepared n accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) under the histarical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory Accountng Standards as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies &ct, 2013 {"Act'}) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (&ccounts) Rules, 2014 and
the pravisions of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are
consstent with those used in the previous yaar escept whare a newly issued accounting standard s initially adapted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. All the assets and lahilites have
been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's narmal operating cycle and other criteria set-out in Schedule 11l to
the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and the
realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the company has ascertained its operating cycle fess than 12 months.

Accounting Estimates ;

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accountng principles {GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure aof
contingent liabilittes on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any difference
hetween the actual result and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / matenalsed. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectivaly in current and future periods

Fixed assets & Depreciation :

Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cast, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmeant lossas, of any, The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable to cost of bringing the asset to its
working conditian for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price

Subseguent expenditure related Lo an item af fized assel is added 1o its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the
eaisting assel beyand s previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing fiked assets, including
day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cast of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the
period during which such expenses are incurred.
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Exchange wariation arising from repayment / restatement of the long term debts / borrowings in foreign currencies for acquisition
of fixed assets is capitalised in terms ot the option exercised by the company as per the MCA circular Motfication no. G.5.R.378
(E) dated 11th May, 2011 and further amended by pursuant to circular no. 25 / 2012 dated 9th August, 2012 issued by Ministry of
Corparate Affar,

Gains or lpsses arising from derecognition of fiked assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recagnizedin the statement af prafit and lass when the asset is derecognized.

{ii}

i}

(o)

(E)

{F)

(G)

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation an fixed assets is provided on straight line method for the period for which the assets have bean used a5 under:

1] Depreciationon assetsis provided over the useful life of assets as prescribed under schedule | of Companies Act, 2013,

2] Effective 1st April, 2024, the company depreciates its fised assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule 1
of the Act, as against the earlier practice of depreciating at the rates prescribed in schedule XV of the Companies Act 1956,

3] Plant & machinery which have worked for mare than single shift, depreciabon is provided for accordingly as per rate
prescribedin schedule Il of the Companies &ct, 2013,

4] Leasehold land is amortized over the pericd of lease,

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of zccumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any
Intangiole assets are amortzed on 3 straight line basis over their estmated useful lives The amortisation period and the
amaortisation method are reviewed at least at each Bnancial year end. IF the expected useful [fe of the asset is significantly
different from previous estimates, the amartisation period s changed accordingly, Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference betwesn the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaount of
the asset and recognized as income ar expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The amortisabon rates used are -

Asset Period of Amortization
Computer Software Gyears

Copyrights 10years

Impairment of Assets

A oasset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to
the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset |s identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior
accounting period 15 reversed if there has been achange in the estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualified assets are capitalized as part of the
cost af the respective asset. The borrowing cost eligible for capitalization is being netted off against any income arising on
temporary investment of those borrowings, All ather borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the pariod in which they are
incurred

Government Grants and Subsidy :
Special capital incentive and subsidy received from the government for setbing up or expansian of an industrial undertaking in
undeveloped ares of state, 15 cradited 1o Special capitalincentive and subsidy account under Capital Reserve Account

Investments:
Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investmeants are made, are classified as current investmants, All ather investments are classified as lang-lerm investments

Lang term investments are carried at cost. However provision for diminution is made to recognize 2 decling, other than
temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually. Current
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iv)

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 [ Tin lakh)

investmants are valued at cost or market value whichaver is lower

Taxes:

Pravision for tax is made for both carrent and deferred taxes. Provisions for current income tax (incluging Wealth tax) is made at
current tax rates based on assessable incomefwealth, The Company pravides for deferred tax based an the tax effect of tming
difference resulting from the recogrition of items in the financial statement and in estimating its current tax provision. Deferred tax
assets are recognized if there is a reasonable certainty of realisation. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is
recognized inthe Profit & Loss Accountin the period inwhich it has been epacted.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit entitlement is recognised in accordance with the Guidance Note on "Accounting for credit

available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961" issued by ICAl MAT credit is recognised as an
aszet only when and to the oxtent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. At each balance sheet date the company re-assesses MAT credit assets to the extent they become reasonably certain or
virtually certain of realisation, as the case may be and ad|usts the same accordingly,

Inventories:

ltems of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value afwer providing for obselescence | if any. Cost aof
Inventaries comprises of cost of purchase | cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective
present location and condition . Cost of raw materials, stores & spares, packing materials are determined on weighted average
basis. However raw materials are written down to realisanle value anly if the cost of the refated finished goods is nat expectad to
recover the cost of raw materials,

Wark in - progress and finished goods are valued at  lower of cost and net realisable value. Cast of work in progress and finished
poods is determined on absarption costing method which include cast of conversion and ather costs incurred in bringing the
inyentaries to ther present location and condition, Excise dutyis included in the value of finished goods.

Income f Expenses Recognition :

Damestic Sales are recognized on dispaich of goods from factory and Export Sales an transfer of significant risk & rewards of
ownership of such goods, Sales are disclosed nel of sales tax / Value added tax, discounts and sales return as applicable,

Incamea from Power generation is accaunted on the hasis of certification of Gujarat Electricity Development Autharity,

Commission expenses on sales (other than cansignment sales) is accounted on realisation of sales proceeds and commission
onconsignment sales is accounted an receipt of statement of consignment sale.

Rentals and all ather expenses inrespect of leased assets are treated as revenue expenditura.

The company accounts for excise duly rebata, duty entitlements and focus benefits on exparts an accrual basis,

Interest incomea is recagnized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established

Foreign currency & derivative transactions:

Transactons denaominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Fareign currency monetary items are restated at the rate as of the cate of Balance Sheet.

I case of forward contracts with underlying assets or liabilities, the difference betwean the forward rate and the exchange rata on
the date of inception of a forward cantract is recogrised as incoms or expense and s amortised aver the life of the contract.
Exchange differences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. Any
profit ar lgss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recagnised as income or expense far the
period. The objective of these derivative instruments is to reduce the risk or cost to the company and is not intended for trading or
speculation purposes.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation 15 recagnized in the profit and
loss account except in case of long term lighilities, where they relate to acquisition of fiked assets, in which case they are adjusted
to the carrying cost of such assets in line with notification gated 11th May, 2011 and further amended and issued by Ministry of
Carporate Affairs,

Exposure an account of Crass Currency swaps entered into by the company s accounted on basis of mark to market loses, ifary,
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Employees Benefits :

Long Term Employee Benefits:

Defined Contribution Plans :

Provident Fund

The company makes contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952, which 15 a defined contribution plan and contribution paid or payable s recognized as an expense in the
periad inwhich services are rendered by the employes.

Defined Benefit Plans :

Gratuity

The company has 2 defined benefit employes retirement scheme in the farm of gratuity trust. The Trustees of the scheme have
entrusted the administration of the related fund to the Life Insurance Corporation af India (LIC), Charge for the year is determined
on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the balance sheet Actuarial Gains /
Losses, it any are recognised in the statement of profit & loss. Contributions were deposited with the LIC based on intimation
received by the caompany.

Leave Encashment

Provision forleave encashment , which is a defined benefit , is made based an actuarial valuation done by an independent

agency of notified actuaries by using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial Gains [/ Losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of profit & loss

Superannuation

The Company has Superannuation Plan for its executives - @ defined contribution plan. The Caompany makes annual contribution
of the covered employees' salary, subject to maximum of a 1 lakh per employee, tor the executive opting for the benefit. The plan
is managed by a Trust and the funds are invested with Life Insurance Corporation of India under its Group Superannuaticn
Scheme, Annual contributions as specfied under the Trust deed are paid  to the Life Insurance Corporation of India and
recogrised as an expense of the yearinwhich the habelity is incurred,

Short Term Employee Benefits :
Expense in respect of other short term benefits s recagnized an the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during
which services are rendarad by the employes

(M) Lease:

{n}

(o)

(P

Lease agreements where the risk & rewards, incicents to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor are
recognised as operating leasa, Lease rent under operating lease are recognised in the profit & loss statement on straight line
basis

Research & Development:
Capital Expenciture for Research & Development is capitalised when commissioned and included in the fixed assets. Revenue
expenditure on Research & Development is charged in the period inwhichitisincurred.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ;

Provisions involved substantial degree of estmation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that there will be an cutflow of rescurces. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but are
disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are nether recognized nor disclosed in the iinancial statements.

Earning per Share:

The company reports basic and diluted earning per share (EP%) in accordance with the Accounting Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies |Accounts) RBules, 2014, The Basic EPS has been
computed by dividing the income available to eguity shareholders by the weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding
during the accounting year, The diluted EPS has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and
dilutive potential equity shares autstanding during the end of the vear,
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(Q) Segmentreporting:

{R]

Identification of segments

The campany's operating businesses are orgarized and mapaged separately according to the nature of products and services
pravided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets,
The analysis of geographical segments s based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the company operate.

Allocation of common costs
Common allocable casts are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each segment to the total
comman cosks

Unallocated items
Urallocateditemsinclude general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segment

Segment accounting policies
The company prepares its segment infarmation in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the company as a whale.

Cash and cash equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash-flow statement comprizse cash at bank and in hand and short-term
investmants with an original maturity of three months or less
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 (% in lakh)
" A% at As at
I:
2 Share Capita 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Authorized

1,500,000 (March 31, 2014 - 1,500,000) equity shares of T 10 each 150.00 150.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
1,333,333 (March 31, 2014 - 1,333,333) Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid-up 13332 133,32
133.33 133.33

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

{il The Compary nas only one class of shares referred to 25 equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/-. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share,

(i} The dividend proposed by the Bozrd of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting,

liii] In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares of the Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amaunts in proporton to their sharehalding,.

[b) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, is set out below :

As at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Equity Shares:
At the beginning
MNumber of shares 1,333,333 1,333 333
Armount 133.43 133,34
At the end
Number of shares 1,333.333 1,333 332
Armount 133.23 133,33
[e) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company
As at 31-03-2015 Az at 31-03-2014
Mo, of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Krs. Meera Philip 81,606 6.12% 81,606 b, 12%
Erarjee Consultancy & Trading Co LLP 58,624 A.80% EB.AG4 £.63%
1 Reserves and Surplus: As at Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Capital reserve
Special capital incentive and subsidy
Balance as per last Balance sheet 5330 53.30
Profit on re-issue of forfeited shares
Balance as per last Balance sheet (o1 0,01
Securities Premium account
Balance as per last Balance sheet 41.67 41.67
Excess of Share In Met Assets of subsidiary company
Balance as per last Balance sheet 308 .08
Add: Adjustment for additional shares purchased 0.05
Total Excess of Share in Net Assets of subsidiary company 3.13 3.08
Balance as at the end of the year 9g.11 9B.06
General Reserve
Balance as at begirning of the year G,009.32 5, 009,32
Add - Transferred from the staterment of profit and loss account 1,000.00
Balance as at the end of the year 5,009.32 6,009,322
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Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

Balance as at beginming of the year 4,345.81 4,510.81
Profit for the year RE7.1R 1,084,5%
Amount available for appropriation 5,232.99 5,595.40
Less: Approprations
Imterim dividend - 20.00
Dividend [ Final dividend 150,00 193.33
Total dividend 150,00 113.33
- Dividend tax an.sa 3626
Amount transferred to general reserve 1,000.00
Transitional provision for : Depreciation charge 28.23
Deferrec tax on above |%.60] -
Total appropriations 199,17 1,249.59
Balance as at end of the year 5,033.82 4,345.81
Total reserves and surplus 11,141.25 10,453.19
4 Long Term Bormowings: A5 at As at As at A at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Current Maturity Non-current portion
Secured:
Term Loans from Banks:
Fareign Currency Loans from Banks AGE.95 7756 Leh.dh 1,371.5%
Rupes Loans from Banks 56417 SEa17 420.00 1,044,17
Total Secured Borrowings 1,431.12 1,541.73 1,045.46 1,415.76
Unsecured:
Loans from Banks 1.24 9,449 1.24
Deferred Sales Tax payments 3.08 G641 0.73 3.BD
Total Unsecured Borrowings 432 15.90 0.73 5.04
1,435.44 1,557.63 1,046.19 2,420.80
Aamount disclosed under the head "Cther current lzbilites (1,435.44) 1,557.63) - -
(refer note 10}
Total long-term borrowings - - 1,046.19 1,420.80

A Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured barrowings:

1 Rupee loan from HOFC Bank Ltd.of T 324.17 lakhs {March 31, 2014 : T 648.35 lakhs) for Factary (Phase 1) at Chincholi, Salapur
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entre movable fixed assets of the Company located at Chincholi, Solapur, both present and future and

oy wiay of mortgage of Land together with factory building and structures situated at Chinchali factory, Solagur

Repayable in 20 egual guarterly instalments beginning from June 20, 2011, along with interest of 13 % p.a.

ol

Rupee loan from HDFC Bank Ltd.of T 720,00 lakhs {March 31, 2014 : T 960,00 lakhs] for Factory [Phase 1) at Chincholi, Solapur

Frest exclusive charge by way of ypothecanon of entire movable fixed assets of the Compary located at Chinchol, Solapar, bath present and future and

by way of mortgage of Land together with factory bullding and structures situated at Chinchali factory, Sclapus

Repayanle in 20 equal guarterly instalments beginning from April 30, 2013, along with interest of 13 W p.a

R

Foreign currency loan from HOFC Bank Ltd.of T NIL (March 31, 2014 : T 51,69 lakhs) for Wind Mill project.

First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debits, bills receivables and
entre mavahle Hxed assets and mortgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments beginning from February 5, 2010, along with interest of 5% pa
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2 Foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Led.of ¥ MIL (March 31, 2014 : T 95.73 lakhs] for Kurla Office | premises at Mumbai
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book debts, bills receivables and

entire movable fixed assets and martgage of immovable fixed assets of the Company.

Regayable in 60 egual moenthly instalments beginning fram February 5, 2010, along with nterest of 5 % poa,

m

Forelgn currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd,of T 113.01 lakhs (March 31, 2014 - ¥ 216,42 lakhs) for Kurla Office 1| premises at Mumbai
First gxclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entire current assets, both present and future, including inventories, book deats, hills receivables and
enmee movable fiked assets and martgage of immovable fiked assets of the Company,

Repaysble in 20 equal guarterly instalments beginning from September 20, 2011 along with interast of 8 % pa.

o

Foreign currency loan from Citi Bank, N.A. of T 1,319.40 lakhs [March 31, 2014 : T 1,985.31 lakhs) for Perundurai factory, in Tamil Nadu
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of entite movable fiked assets of the Company located ot Perunduran, Tamilnadu, both present and future
and by way of mortgage of Lanc together with factory building and structures situated at Perundurai, Tamilnadw.

Repayahle in 15 equal guarterly instalments beginning from Aprit 22, 2013 along with interest i@ 5.51% p.a

B Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings:
Deferred sales-tax payments

-

Deferred sales-tax payment s interest free loan and repayable from financial year 2006-07 to 2016-17

Leans from Bank

L)

“ehicle loans are secured by vahicles under hypothecation with banks

Loans are repayakle in 36 monthly instzlments from the date of respecoive lonans.

okl As at As at
5 Deferred Tax Liabilities [Net): 31032015 31032014
Deferred Tax Liabilities
- Degracistian 2,415.27 2,487 36
Gratuity |Expenses zllowable for tay purposes when paid] 19.69 28.71
2,438 96 1,526.07
Deferred Tax Assets
Prowision Tor employes hesefit 44 37 4R 24
44,27 46.24
Total deferred tax liabilities {net) 2,394,609 2,479.83
6 Other Long-term Liabilities: fsat fsat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Securty depasit received aganst the rental income 10,00 1000
Total other long-term liabilities 10,00 10.00
7 Long-term Provisions: As at As at As at Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Current Maturity Man-current portion
Prowvision for Employees Benefit enpenses:
Frovision for Leave encashment 1219 1040 GB 12 43,49
PFrovision for Gratuity paymeant 2687 - -
15.16 10.40 68.12 43.4%
M ark to marke! provision on deriwative natrements QE b 74,34 b 47 121,37
113,82 Ba.74 130,54 164.86
Amount disclosed under the head "Short-term provisions” 1113.B2] 184.74)
(refer note 11 |
Total Long-term provisions - 130.54 164.86
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. As at As at
B Short-term Borrowings: 1103 2015 31.03.2014
Secured:
Working Capital Loan payable on demand from banks
Foreign Currency Loan 3,588.70 3,674.08
Rupse Loan LA0.98 224.52
4,179.66 3,898.60
Buyer's credit in forelgn currency loan - 143 Ré
Unsecured:
D posits from Pukhe 117.00
Deposits from Others 60.45 60.45
60.45 177.45
Total Short-term borrowings a,.240.11 4,519.91

(&) Working Capital Loan from HOFC Bank Ltd of ¥ 2738,32 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ¥ 2 86581 lakhs)
First exclusive charge by way of hypothecanon of entire curcent assets, both present and future, ncluding inventories, book debts, bills receivables and
entire movable fixed assets and maortgage of immovable fived assets of the Comgany

|b} Working Capital loan from Citi Bank N. A, of T 1,441,.35 lakhs (March 31, 2014 : ¥ 1,032.79 lakhs)
Secured by first pan passu charge in fawvour of Cit Bank N.A oy way of hypotrecation of entire current assets including inventories and such other
maovables, books debts, bills receivables and second subsarvient charge on entire movable fieed aszets and mortgage of ‘'mmovable fred assats of the
Compary, both present and future

ic) Buyer's credit in foreign currency loan from HDFC Bank Ltd of T MIL [March 31, 2014 .7 443,86 lakhs) for Capital Goods,
Secured by exclusae charge on an imperted recyeling machine and all related equipments at Pancdi factery. Repayable in one instalment due on

August 08, 2014

|d} Deposits from Public (unsecured] carry interest @ 12.50% p.a. and Deposits from Others (unsecured] carry interest @ 12.00% p.a. with maturity period
of 12 months from the date of deposit

(] Fined Deposits includes deposit acce pted from the related parttes of T ML {March 31, 2014 0 T 73 25 lakhs)

. As at As at

9 Trade Payables: 11-03-2015 31-03-2014
Trade payables 2.035.31 1,B77.53
Total trade payables 2,035.31 1,877.93

Details of Micro and Small Enrerprises as aefined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acr, 2006 (" MAMED Act™)

Ta comply with the reguiresient of The Miceo, Small and Medorn Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company requested 175 suppliers (o confirm it
whebher they ane cesered an Bic i, Armall or Maedium enlerprise 1% s defined i the sad Bct Based an the commumication received Tram suckh ',||||[:Ii|_'-'_\.
contirming their coverage as such enterprise, the comoany has recognized them for the necessany treatment as provided undes the Aot from the date of
receipt of zuch confirmations and are disclosed in note below

Ay al As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at the year end. 168.74 118.17
bl Intarest due to suppliers registered under the MAMED Act and Semaining unpaid at the year ena,
c|  Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MASRED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year.
d] Interest pad, othes than undes Section Teof BMSMED Act, to supplers registered wnder The MEMED Act, beyand the
appointed day during the year,
el Interest paid, under Section 16 of BSMED &ct, to supplers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
day during the year.
fl  Intarest due and payable towards suppfiers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made
gl Furtner interest remaining due and payanle for earlier years
Thie above Informanon regardieg Micro and Small Enterpraes Bas been determmned to the extest such parties bave beens identified on the basis of

itformation available with the Comoany
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o A5 at As at
10 Other Current Liabilithes: 11.03.2015 31.03.2014
Current maturities of Long-term debts (refer note 4) 1,435.44 1,557 .62
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 38.10 G0.18
Unclaimed Dvidend {refer note below) 1185 11.73
Advances from customers A1.15 17.23
Vendors for Capital Gonads & Services 1041 79,90
Statutary duss 15517 149 4%
Others 117.04 __in
186516 1,860 44
Share in lointly controlled entity 0.31
Total other current liabilities 1,869.46 1,869.44
Mote: Thare are no amounts dus and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31st Rarch, 2015,
Az at Asat
11 Short Tarm provisions: 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Current maturities of Long-term provisions of Emplayees Benefit expenses [refer note 7)
Frovision for Leave encashment 12.19 10.an
Frovision for Gratuity payment 2.57
Othar Provisions 15.16 1040
hark to market provision on derivative ‘nstruments GE.66 74.34
PFroposed Dividend 150,00 193.33
Taw On Proposed Dividend 100,54 LE 1]
Provision for taxation - Net of Advance tax paid of T 3,14137 lakhs (March 31, 2014 - T 2958506 lakhs) 36.91
316,11 300.53
Total short-term provisions 331.27 310.93
12 Fixed Assets:
) Grass Block ] - ) Depreciation & Amartisation N _Met Book Value
Particulars Asat I Asat Asat [ R —— Asat Asat | Asat
Additiom | Dlypuns Coe the il
01-04-2014 31-03.2015% | 01-04-2014 Discard | Betained Eamings | 31-03-2015 31-03-2015% 31-03-2014
{a) Tangible Assets
Crwin Assets
Lease hold Land 55743 G57.43 1436 1.52 31 88 525.55 533.07
Roads 43143 13598 0541 0,17 20,44 128.42 ITROS 46126
Buildings 615533 139.51 1470.65) 6074.19 652.32 123.21) 1.49 EO0.10 5,274.0% 550301
Plart and Machinary E36.77 11,529.43 2 123,72} 5,670.33 6,252 05 b, =]
Furmilure & Fistwres 4E3.01 445 |113.52) 3755 10526 |24.34) 1.3z 13049 g IEATS
Office eguipments 153.12 19.05 11.0:4) 171.13 iril 10.3a) 17.00 101.82 116.01
Cormputer Harcware 12811 1z2.00 1431 El.ER 0.78 11103 4543
Vebicles 153.19 - - 153.19 53.43 - .20 7572 il L
Sub Total {a): 1916098 | 1,335.77 |585.21)] 18.511.04 5.616.81 1,452.71 | [47.81) 28.23 7,049,684 12.861.20 13,543,687
Share in lointly - FLEL - 1935 - - - - - 3935 -
controlled entity
~ Towl|al | 19,160.48 | 136512 | |585.21)| 19.84033 | G6I6.EL| 145271 | |47.81) 2823 704984 |  12,80055 | 1354367
(b) Intangitrle Asiets
Ovwen Assels -
Computer Sattware 199 13 18.29 - 217 .62 122.1% 1884 14103 rrla
Copyrighis 11.06 1106 049 0.449 -
Tatal |b): 1%.33 2935 - 228 68 122.19 19.33 - - 141.52 B7.1E 77.14
Total |a+b): 1%,359.81 | 1,394.47 [585.21)] 20L169.07 5, 735.00 1A7TZ.04 | [97.91) 28.23 7,1%1.34 12,977.71 13,620.81
Previous Year 1E,443 26 | 112080 |204.06)) 15359 B1 4,524 26 124442 2968 - 5.739.00 13,620.81 13,919 0
[t] Capital Wark-in-
progress
Factary Building Eh.b3 bO.12
Plart & Wach nary 51247 31312
Othar Assets 552 15 34
Sub Total {c): G062 ARA.58
Share ilh Iointly 334
il
Total {c): BL0.56 3E8.58
Total fixed assets [net| 13,5B8.67 |  14,009.39
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{4l Addition to fized assets and capital work-in-progress inc'udes exchange difterence of 7 83,63 lakhs [March 31, 2014 : T 431,83 Jakhs| arising on
rewvaluanon of foreign currency term loan and peincipal only swap rpes loans (P05 as per amended 4511 (notfied by Mostry of Corporate Affairs)

(k] Additians during the year and capital wors-in-grogress inclede T 2850 lachs [March 21, 20048 3 1574 lakhs) seing borrowing cost capitalised
|2} Interest earned on account of Principle anly SWAaP (205) pan amounting ta T 2120 lakns (March 31, 2014 - T 59 64 lakhs] has been reduced from the cost of

the respective assets
{d] In accorcance with the provisions of Schedule 1 of the Act, in case of fixed assets which have completed their usefsl lfe as at 1st Apr

I, 2014, the carrying value

{net ot residual value) amounting to ¥ 18 63 lzkns (net of deferrad tax of T 9.60 lakhs| as 3 transitional provision has been recognised in the Retained Eamings
- Further, imcase of assets acguired prior to 150 April 2014, the carrying value of assets (net of residual value) 4 depreciated over the remalnng useful life as

determined effective 15t April, 2014

- Depreciation and amormzation expenses for the year would Rave been lower by T 23147 lakhs, hag the company continued with the previous assessment

of useful Iife of such assets,
(el Vehicles include one car of the company acguired in the name of Director,

hs a1 s at
13 Nen-current Investments:
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Long term investments {valued at cost unless stated otherwise)
Others [Quoted):
5,000 (1,000) equity shares of £ 2/- |4 10/} each fully paid up held in Bank of Barodz 0BG 0.B5
|Market Value T 8,16,500/- (March 31, 2014 - T 720,750/-}
Other Investments (unguoted)
129,000 (March 31, 2014 © 129,000) equity shares of T 10/ cach fully paid up teld in Braruch Eco-agqua Infrastructure Lid 12.90 12.890
4,47 SO0 (March 31, 2004 - 292,500] equiy shares of 3100 each fully pale ug hetd on s Ecopowes Venture Pyl Lid, 4475 2025
Total non-current investmant 58.50 4300
14 Long-term Loans and Advances: Asat As ar
31-D3-2015 31-03-2014
Acwances for Capital Expenditure LE. A0 102.80
Other Adviinces B Deposits 7273 265,40
Prepaid Expenses 389 271
MAT credit enfitlamsant ITE.59 43255
Total long-term loans and advances ah7.61 803.86
Other advances & deposits include depasit of T MIL (March 31, 2014 - ¥ 1575 lakhs) with a company in which some of the directors are interested,
Prepaid expenses include current maturity amount of ¥ 57.22 lakhs |March 33, 2014 : T 55,04 lakhs) |refer note no. 20)
Considering the Tuture profitability and taxebie positions in the subsequent years, the companyg bas recognised the "MAT credit entitiement”
as am asset by credinng profit and loss account for an egquivalent amount andg disclesed under "Loans and Advances" in
accordance with the Guidance Note an "Accounting for credit avalable in respect of Minimum Alternatys Tax " jssued by ICAL
A5 ot As at
15 Oth - rnit assets:
o eneurrenn e 11.03.2015 31037014
Long term Deposit wolh Bank {Maturity more than 12 months| 142 13,16
Tatal other non-current assets 1.42 23,16
Fiwed Deposit with Benk include deposit of T0.25 lakhs (March 31, 2014 © ¥ 023 lakhs| lign with the Maharashtes Sales Tex Depariment.
16 Current Investments: As at fs at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Unguoted
T wears Mational Savings Certiicates |Deposited with Central Excize Authority) 0.08 0.08
Tatal current investments 0.08 008
17 Inventories: s at As at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Stores and Spares 136.30 124.89
Packing Materials a6 4530
Raw Materials fincluges Rubber Scrap, Process oils and Chemicais) 1,342 57 1,648,73
Fueesl materials 1353 20,32
FME Licence Stocks (at net realrsable value) 10.11 16.06
Goods-in-process 2a2al 191.689
Goods-in-transit 186.64 398.17
Finished Goods B2G.93 a81.01
Total inventories 3,005.13 3,326.17
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18 Trade Receivables As at A at
11.03-20145 31032014
Unsecured
Outstanding for reore than sis months
Consderad Good 1086 G508
Corsimerod Dokt 017 017
1103 9,23
Less: Prowision lor bad & doubtlul detns 10,171 017
1086 9.06
dthers
Consigerad Good (refer note no. 49) 503740 4,988 .45
Total trade receivables 5,048,268 4,997 55
19 Cash & Bank Balances: Asat Azat
F1-03-2015 31-03-2014
Cash & Cash Equivalants
Cash on hand AE1 BTG
Balonce with banks
1) In Current pccounts 35BS 15.74
(b} In Cash Credit accaunts 35.32 54.74
lcl In EEFC acoounts 2173 S0.87
{d} In deposit accounts (Maturity less than 3 manths] 95,52
i) In earmarked accounts
Unclaimed dividend accounts {3eler Note below) L1185 11.71
- Margin money deposits 12.37 2.74
g2 231.34
Other Bank Balances
In Fiers Depaosit acoounts (Maturity mane than 3 Months but less than 12 manths) 16 88 4,75
21341 14 B9
Share in Jointly controlled entity 5407 =
Total cash and bank balance 21E.48 261.E%
Notes:
Thara are no amounts dua ard outstanding to be creditad to investor Educaton and Protection Fund as at 31-03- 2015
20 Short-term Leans and Advances: As at A ar
31.03.2015 31.03-2014
Advarces recoverabile in cash of in kind 242.39 314.35
Other Advances & Deposits 118 Lo
Daposit with Central bacsze 124.09 203.28
Currert maturity of Prepaid =xpenses £2.22 2504
Advance Income-tan & Waalth-tax - Nat of provisons © 3,178 28 fakhs (March 31, 2014 © € 2, 94% 40 Lakhs) 4B i
424 88 B26.RE
Share in Jointly contralled entity 6.14 -
Tatal short-term loans and advances 431.02 6266
As at AS At
21 Other Current Assats: 41-03-2015 33033004
Accrued Income 104555 119.70
Receivable from LIC {Gratuity claim| 6.15 1214
Farex Forward Contract |Net| 157.55 13 48
) 309.68 145.32
Share in Jointly controlled entity 332 -
Total other current assets 312.98 145.32
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22 Revenue: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
1) Sale of products
Manufaciured goods 34,638.21 31,455.84
Less | Eucise duty 1,148.01 1,125.25
Total: 33,490.20 30,330.59
{1} Trading of Goods r1
{i0i) Porwer generation from Windmill bb. 25 68,85
Total revenue 33,556.45 a0,401.99
Manufactured Goods / Power Generation § Trading
Reclaim Ruober 32,536.44 29,222.1%
Punch & Splt Products 575.50 B30.6%
Thermo Flasoo Elastomers 37826 a3
Trading of Gonds .55
Powmirr generabion fram wingmill 56,25 GE8S
23 Other operating income: fear ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Export incentives 390.54 43447
Bad debts recovered - 4.25
Otrer 5ales 0.0z 3840
Total other operating income 390.56 47716
. Year ended Year ended
24 Other income: 31032015 31032014
Interest received 15 E3 19.28
Rent Income 22.36 1080
Met Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 669.43 175.20
Otrer Incame 0.11 0.33
Total other income 707.73 205.61
25 Cost of material consumed: Fear ended ear ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Raw material consumed:
Opening inventories 1,648.73 1,644.4%
Ade - Furchases including inodental expenses of 672,34 lakhs, Marcn 31, 2014 T 693,48 lakhs) 17,464, 74 14,644 (4
19,113.47 16,7891
Less @ Closing inventories 1.342.57 1,645,713
Total cost of material consumed 17.770.50 14,640.40
{a) Products consumed
Waste Aubber 16,127.87 13,036.47
Process Oils 1,0483.51 144087
Otlver Dils and Chemecals 548,51 16306
(b} Import and Indigenous consumptions 17.770.90 14,640.40
Impors 13 h3 B0 28
L1} 345% 5. ba%
Indigenous 17.157.37 13,B14.12
% 96.55% 54.36%
17, 770.90 14,640.40
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26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade Year ended Year ended
31-02-2015 31-03-2014
Stock at the end of the year:
Firished goods 82653 BE1.01
Goods-in-transit |Finished Goods) 3R6.64 398.17
‘Waork-in-progress 247471 191.62
Stock-in-trade .
Tatal (A) 1,455.98 1,470.87
Stock at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods B2B1.01 a2s8.47
Goods-in-transit |Finished Goods) ERENE 244 86
Wark-in-progress 191 69 17671
Stock-in-trade - 4.23
Tata (B) 1,470.87 1,354.27
Increase / [Decrease) in Stock Total (A - B) (14.89) 116.60
Finished Goods
Reclzim Rubber 102275 1,168.05
- Punch & Split Products 9395 53.97
- Therma Plastic Elastomers 9685 47,22
1,213.56 1,275.19
Waork-in-progress
Reclaim Rubber 24241 191,69
142.41 191.69
27 Employee Benefits expenses: Yaaranted VAaranded
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Salaries, Wages ang Banus 3,821.70 3,234.21
Cantribution Lo Provident fund and Pension Tund 16821 141.52
Gratuity fund 35.85 0.99)
Cantripution to cther funds 71.38 T0.45
Welfare and other benefits 14661 10648
Total employee benefits expenses 4,343.76 3,551.71
28 Finance costs: Year ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
interest on Term & Working Capital Loans 42268 58378
intarest on Other Loans 5.04 25,13
Financial Charges 64.19 77.07
Total finance cost 495.91 695.98
29 Depreciation and Amortization expenses: Yuar ended Year ended
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 1,452.70 1,226.45
Depreciation on Intangible Assets 19,34 1797
Total depreciation and amortization expenses 1,472.04 1.244.42
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Year ended Year ended
30 Other expenses: 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Manufacturing Expenses
Packing Material consumed 41155 772.53
Stores and Spare Parts Consumed 430,66 415,88
Power, Fuel & Water Consurmed:
Power Consumption 357021 331076
Fuel Consumpnan 892.61 01,08
- Water Consumption 44,51 43,67
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses:-
Plant & Machinenes 237.30 250,56
Factory Buildings 2B.31 1492
6,017.16 5,713.70
Sales & Distribution expenses
Ocean Freight 1,485.41 1,557.38
Marine Insurance [R.E] G40
Expart clearing and Other charges 43267 437.02
Local freight & Other charges 615.21 459,24
Other Selling and [istribution expenses B9.23 129,04
2,629.35 2,669.08
Administration & Other Expenses
Insurance 51.30 54.14
Vehicle Expenzes BR.14 7733
Printing & Stabionery 35.02 1145
Advertisements 14.61 15.77
Bent, Lease Bent & Other Charges L8.26 28.60
Bepairs to Other Assets 44 B8 5160
Retainer fees, Legal fees & Prof charges 159.47 143,35
Travelling & Conveyance 172.37 13373
Postage, Telegram & Telephones 57.22 4426
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 0.1y
Payment to Auditors:
Audit fee T08 6,05
lax Audit fee 225 150
- Taxatian matters and ather expenses 501 2.32
Reimbursement of expenses 0.21 0,20
Board Meeting Fees 5.44 5.83
Commission to [Nrector 12.00 075
Charity and doration 0.02 1265
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 55.96 .
Factory / Dffice Expenses 43,29 35.13
Offica glectricity expanses 15.02 14,67
Other Fxpenses 138.26 146,41
Loss on Sale of Assets J Assets Discarded / Impairment 0.53 EB.42
Variatian in CED on Stock of finished goocs 18.52) (777
928.80 907.64
Total other expenses 9,575.31 9,290.42
31 Contingent Liabilities and commitments (to the extend not provided for): Asat fs at
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
|a) Guarant=ed by Banks not provided for (Net| 266.%0 267.93
(b} Letter of Credit 16.60
leh Claims against the company (Including Sales tax, Excise duly, ete] net scknowledged as debts
Maharashtra 5ales Tax 0.74 0.52
- Excize Duty B Service Tax 196.31 16840
- Income Tax liability FELN R0
1d) Estimated amount of contracts remaning to he executed on capital account ELW: ] 75.37
el Employess dues not provided To 0.2%
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B at

37 Discloswre in respect of Lease:

31-03-2015

As at
31-03-2014

Operating Lease

Thie company has entered into lease agreemant for four vehicles taken on operacng lease for a term of 48 months. The future
minmum lease payments under non cancellanle operanng lease are as under

lay Wot later than 1 year 16.15%
1) Later than 1 year but not lates than 5 years 2437
i) Later than 5 yoars

13,27
il1.21

33

A at

Related parties disclosure:
31-03-2015

Ay at
31-03-2014

A

B

=

Relationships

1} Key Managerial Personnel
Rajendra ¥ Ganahi; Managing Directos
Harsh A Gandhi; Exeoutive Director
Ganesn & Ghangurde; Pres'dent, Chiel Financial Officer & Company Secretary

2} Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel and Entities over which significant influence is exercised by key management

personnel of thelr relatives and with whom transactions have taken place in the ordinary course of busingss
Wayna B, Gandhi, Harsh B Gandhi, Semal 1. Gandi, Valshal B, Gandle, Mebal B Gandsig, Mahess Y Gandbi, Hasish &, Gandb,
Mrudula | Shat, Rekba & Kothari, Devyani © Tolia, Varsha H Shab, Chandrika & Kurmbhani and Anant G, Ghangurde
Rajendra V. Gandhi HUF [Rajendra V. Ganchi is Karta)

Aarav Trust (Rajendra V. Gandhi & Harsh R. Gandhi are the Trustess)

Aayushi & Aashni Trust (Rajendra v, Gandhi & Harsh K. Gandhi are the Trustees)

wehal Trust (Rajendra V. Gasdhi B Harsh B Gandhi are the Trustess)

Harsh A, Gandhi HUF {Harsh B, Gandii is Kartal,

Enarjes Consultancy & Trading Company LLP {Rajendra V. Gandhi & Harsh B, Ganah’ are the Designated Partners|
Industrigl Development and Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd. (Rajendra V. Gardhi is Director]

Ghatkopar Estate & Finance Corporation Pt Lod. (Rajendra V. Gandhi s Director)

Mphanso Metsecure Pyt Led, [Harsh B Gandhi and Ganesh A, Ghangurde ara the Dirsctors)

Grip Surva recycling LLP {lointly controlled entity of subsidiary company [Grip Polymers Ltd. )

Related Parties Transactions ot

31-03-2015

As at
31-03-2014

1) Summary of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business

A] Key Management Persannel
Hemunesahon pad 27357
Dividend pad 11.62

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel and Entities ower which significant influence is

exercised by key management personngl or their relatives.,

Furchase of poods K Services

Aemuneration paid 612
Sitting Fees Paid 075
Dividend pa'd 52.B3
Interest paid 0.va
fent pald 0.18
Deposit repaid 17,35
Deposit cutstanding pavab'e

Deposit outstanding recaivabie

Inwestment in capital account of Parteerabip Firm 45,92
2] Summary of transactions with related parties other than ordinary transactions

Sale of Flal B0
Sale of Furniture &5,00

C} Disclosure in respect of transactions which are more than 10% of the total transactions of the same

type with the related parties during the year

1 Purchase of Goods & Services
Alphanso Metsecure Private Limited

28051
1314

1627
559
075

G165

10.34
054
i 00

1725

15.75

16.27
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1 Remunaration Paid
Rajendra v Sandh B2.37 45 50
Harsh B Gandhi 1165.28 29,4
Ganesh & Ghangurde 71.93 94521

3 Sitting Fees Paid
Mahiesh W Gandhi 07 a7n

4 Dividend paid

Harsh B Gandhi B3a 243
Mahesh W Gandbi 1073 277
Rajendra W Gardhi HUTF & 78 rrl
Enaree Consultancy & Trad ng Company L9 8.50 1460

5 Interest paid

Nishal 8 Gandhi LeXes| 1.23

Aayushi & dashini Trust 012 Laa

Aaraw Trust 0.10 148

fiehal Trust 0.17 13
& Rent paid

Industrial Development and lrvestment Co. Pyt Lid. 014 .54
T Deposit repaid

Meehal B Gandhi B50 1.50

Aayushi & &ashni Trust L1.50

Aaraw Trust 1000 1.00

Mehal Trust 1700

8 Deposit cutstanding payable
Mekal A Gandhi
Aayushi & &ashirg Trust
Aaraw Trust
Mehal Trust -

5 Deposit outstanding receivable
industrial Development and irvestrment Co, Pyt Ld 15.75

1

(=]

Sale af Flat
Rajendra ¥ Gandhi Bl -

11 Sale of Furniture
Rajendra v Gandhi 6500

A at &5 at

34 Research & Develapment Expenditure;
P 11-03-2015% 18032014

Accounhing for Besearch & Dewelopment expenditune incurred ©
|} Capital Expenditure incurred on Eguipmants & Machinery [includes T 38.98 lakhs Capital work i progress

of lask year now cag Lalised] apl7a 225 11
|a) Camtal Experdiure incurred an Bui dings, Furniture & office equipments i37.3
lel Cagital Waork in Progress 104 1K OH

|d] Revenue Expenditure incurred towards the RED Projects 217.10 T5.62

The sales income of ¥ 0,37 lakhs from sale of Pilot olant trial material has been included in 5ales revenue and above expenditure s debited to respacmee

e ol accounts

13



GRP LIMITED

GRP‘

IMPALCT FOSITIVE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 (% in lakh)
35 Segment Reporting: Azat Asat
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Segment reportng as required by Accounbng Standard 17 issuec by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.
1 Segment Revenue
a) Reclaim Rubber [Net af Excise Dury) ® 313,111.94 29,852.87
b} P b 25 G885
c} Others ** 378.26 AB0.26
Net Segment Revenue 33,556.45 30,401.98
* Reclaim Rubber includes crumb rubber, punch & split products
** Others includes Thermo Plastic Elzstomers & Trading Gooos
2 Segment Results Prafit[+) / Loss(-) before Tax and interest
from each segment)
a) Reclaim Bubber 2,571,458 3,576.54
b} Pawer 36.21 2518
¢} Others 1302.30) 149.89]
Sub Total 2,305.39 3,652.83
Less: Interest, Un-allocable expenditure & Un-allocable Income (net of expenses) 1,202,30 1,774.43
Profit Before Tax & Extra Ordinary Item 1,103.09 1,778.40
Less: Extra Qrdinary ltem - -
Profit Before Tax 1,103.09 1,778.40
Prowision for Taxaticn:
- Income Tax 291.47 297.84
- Deterred Tax (75.56) 396.01
Profit After Tax BE7.18 1,084.55
3 Other Information
| Segment Assets
a) Reclaim Rubber 15, 2587.64 20,612.13
by Power 268,47 286.69
¢} Others 1,153,658 20606
d} Un-aflocated Assets 2,837.04 2,544.43
| Total 23,546.83 24,249.31
Il Segment Liabilities
a) Heclaim Rublber 4,970.60 b, 65877
by Power 1.06 L2 Eh
o} Others 98,08 Bins
d} Un-allocated Liahilities 7,202.55 686772
2| Tatal 12,272.29 13,662.75
Il Capital Expenditure [Including Capital Work in Progress)
a) Reclaim Rubber 142682 1,114,358
h} Power 014 £.90
o} Qthers 497 66 321.49
d} Unaliocahle 29.83 Bad.da1
el Total 1,854.45 1,509.18
IV Depreciation
al Reclaim Rubber 1,7R4.63 1,101.82
b} Power 14.69 27.22
¢} Others B0.ER 21.12
d} Unallocable 112.23 94.26
a| Total 1,472.03 1,244.42
W Non Cash Expenditure other than Depreciation
a) Reclaim Bubber 0.53 BLE7
b} Power
c} Others 017
di Unallocable - 475
| Total 0.53 £86.59
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4 Information about Secondary Segments
(i) Revenue & Sundry Debtors as per Geographical Markets

Particulars
India

Dutside India
Total

GRP‘

IMPALCT FOSITIVE

(T in lakh)

Revernue Trade Receivabile
2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
5411.38 5,220,28 1,613.58 1,871.64
24,145.07 21,181.71 3,434.28 3,125.91
33,556.45 30,401.99 5,048.26 4,997.55

lil} The Company has comman fixed assets for producing goods far Domestc Market and Dverseas Market. Hence separate figures far fived assets /

adeitions to fixed assets cannot be furnished

36 Jointly controlled entity:

The Company has the following irvestment 'n a jointly controllea entity

Mame of the lointly controlled entity Country of Proportions of ownership interast
Incorporation a% on 31-03-2015
Gripsurya Recyeling LL# India 505

The company s share of each of the assets, equity % labilities, income and expenses i

statements are as follows:

o the Jointhy controlled entity, based on the audited financial

As at As an
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
| Assets
Tangible Assets
Land 29.35
Capital WP 134
Cash & Bank Balance
Cazh in hana
Balznce with bank 507
Short Term Loans & Advances 614
Otver Current Assets
Do posits 2.09
Miscellaneous Expenditure 123
Il Liabilities
Otrer Current Liabilines 0.31
1 Incame
IV Expenses
W Share of Contingent Liabilities -
(Guarantes giwen of any)
. ' ' A al As an
37 Co te Social R ikility E diture:
rporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 31.03.2015 31.03-2014
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 55496
!.l] Amount Spent durisg the year on
Yet to be
In cash paid in Tatal
cish
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
iy On purgoses other than (1} above 55 .95 55.98
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GRP LIMITED GRP‘

IMPALCT FOSITIVE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2015 (% in lakh)
A% at As at
38 Earnings per share: %1, g4 aniE 3. 3014
Wil Profit after tas for the year q4&.08 1.083.79
- Ebxcess Provision for tax for earlier years 58.90 [0.749]
Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders aa7.18 1.084.58
Number of equity shares of T 10/- each 1,333,333 1,333,333
- Earnings per share - Basic a&.54 #3134
Earnings per share -Diluted 6. 54 a1 34

Other Notes

39 During the year a sum of UsD 638 lakhs equivalent 1o & 398 98 lakhs baing receivable from a aebtor has been remitted away by the customer to an account
ather than that of the company oy fraudubert means. The company has lodged a FIR with Police department and has also taxen ug the matter with the
customer, and is hopeful of recovering full amount, hence the same is not treated as doubtful and no provision Is made in the accounts for the same.

40 The company has paid commisson to an independent Non Executve Director which is more by T laks than 1% af net profit and the sime has been recovererd
from him during the current Financial Year

41 Excephonal items regresents profit on sale of resigential fat including furniture and fixtures 1o the Managing Director of the company
42 Expenses debited to Profit & Loss account include prior period expenses T 33,32 fakhs |March 31, 2014 : 7 14 71 lakhs)
43 Closing stock of Finished Goods include sxcise duty of ¥ 82,14 lakhs [Marcn 31, 2014 ¥ 90,76 lakhs)

A4 During the year GRIP Polymers Limited, & subsiciary of the company has entered into foint Venture egreement with Gripsunya recycling LL® hence proportionats
share in the pointly controlled entity has been consoligated for the first ime in the current financial year,

45 In the opinion of the Board, the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are approximately of the value stated, if reglised, in the ordinary course of the

brusiness, Tie provison foar depreciation and Tor ol knoeen babilTies i adegquate and net in exoess of tre amount reasonaily necessary,

46 Previous period figures have been regrouged snd recast wherover necessary 1o conform ta the current year classification

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fnancial statements Farand on behalt of the Board of Directors
A per aur Report of even date

For A. B, Modi & Associates Rajendra v Gandhi
Charterad Accountants Managing Diractor
ICA] Firm Aegistration no, 108473W

Harsh R Gandhi
Rajesh 5. Shah Erxecutive Director
Partner
membership no, 01 7E4

Ganesh A Ghangurde

President & Chiaf Financial Officer &
Company Secratary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbal
Date @ 30th May, 2015 Date : 30th May, 2015
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Key Financial Indicators
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A 40 YEAR JOURNEY
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